
City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue I Las Vegas, NM 877011 T 505.454.1401 I Iasvegasnm.gov

Madam Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Giràn

CITY OF LAS VEGAS
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

December 19, 2018—Wednesday— 6:00 p.m.
City Council Chambers
1700 N. Grand Avenue

(The City Council shall act as the Housing Authority Board of
Commissioners on any matters on the Agenda concerning the Housing
DepartmenL)

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. MOMENT OF SILENCE

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (November 14th and November 20th
, 2018)

VII. MAYOR’S APPOINTMENTS/REPORTS

VIII. MAYOR’S RECOGNITIONS/PROCLAMATIONS

IX. PUBLIC INPUT
(not to exceed 3 minutes per person and persons must sign up at least
fifteen (15) minutes prior to meeting)

X. PRESENTATIONS (Not to exceed 10 minutes per person)

• Presentation by Scott Verhines from Stantec on the Utility Rate
Analysis.

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

David Ulibarri Vince Howell Barbara Perea-Casey David G. Romero
Councilor Ward 1 Councilor Ward 2 Councilor Ward 3 Councilor Ward 4



XII. FINANCE REPORT

XIII. CONSENT AGENDA
(Items may be moved to New Business at the request of any Councilor
with approval of the Governing Body)

1. Approval of Out of State Travel to Tulsa, Oklahoma

David T. Bibb III, Police Chief Less Lethal Impact Projectiles
Instructors Course will be held in Tulsa, Oklahoma on March 24-30,
2019. Our Sergeant and a Police Officer will be attending this training.
They will be trained in the proper utilization and deployment of less than
lethal equipment and munitions. This training is critical to ensure the
Las Vegs Police Department meets instructor training requirements
mandated by the New Mexico Department of Public Safety on high risk
instructor courses which require two instructors during instruction of
students.

2. Approval of Resolution #18-49 Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out or
Unusable Tangible Personal Property.

Tana Vega, Interim Finance Director The City of Las Vegas is
requesting review and approval of Resolution 18-49 Disposition of
obsolete, worn-out or unusable tangible personal property.

XIV. BUSINESS ITEMS

1. Conduct a public hearing and Approval/Disapproval to adopt Ordinance
No. 18-08, an ordinance granting a franchise to Comcast of
Colorado/FloridalMichigan/New Mexico/Pennsylvania/Washington,
LLC.

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk Request to adopt Ordinance No. 18-08.
The last cable franchise agreement approved by Council was in 1997.
Attorney Danelle Smith has reviewed and approved the proposed
franchise agreement. Council approved publication of Ordinance 18-08
at their regular meeting on November 20, 2018.

2. Approval/Disapproval of task order with Stantec Engineers.

Maria Gilvarry, Utilities Director Stantec Engineers will be performing
a utility rate study for water, waste water, sanitary and raw water utilities
for the City of Las Vegas.

2



3. Approval/Disapproval of sale of obsolete vehicles located at the Solid
Waste Yard.

Tana Vega, Interim Finance Director The City of Las Vegas is
requesting review and approval of attached listing of obsolete vehicles.
These listed vehicles have been designated by the New Mexico State
Environment Department as hazardous and have contacted the City of
Las Vegas to remove the vehicles from the Solid Waste Yard and/or face
a substantial fine and/or penalty.

4. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 18-52 Administrative and
Financial support adopting acceptance of $150,000 for the FY 2019 New
Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure
funding for the Great Blocks on MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase I
Construction Project and acceptance of the matching requirement’.

Virginia Marriijo, Interim (‘onirnunity Development Director The City
of Las Vegas in collaboration with MainStreet de Las Vegas was
approved for funding by New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) for
$150,000 in Capital Outlay for the Great Blocks project in the railroad
district. NMMS requires a $27,000 match of which $5,000 has already
been secured by MainStreet de Las Vegas.

XV. COUNCILORS’ REPORTS

XVI. EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE COUNCIL MAY CONVENE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION IF
SUBJECT MATTER OF ISSUES ARE EXEMPT FROM THE OPEN
MEETINGS REQUIREMENT UNDER § (H) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS
ACT.

A. Personnel matters, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (H) (2) of the New
Mexico Open Meetings Act, NMSA 1978.

B. Matters subject to the attorney client privilege pertaining to
threatened or pending litigation in which the City of Las Vegas is or
may become a participant, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (II) (7) of
the New Mexico Open Meetings Act, NMSA 1978.

C. Matters pertaining to the discussion of the sale and acquisition of real
property, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (H) (8) of the Open
Meetings Act, NMSA 1978.

XVII. ADJOURN



ATTENTION PERSONS WITH DISABILITES: The meeting room and facilities
are accessible to persons with mobility disabilities. If you plan to attend the meeting
and will need an auxiliary aid or service, please contact the City Clerk’s Office prior
to the meeting so that arrangements may be made.

ATTENTION PERSONS ATTENDING COUNCIL MEETING: By entering the
City Chambers, you consent to photography, audio recording, video recording and
its/their use for inclusion on the City of Las Vegas Web-site, and to be televised on
Comcast.

NOTE: A final agenda will be posted 72 hours prior to the meeting. Copies of the
Agenda may be obtained from City Hall, Office of the City Clerk. 1700 N. Grand
Avenue, Las Vegas, NM 87701

4



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2018 AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL
CHAMBERS

MAYOR: Tonita Gurulé-Girón

COUNCILORS: David G. Romero
Barbara A. Casey
Vincent Howell
David A. Ulibarri, Jr.

ALSO PRESENT: Ann Marie Gallegos, Interim City Manager
Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk
Esther Garduno Montoya, City Attorney
Pamela Sandoval, Commander

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MOMENT OF SILENCE

Councilor Romero asked for a moment of silence for all the community members
we’ve lost and guidance for the decisions that are made in the best interest of the
community.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councilor Howell made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilor
Casey seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote
was taken and reflected the following:

I



David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes David G. Romero Yes
Barbara Casey Yes Vincent Howell Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

PUBLIC INPUT

Marshall Poole advised in October, the animal welfare coalition took in one
hundred and forty one animals. Mr. Poole advised they returned twenty three
animals to their owner or guardians, they adopted twenty six animals locally and
they trapped thirty one cats and they were sent for spaying and neutering. Mr.
Poole advised they transported fifty one animals to seven different agencies for
adoption.

Mr. Poole advised they had one bite hold in October. Mr. Poole advised they
transported fifteen citizen owned dogs and cats at a low cost of twenty five dollars
or no cost for spaying and neutering.

Discussion took place regarding the successful annual Art Bark fundraiser and the
donations.

Discussion took place regarding a capital campaign for the next five years and
their intentions to bring in an outside vet for spaying and neutering surgeries and
to build a new shelter.

Mr. Poole advised the shelter is serviceable but its near the end of its life. Mr.
Poole advised it’s hard to clean and disinfect but is thankful they haven’t had any
disease outbreaks.

Mr. Poole advised they signed the contract with the City to operate the shelter for
the next four years and they are looking forward to working with the City and
Community Development.

Mr. Poole advised ninety percent of the animals they receive are not spayed or
neutered. Mr. Poole advised they have the low cost of twenty five dollars or no
cost for spaying and neutering, microchipped, rabies vaccine and any other
vaccines they need.

2



Mr. Poole advised they are focusing on dogs returned to owners and puppy
surrenders. Mr. Poole advised they have applied for two other grants, one from
Petsmart Charities and one from another foundation.

Discussion took place regarding the Veterinarian Association Journal and the
effect spaying and neutering has on a community.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón thanked Mr. Poole for all he has done and looks
forward to the new facility.

Discussion Items

1. Bullet Proof Vest Grant for Las Vegas Police Department.

Police Commander Pamela Sandoval advised the grant is from the Department of

Justice and is a 50/50 split for bullet proof vests for Police Officers who just got

out of the academy.

Discussion took place regarding the grant amount.

Discussion and questions took place regarding the quality of the vests.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón advised when there’s an incident of an Officer getting

shot at, that vest is no longer used.

Police Commander Sandoval advised the vest is taken immediately and tested.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

2. Reject Bid #2019-03 for the Senior Center Service Access Parking Lot
Reconstruction..

Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos advised the Senior Center went out for

bids for paving and received one bid.

Discussion took place regarding the rejection of the bid and requesting additional

money from the Capital Outlay Senior Center fund out of Santa Fe and to go out

for bids again.

3



Discussion and questions took place regarding local bidders.

Discussion and questions took place regarding a time frame for requesting

additional funding.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised there might be funding from the State

Agency or Capital projects and the City would match funds if needed.

Discussion and questions took place regarding how bidders will know the amount
to bid for and if that was a good thing.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

3. Resolution #18-45 Budget Adjustment Resolution.

Interim Finance Director Tana Vega advised various departments are requesting an

increase in revenues and expenditures. There is an increase in the E-911 program,

an increase in Capital Project funds and for the 2018 CFP grant for the Housing
Department, and an increase for low rent housing operating subsidy.

Councilor Casey advised on the resolution, it states resolved in session this 2lth

day of November and advised it should be changed to the 20th day of November.

Discussion and questions took place regarding equipment and software being

pre-approved through the State.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked who made the determination of the need.

Police Commander Sandoval advised the equipment is through DPS and Motorola

along with a contact in case any of the equipment needs maintenance.

Discussion and questions took place regarding what the specific upgrades were.

Discussion and questions took place regarding the quality of the upgrades and the

equipment all being new and not used.

Discussion and questions took place regarding who will be using the E-911

funding.

4



The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

4. Review and certify fixed assets/inventories.

Interim Finance Director Tana Vega advised per state auditors rules section W, the
Capital asset/inventory needs to be certified to the correctness of inventory after
fiscal inventory and the certification shall be provided to the agencies auditors.

Interim Finance Director Vega advised the finance department is requesting
Mayor and Council certification of the business fixed assets and supply
inventories.

Mayor Gurulé-Girán advised they all sign off on the certification and to ask their
questions before signing.

Discussion and questions took place regarding having an auction for the old items
and the process for obsolete items.

Discussion and questions took place regarding open auctions and online auctions.

Further discussion took place regarding the depreciation of items and how it is
calculated.

Councilor Howell asked about the life expectancy of recreation workout
equipment, if they will get new ones and if the old ones will be auctioned.

Discussion and questions took place regarding the procedure when equipment
becomes non serviceable and if that equipment is still in use.

Discussion and questions took place regarding the safety of the workout
equipment and putting the equipment on a rotation system.

Further discussion took place regarding any complaints about the workout
equipment and outside sources coming in to maintain the equipment.

Discussion and questions took place regarding a pending disposal list from each
department and the process to take to Mayor and Council.

5



Discussion and questions took place regarding special statutory guidelines for

equipment that is no longer working properly and is considered junk and how to

get it off the inventory list.

Councilor Romero advised a correction needed to be made to the certification of

the business fixed assets and supply inventories which had his father’s middle

initial.

Discussion took place regarding Hannah Park.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

5. Resolution No. 18-44 assuring the the City of Las Vegas supports a request

for a one-year extension to project No. MAP-7647(911), Control No.

L400321, Contract No. D15612, due to road and weather delays.

Interim Public Works Director Danny Gurule advised requesting a one year

extension for the MAP project which is Mountain View, and Grand Avenue to

Seventh Street in case of road and weather delays.

Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos advised the New Mexico Department of

Transportation suggested it would be best to get a one year extension.

Discussion took place regarding who the City is in contact with from the New

Mexico Department of Transportation.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

Councilor Romero asked if he should call for executive session because he wanted

an update on where the Mayor is at with the City Manager and City Clerk

appointments.

Mayor Guru lé-Girón advised she would be working on those.

Councilor Casey asked if there were any other agenda items for the November

20th meeting.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised they might have a couple of other agenda items.

6



Interim City Manager Gallegos advised there will be two union contracts, the drug

policy, internal control policy, franchise agreement, and accounting housing policy

for a total of nine new items on the agenda.

Councilor Romero asked if the union contracts had been ratified by the

membership.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised Fire and AFSCME both have but not the

Police department.

Councilor Howell advised they also have a zone change and asked if there would

be a discussion during the zone change item.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised those items are not on the agenda right now but will

be on the agenda for the following weeks agenda and will discuss it then.

City Clerk Fresquez advised it will be a public hearing.

Councilor Howell asked if the audience can ask questions during a public hearing.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised yes they are sworn in to speak.

Councilor Casey asked if they would be getting the packets a day early since they

are meeting a day early.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised Friday they still meet the 72 hour requirement.

Councilor Casey advised she wasn’t worried about the 72 hour requirement but

having time to read through all the items.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised the staff has worked the last two weeks

trying to get some of the issues taken care of and some of the policies rewritten

and will get them to council as quickly as they can.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised Interim City Manager Gallegos to inform the Council

they are holding the meeting a day early to give employees a half a day off.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised they are working on that.

7



Councilor Howell asked if they were all set to move forward with the upcoming

festivities for the electric light parade and Santa in the park.

Interim City Manager advised they were going to have a presentation on it but will

have Interim Community Development Director Virginia Marrujo speak about it.

Discussion took place regarding the electric light parade, Santa in the park and

other festivities during that weekend.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

There was no need for executive session.

ADJOURN

Councilor Casey made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Howell seconded the
motion. Mayor Gurulé-GirOn asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and
reflected the following:

David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Barbara Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David G. Romero Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón

ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

8



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING HELD
ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2018 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL
CHAMBERS

MAYOR: Tonita Gurulé-Girón

COUNCILORS: David A. Ulibarri, Jr.
David G. Romero
Barbara A. Casey
Vincent Howell

ALSO PRESENT: Ann Marie Gallegos, Interim City Manager
Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk
Esther Garduno Montoya, City Attorney
Pam Sandoval, Sergeant at Arms

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MOMENT OF SILENCE

Councilor Romero asked for a moment of silence to remember those in our
community who had recently passed away, to pray for safe travel during the
Thanksgiving holiday and asked for guidance for Council, in making the right
decisions for the community.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos advised that there was a change on the
agenda regarding the presentation by Leo Montoya, informing that he would not
be presenting on the Mass Casualty Plan until the December Council meeting
which would include an approval of resolution, which was required.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. Councilor
Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call
Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
David G. Romero Yes Vincent Howell Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the minutes for October 10th and
October 17, 2018 with amendments. Councilor Romero and Councilor Ulibarri, Jr.

1
N



seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was
taken and reflected the following:

Vincent Howell Yes David G. Romero Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

MAYOR’S APPOINTMENT/REPORTS

Mayor Gurulé-Girón wished everyone a safe and happy Thanksgiving, she thanked
everyone for being present at the meeting and informed that City staff would be
off half a day on Wednesday, the 21st in observance of Thanksgiving.

MAYOR’S RECOGNITIONS/PROCLAMATIONS

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised that this year’s Electric Light Parade Grand Marshall
was Gonzalo and the first Junior Grand Marshall was Gabriel Sena. She thanked
the Community Development staff for the work regarding this year’s Light Parade.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón took the opportunity to thank and congratulate the Las Vegas
Outlaws and their coaches.

City Clerk Casandra Fresquez read a recognition on behalf of Mayor Gurulé-Girón
and the Governing Body recognizing the Las Vegas Outlaws Youth Football Team
for their dedication to the sport of football and for representing Las Vegas and the
State of New Mexico.

PUBLIC INPUT

Jose Maestas briefly spoke regarding river drainage issues in several areas on the
north end of the City. He hoped these areas would be addressed now that he had
brought it to the attention of the City Council.

PRESENTATIONS

John Spencer gave a detailed presentation regarding the update for the Tree
Board. He presented the 19th Tree City USA Award to the City of Las Vegas from
the National Arbor Day Foundation and thanked Mayor and Council for
proclaiming and celebrating Arbor Day at El Creston Park, also for their continued
support for the City’s Tree Board.

Elizabeth Gardner stated that the City of Las Vegas Tree Board was the first and
oldest Tree Board in New Mexico.

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

IT Manager Kenny Roybal gave a brief update regarding the installation of the new
phone system.

Utilities Director Maria Gilvarry gave a detailed overview regarding the prior
incident of failing filters at the City’s Water Treatment Plant that resulted in

2



limited water supply and production, mostly affecting county residents (Camp
Luna). She thanked all the staff members involved in the many tasks and hard
work it took to restore the system and added that there was a 24 hour standpipe
available to the community, with hopefully the County opening an account to
meet needs for their residents as well.

Mayor Gurulé-GirOn commended the Utilities Department for their hard work and
outstanding job in addressing the issue and made the recommendation of making
a plan for the future with the County to ensure that the needs of the community
are met in an emergency situation.

Interim City Manager Gallegos thanked Maria Gilvarry as well, for her part in
addressing the incident.

Utilities Director Gilvarry announced that Water Treatment Plant Superintendent
Don Cole had submitted his letter of resignation and stated that she was losing a
tremendous Manager. She advised she was working on having continuous
coverage and would be using a firm which consisted of experienced Level 4
operators until the position could be filled.

Utilities Director Gilvary informed they had received the new gas rates from Zia
Gas for the City and that the calculations made for cost of service allowed
reducing the cost of gas by $0.73 per mcL the lowest rate in over seven years. She
advised that the CPI had a partial increase to maintain the cost of service although
the reduction due to Zia’s lower cost of gas made it an overall reduction of $0.73
per mcf.

Interim Community Development Director Virginia Marrujo presented two Top
Hat Awards to the City of Las Vegas from New Mexico Hospitality Association and
New Mexico True, which were Tourism Award-Best Digital Campaign 2018 and
Outstanding Event-2018 Fourth of July Fiestas. She thanked everyone involved in
making the Fiestas a great success.

Interim Recreation Manager Sonia Gomez reported that the boilers were still
down at the center although a vendor would be coming in early next week to
replace parts.

Interim City Manager Gallegos reported that some of the Legislative requests that
had been discussed with Department Heads included:

-Recreation Center Boiler Replacement -Senior Center-Additional Funding for Paving Project
-Hot Springs Boulevard Paving Project -Wiring of IT Services/Funding for 1-2 Generators
-1997 Rescue Unit Replacement -Funding for Mountain View Dr/Keen St. Projects

Interim City Manager Gallegos thanked Public Works staff for working on Veterans
Day clearing snow from streets and parks, she also thanked IT staff for working all
weekend on the new phone installation.

FINANCE REPORT

Interim Finance Director Vega presented the Finance Report for the month ending
October 31, 2018, reporting General Fund revenue at 30% and expenditures at
26%. She advised that Enterprise Funds revenue came in at 28% and expenditures

3



were at 20%. Ms. Vega reported the Recreation Department revenues to be at
28% and expenditures at 25%.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that the documents previously requested
by Councilor Romero were provided and asked if he had any questions.

Councilor Romero thanked her for the documents provided and asked if there was
a separate Capital Improvement Budget.

Interim Finance Director Vega advised that it was under Fund 220 and was funded
by Capital Outlay GRT.

CONSENT AGENDA

City Clerk Fresquez read the Consent Agenda into the record as follows:

1. Approval to accept funding through the Department of Justice to purchase
bullet proof vests through a 50/50 match for the Las Vegas City Police
Department.

2. Approval to reject Bid #2019-03 for the Senior Center Service Access Parking
Lot Reconstruction.

3. Approval of Resolution #18-45 Budget Adjustment Resolution.

Resolution 18-45 was presented as follows:
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CITY OF LAS VEGAS
RESOLUTION 18-45

FISCAL YEAR 2018-20 19
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST

WHEREAS, The Governing Body in and for the Municipality of Las Vegas, State of New Mexico has
developed a budget adjustment request for fiscal year 2018-2019; and

WHEREAS, said budget adjustment request was developed on the basis of need and through cooperation with
all user departments, elected officials and other department supervisors, please see attached schedule; and

WhEREAS, the City of Las Vegas is in need of making budget adjustments in the 2018-2019 fiscal year
budget; to include an increase of $305,891 in the E911 Program, an increase of$174,602 in the 2017 CFP
Grant, an increase of $68,585 in the 2018 CFP Grant, an increase of$l 15,190 in Low Rent 1-lousing.
Total increase of $560,763.

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this governing body that the budget adjustment request is approved
and meets the requirements as currently determined for fiscal year 20 18-2019;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the Municipality of the City of Las
Vegas, State of New Mexico hereby approves the budget adjustment request herein above described and
respectfully requests approval from the Local Governing Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration.

RESOLVED: In session this 20th day of November, 2018.

Tonita Gurule-Giron, Mayor
ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

4



REVIEWED AND APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY ONLY:

Esther Garduno Montoya, City Attorney

4. Approval and certification of fixed assets/inventories.

5. Approval of Resolution No. 18-44 to approve and support a request for a
one-year extension to FY 2017/2018 Project No. MAP-7647(911).

Resolution 18-44 was presented as follows:
CITY OF LAS VEGAS

RESOLUTION NO. 18-44

PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY
New Mexico Department of transportation (NMDOT)

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Las Vegas support a request for a one year extension to
jointly coordinate the grant administered by the New Mexico Department of Transportation (NMDOT).

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas and NMDOT have entered into a joint coordinated effort and;

WHEREAS, the Governing Body provides authorization and approval for an extension request of one
year; FY 2017/2018: Project No. MAP-7647(911), Control No. L400321, Contract No. D15612, Mountain
View from Grand Avenue to 7°’ Street, due to road and weather delays and;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is respectfully requested that authorization be given of said request to the NMDOT
District 4 office for approval of said request.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this day of November; 2018.

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

TONITA GURULE-GIRON
Mayor

ArrEST:

CASANDRA FRESQUEZ,
CITY CLERK

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read into the
record. Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for
roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

BUSINESS ITEMS

1. Conduct a Public Hearing and Approval/Disapproval to adopt Ordinance
#18-07, amendment to the Official Zoning Map for property.

Councilor Casey made a motion to move into Public Hearing. Councilor Ulibarri, Jr.
and Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll
call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

5



Vincent Howell Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes David G. Romero Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

City Clerk Fresquez asked anyone who wished to speak on the issue, to stand and
be sworn in. Maria Perea, Virginia Marrujo, Ralph Marquez, Frances Marquez,
Annette Martinez, Mary Rodriguez, Rick Griego, Mike Martinez, Anamaria
Armijo-Glenn, Kary Osman, Tara Trudell, Jeanette Islcat, Joan Krohn, Nazca
Warren, Rae Dawn Price, Ruth Ramos, Yvonne Sandoval, Lorenzo Martinez, Steve
Rodriguez and Alejandra Roa were sworn in.

Planning & Zoning Coordinator Maria Perea advised that Mr. Gilberto Juan
Lorenzo Martinez, Owner of a 0.10 acres +/ within Bock M, of the Town, now City
of Las Vegas, and known as 338 Santa Ana Street, Las Vegas, New Mexico
appeared before the Las Vegas Planning and Zoning Commission on October 29,
2018. Mr. Martinez is requesting that said property be rezoned from the present
R-2 (Multi-Family Residential Zone) to a C-i (Neighborhood Commercial Zone).
The applicant’s intent is to lease the property to a healthcare cooperative to
provide medical care within a “home’ like setting. The cooperative consists of a
midwife, a therapist and an acupuncturist.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked if any traffic studies had been done within that specific
area because of the school.

Planning & Zoning Coordinator Perea advised that no traffic studies had been
done in that area.

Ralph Marquez spoke briefly on behalf of his mother’s property being near Mr.
Martinez’ home in regards of opposing the proposed zone change due to safety
and several parking concerns in that area. He also mentioned concerns of what
would happen after the business would close and what kind of business would go
in after and pleaded with Council to listen to the wishes of the neighboring
residents.

Frances Marquez a neighbor of Mr. Martinez spoke in regards to being against the
proposed zone change due to traffic congestion and limited parking being a
hazard, adding there had already been a tragic accident in that area and they did
not want to experience that again. She stated they were pleading with Council to
leave their historic district alone.

Annette Martinez thanked the Governing Body for their service and spoke briefly
of the neighbors family history who live in the area of the proposed zone change.
She stated that she felt there was no room for commercial services there and was
thankful for Council hearing the neighbors concerns.

Mary Rodriguez advised she had lived on Santa Ana Street for 65 years and was
against the zone change due to many parking issues and pleaded with Council to
vote against the proposed zone change.

6



Rick Griego advised he welcomed new business although opposed the zone
change due to concerns of traffic and parking issues and emergency situations as
well. He recommended finding another location for the business.

Mike Martinez stated that he also welcomed business although spoke in
opposition of the business locating to Santa Ana Street due to concerns for the
elderly.

Anamaria Armijo-Glenn advised she was in support of the business due to working
in the Social Work field. She stated she was there as an advocate for her patients
and felt it was a positive resource for women, children and for the community as
well.

Kary Osman spoke about the dire need of Behavioral/Mental Health Clinic in this
community and stated that although there were parking/traffic issues, felt that
the need of health services for community members outweighed those issues and
was in support of the zone change.

Tara Trudell stated she recognized parking issues although doubted the clinic for
pregnant women would not create that issue. She advised that this was a needed
business that should be welcomed by the community and was in support of the
proposed zone change.

Jeanette Islcat spoke of the desperate need in this community of Obstetric
services, she understood traffic issues and neighbors concerns although explained
that the number of clients a day would be limited and they did not want to disrupt
the neighborhood. She stated that the business would serve members of our
community in having healthy babies, would better the neighborhood and she
strongly supported the zone change.

Joan Krohn stated that she strongly supported these women as she supported
Midwives, Connie Trujillo and Elizabeth Withnall at the time they were trying to
keep their business open, after having to leave Alta Vista Regional Hospital. She
saw a great opportunity for a clinic for home births for women and added that
they would be very good neighbors.

Nazca Warren supported home birth and felt that this clinic would be set in this
ideal location to give mothers services in a home setting, and that the center
would add opportunity for women to have home birthing/parenting classes which
was limited in the community. She added that this was a wonderful opportunity
of rich choices for women, babies and families in Las Vegas.

Rae Dawn Price spoke of the experience she had regarding the need of obstetric
care and the many benefits from receiving midwife care. She added that the
benefits of having people providing culturally responsive care for women was so
important and needed in this community and asked Council to consider approving
the zone change.

Ruth Ramos spoke of the community’s need of access to mental health/women’s
health care in a home setting which helps in traumatic situations as she had
experienced at the time of the birth of her son and added that this business would

7



provide that. She stated that we needed to invest in this community and asked
Council to keep future generations healthy, safe and thriving.

Yvonne Sandoval Director of El Valle Women’s Collaborative/Healthcare Provider
for the Cooperative spoke in detail regarding the concerns of the Santa Ana
neighbors which included danger and what community they would be serving, she
informed they would be serving mothers, children and families with anxiety,
depression, postpartum and relationship issues and not acute individuals from the
Behavioral Health Center. Ms. Sandoval also spoke in detail regarding children’s
safety issue concerns and informed they were on the same page regarding safety
and added that they met parking requirements and in reality did not need as
much off street parking space as they had due to meeting clients on an individual
basis due to HIPA. She stated that they offered wrap-around healthcare as a
whole team to one individual, to practice safety and to be good neighbors.

Lorenzo Martinez homeowner of the 338 Santa Ana property gave a detailed
report on the history of the home and informed he met these ladies, who were in
a desperate situation and was giving them a reduced rate for rent. He stated he
wanted to give them a chance to get established.

Steve Rodriguez stated that wrap-around services were needed in the community
and appreciated the efforts although he felt that the issue was location due to the
congestion in the area, that the issue was not services.

Alejandra Roa spoke of some of the services she had received and benefitted from
some of these healthcare providers and mentioned that Las Vegas had recently
lost another OBGYN and was in support of this much needed clinic establishing in
the City of Las Vegas.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón thanked everyone for providing their testimonies and advised
they would weigh them very carefully while making a decision. She added that
there were pros and cons and Council had heard each and every statement made.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón remembered and mentioned Midwife, Jesusita delivering
many of her family members. She stated that she understood and respected
everyone’s concerns and hoped everyone could work together with whatever
decision the Council made, for the betterment of our future for our families and
our children. Mayor Gurule-Giron stated that it was within our culture to take
care of each other and asked everyone whatever decision made, to not weigh it as
a negative decision but a positive one and always look at what’s in the best
interest of our community.

Councilor Casey made a motion to accept the record proper. Councilor Howell
seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was
taken and reflected the following:

David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
David G. Romero Yes Vincent Howell Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

8



Councilor Casey made a motion to close Public Hearing and reconvene into
Regular session. Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón
asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Vincent Howell Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

Councilor Casey stated that she appreciated everyone’s input on the pros and cons
regarding the zone change and asked Mr. Martinez if the property was on the
Historic Register.

Mr. Martinez informed that the property was not on the Historic Register.

Councilor Casey asked Ms. Sandoval if they had spoken to the school’s
Superintendent about possibly using the area of the portables on Hot Springs
Boulevard for parking, to help alleviate parking issues. She asked Ms. Sandoval
what her work hours were and if her clients were seen by appointment.

Ms. Sandoval informed that she had not spoken to the school’s Superintendent
although would be happy to do so. She advised that her work hours were 9:00
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and clients were seen by appointments.

Councilor Casey stated that one of the concerns was of elderly women living alone
and asked what kind of clients would be seen and asked Ms. Sandoval if she
planned to build to capacity and if so what kind of capacity would that be.

Ms. Sandoval advised that as several had mentioned, they met with mostly
mothers and couples dealing with postpartum, anxiety, depression and family
issues. She informed of her credentials and stated that she was only one of a few
providers that did EMDR trauma work.

Councilor Howell stated that he believed in advocating for women’s health due to
being raised by women himself and felt it was very important. He stated that one
of the main concerns of the opposition was traffic congestion and recommended
that a traffic study be done in that area in order to analyse safety/risk factors.

Councilor Howell brought up another issue that should be addressed regarding
the use of the C-i Commercial Zone after the business would relocate and thought
that it would be ideal if the C-i Commercial Zone could end. He stated that
discussion should take place regarding an alternative solution to the location issue
which could consist of the City providing a place to lease at a reduced rate.

Councilor Howell asked what would happen if there was an emergency situation
at the time the Midwife was delivering a baby.

Ms. Sandoval advised that the Midwife would follow specific protocols that she
was trained in.

Lengthy discussion took place regarding Midwife training and safety practices,
Midwife Insurance coverage, healthcare services offered and clientele.

9



Councilor Howell stated that his concern was no traffic study being done and
suggested to table this item until a traffic study be done in that area.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that she understood that the majority of births would
be taking place in the home. She asked Planning & Zoning Coordinator Perea for
her thoughts on the traffic study.

Planning & Zoning Coordinator Perea advised that she would get started on a
traffic study if Council wished.

Discussion took place regarding traffic issues and scheduling times at the clinic.

Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. stated that his concern was the citizens, due to traffic and
parking issues and felt that the residents should have been more educated
beforehand.

Lengthy discussion took place regarding the pros and cons of the proposed zone
change.

Councilor Romero stated that parking would be off of Church Street and if there
would have to be any parking ordinance changes made.

Planning & Zoning Coordinator Perea explained that they would not have to make
any changes regarding the parking ordinance.

Further discussion took place regarding the areas of available parking in the area
of Church Street.

Councilor Romero stated that the concern of the location of the business was a big
issue and asked City Attorney Esther Garduno Montoya her legal opinion regarding
the discrimination against where a business can locate.

City Attorney Garduno Montoya advised that they had the right to rezone a
residential to a commercial and stated that if you were asking for the purpose of
the commercial, she did not think you could discriminate as to why.

Councilor Romero asked what would happen in the case of emergency during
birthing at the clinic at traffic peak time and the concern of an emergency vehicle
not being able to get through.

Disagreements among the audience took place regarding several issues at hand.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón called order.

Councilor Romero added that he thought they were all in agreement regarding
these services were needed in our community and stated that another concern
was, what would happen if the clinic would leave, what kind of other business
would move in.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked Planning & Zoning Coordinator Perea to explain the
difference between commercial zoning and neighborhood commercial zoning.

10



Planning & Zoning Coordinator Perea read the § 450-125 C-2 Central Business
District [Amended 8-17-1983 by Ord. No. 72-5] and stated they would have to
meet certain requirements.

Councilor Romero asked Mr. Martinez if it was a long-term lease agreement with
the agency.

Mr. Martinez advised it was a one year lease agreement, giving them a chance to
get established within the community. He stated that he had bought the property
as a retirement home for himself, was renting a home in Montezuma and would
be leaving this home to family members. Mr. Martinez stated that he was not
trying to gentrify this neighborhood.

Brief discussion took place regarding the zoning for parking on the proposed zone
change.

Interim Community Development Director Marrujo informed that it was a
Neighborhood Commercial zone which would benefit that neighborhood and
advised that they had met all commercial zoning requirements as well and
emergency issues had been addressed.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised she would take one more question on the issue from
Mr. Marquez.

Mr. Marquez advised that they were not against these providers bringing in that
service and agreed the community needed it although they were against the
location and made the suggestion of possibly approaching commercial land
owners.

Ms. Sandoval advised that they had already looked at ten other locations and had
not found any that fit their budget and the offer from Mr. Martinez was the one
that met their financial needs.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated she was closing discussion from the public at this time.

Councilor Casey made a motion to close public hearing and reconvene into regular
session. Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-GirOn asked for
roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Vincent Howell Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

Interim Community Development Director Marrujo stated that those opposing
needed to consider parking issues occurring in business districts as well.

Councilor Casey stated she had given this a great deal of thought, she understood
and empathized with both sides and appreciated the input of the neighbors and
had hoped they would have understood the purpose of business as she had
previously explained to them. She stated that the providers had worked diligently

11



in looking for a location in Las Vegas, that she believed in midwifery and thought
these extra services were needed for mothers, families and children.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve to adopt Ordinance #18-07,
amendment to the Official Zoning Map for property. Councilor Romero seconded
the motion.

Ordinance 18-07 was presented as follows:
CITY OF LAS VEGAS, CITY COUNCIL

ORDINANCE NO. 18-07

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FROM AN
R-2 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONE) TO A C-i (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
ZONE) FOR A 0.10 ACRES ± PARCEL LOCATED AT 338 SANTA ANA STREET, LAS
VEGAS, NEW MEXICO AS REQUESTED BY GILBERTO JUAN LORENZO MARTINEZ,
(APPLICANT/OWNER).

WHEREAS, the Mr. Gilberto Juan Lorenzo Martinez, as owner has applied for an
amendment to the official zoning map for a parcel located within Block M, of the Town, now
City of Las Vegas, New Mexico. Property is 4,507.34 square feet in size (0.10 acres ±J
located within T16n, R16e, Section 22, and known as 338 Santa Ana Street, Las Vegas, New
Mexico pursuant to provisions of the Las Vegas City Zoning Ordinance, and;

WHEREAS, on October 29, 2018 the City of Las Vegas Planning and Zoning
Commission, following adequate public notice, held a public hearing to receive testimony
concerning the amendment of the Official Zoning Map to re-zone above parcel (0.10 acres
±) located within T16n, R16e, Section 22, and known as 338 Santa Ana Street, Las Vegas,
New Mexico from an R-2 (Multi-Family Residential Zone) to a C-i (Neighborhood
Commercial Zone) and on October 29, 2018 adopted a motion recommending approval of
the proposed amendment.

WHEREAS, on November _. 2018, the Governing Body of the City of Las Vegas,
following adequate public notice, held a public hearing to receive testimony concerning the
recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Governing Body of the City of Las
Vegas, New Mexico, hereby GRANTS the amendment to the Official Zoning Map by
re-zoning and changing the district classification of certain property known as a 338 Santa
Ana Street and located within within T16n, R16e, Section 22, from an R-2 (Multi-Family
Residential Zone) to a C-i (Neighborhood Commercial Zone), and more fully described as
follows:

Lots 17, 18, 19 and 20, Block 20, of the Lopez, Sulzbacher & Rosenwald
Addition to the El Dorado Town Company

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Governing Body of the City of Las Vegas, New
Mexico, hereby adopts the following findings of fact upon which the Council’s decision is
based:

1. The boundaries of the zones established by the City’s Ordinances, the
classification of property herein, or other provisions of said Ordinances may be
amended whenever public necessity, convenience, or general welfare require.

2. That duly public notice and public hearings were in accordance with the legal
requirements and a site plan for the zone change has been provided which is
acceptable to the City Council.

3. That property owner(s) disclose that property is within a flood zone area when
property is sold and that elevation certificates will be required for the
completion of property development.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THIS

____

DAY OF

____________.

2018.

12



ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk Tonita Gurulé-Girón, Mayor

REVIEWED AND APPROVED
AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY ONLY

City Attorney

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following;

Councilor Howell stated that before giving his vote, he personally was requesting a
formal analysis of a traffic study and he thought it was very important to address
this concern if that was not going to happen, then his vote was no. His suggestion
was to postpone this item until the December meeting, in hopes of having a
completed traffic study by then.

Councilor Romero stated that he did recognize the need for mothers and that his
vote was yes and pleaded with the business to work well with the neighbors.

Vincent Howell No David G. Romero Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. No

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that there was a tie.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that this was a difficult decision, that she had to do
what was best for the women in this community, as a woman and a mother, she
supported women and that as the Mayor she was making this tough decision, she
voted Yes and broke the tie.

City Clerk Fresquez advised that the motion carried.

2. Approval/Disapproval of International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Local
4625 Agreement.

IAFF Management Team member Billy Montoya advised that the City entered into
contract negotiations with IAFF for purposes of negotiating a new contract. The
International Association of Fire Fighters Local 4625 has ratified and approved
collective bargaining agreement between the City of Las Vegas and the Las Vegas
NM Professional Fire Fighters Association. He gave a detailed outline of the
amended Articles pertaining to the agreement.

Councilor Casey asked questions regarding Insurance Disabilities, Designation of
Officers, members or union president in attending meetings, trainings, etc.

Fire Chief Billy Montoya addressed the questions asked by Councilor Casey.

Councilor Howell asked if the negotiating team goes back to union members for a
vote regarding bargaining and asked who would and would not be receiving the
$0.75 raise.

13



IAFF Union President Joseph Garofalo advised that the union members which
were all on the negotiating team voted unanimously to move forward and the
contract was ratified.

Fire Chief Montoya advised only union members would receive the raise and three
Lieutenants and six entry level positions would not receive the $0.75 raise.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the International Association of Fire
Fighters (IAFF) Local 4625 Agreement. Councilor Howell and Councilor Ulibarri, Jr.
seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was
taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Vincent Howell Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón commended Fire Chief Montoya and his staff for all their
work in bringing this contract forth, for being considerate and fair to the staff and
that demonstrated strong leadership.

3. Approval/Disapproval of the American Federation of State, County and
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local 2851 Agreement.

AFSCME Management Team member Casandra Fresquez advised that the City
entered into contract negotiations with AFSCME for purposes of negotiating a new
contract. The American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees
Local 2851 has ratified and approved collective bargaining agreement.

City Clerk Fresquez advised that they had the entire contract to go through so any
and all articles were brought to the table from both parties and was a lengthy
process. She explained that Darlene Arguello red lined all articles changed, and
the new language was in blue. City Clerk Fresquez advised that the Management
Team included herself, Darlene Arguello, Don Cole, Commander Pam Sandoval,
Barbara Padilla and Tana Vega and the Union Team included AFSCME
Representative Sam Chavez, Union President Abraham Maestas and union
member Michael Blair, adding that Michael Blair and Abraham Maestas were
present earlier although had to leave the meeting.

Discussion took place and questions were asked by Councilor Casey regarding
some of the language and changes on the contract which included:

- Article 9: Disciplinary Action - Page 11: Article 17B Employee Request (Personnel
- D: Types of Discipline (Progressive) File)
- Article 9: #1 Language/Definition (Reasonably) - page 12 c: Employee Rebuttal (30 days to 7 days)
- Page 8, c: Grievance/Arbitration Filing Costs
- Article 13: page 10 Rest Period

Councilor Casey asked why the language changed from “may” to “shall” on page 6,
Article 9, A. Disciplinary Action.

14



City Clerk Fresquez advised that they cleaned up the language on the contract and
that the language meant that Human Resource Department would keep the file
separate from the personnel file.

Management team member Darlene Arguello advised that they wanted to keep
counseling sessions away from disciplinary actions because they were not really
considered a disciplinary action and would keep in a soft file, where it would not
come into play with the disciplinary process but refer back to it, showing that at
some point they were counseled on the issue.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that she disagreed with Ms. Arguello’s statement,
“because in H.R., the minute you create a soft file, that is progressive discipline,
which would lead up to disciplinary action and up to termination, so your
statement here today is inconsistent with the actual process”. She asked for the
legal opinion from City Attorney Garduno Montoya.

City Attorney Garduno Montoya advised that she would have to do some research
on that issue.

City Clerk Fresquez advised that the negotiating team had guidance from Attorney
Dma Holcomb who studied Union Negotiations and was involved in the process
and explained that she reviewed the entire document, gave her recommendations
and they went based off of Ms. Holcomb’s recommendations.

Councilor Casey stated that she had been a union member all her working career
and she strongly supported unions, and that this language hit her the wrong way.

Brief discussion took place regarding some language on Disciplinary Action,
Written Warning and definitions in the contract.

Councilor Romero asked about advisor Dma Holcomb and also asked if the
contract would have to go back for ratification if changes were being made to it.

City Clerk Fresquez clarified that their advisor was attorney, Dma Holcomb who
had helped in the City’s negotiations in years past. She advised that this contract
had been agreed upon and ratified by the union although it would have to go back
to the table, then ratified.

Some discussion and questions were addressed regarding the changes made to
several articles on the contract.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that questions would not be allowed to be answered,
and would allow Councilor Casey to ask her questions into the record.

Councilor Casey spoke of her concerns regarding changes to the articles.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón suggested they table this item until next month and hopefully
those questions from Councilor Casey which were duly noted on record, would be
addressed by then. She suggested to Council to submit any questions in writing
pertaining to the contract, to Interim City Manager Gallegos.

15



Councilor Howell asked for clarification regarding the employee having the right to
view their personnel file and stated that their attorneys would have to pay for files
if needed at the time of arbitration.

City Clerk Fresquez advised that employees were allowed to view their personnel
file and added that they were trying to be consistent with the other union
contracts.

Councilor Casey stated that she did not mean to de-rail the AFSCME agreement
approval for the employees although in her personal opinion thought it was not
fair for the employees and could not support the contract as it was written.

Councilor Romero stated that in any union contract that is negotiated, Council
typically sides on behalf of the management team and advised that the
management team did a great job regarding the management side although
stated whoever fought for the union employees, did not do a good job. He stated
that he agreed with Councilor Casey and Mayor Gurulé- Girón and felt that the
union team needed to step up for the employees.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that she would take the contract back,
meet with the union, also with the City Attorney for help on these issues and bring
back to Mayor and Council. She informed that the employees salary would be
affected, stating they had not received a raise in the last two years and did not
know if anything could be done or would have to bring it back next month.

Councilor Romero asked City Attorney Garduno Montoya for her legal opinion
regarding if anything could be done legally in giving the employees the $0.75 raise
now, as opposed to waiting for negotiating again with AFSCME.

City Attorney Garduno Montoya thought that they could wait to accept the
contract due to only a dozen issues to discuss, which would not take long to meet
and bring back to Council.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised there were would be an additional step
which was taking it to the union to be ratified and advised they would move the
process quickly, possibly having to call a Special meeting.

Councilor Howell made a motion to table the approval/disapproval of The
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local
2851 Agreement. Councilor Casey seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón
asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Vincent Howell Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

4. Approval/Disapproval for a salary increase of seventy-five cents ($0.75) to the
regular hourly rate of pay for all non-bargaining unit employees, including part
time employees with at least one year of continuous employment with the City,
effective the first full pay period after Council’s approval.

16



Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos advised that the City of Las Vegas has
been budgeted for the proposed salary increase. The proposed increase is
commensurate with increases to AFSCME and IAFF employees.

Interim City Manager Gallegos suggested tabling this item as well, until the
AFSCME agreement was approved.

Councilor Romero made a motion to table the approval/disapproval for a salary
increase of seventy-five cents ($0.75) to the regular hourly rate of pay for all
non-bargaining unit employees, including part time employees with at least one
year of continuous employment with the City, effective the first full pay period
after Council’s approval. Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. and Councilor Howell seconded the
motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and
reflected the following:

David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Vincent Howell Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David G. Romero Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

5. Approval/Disapproval to publish Ordinance No. 18-08, an ordinance granting a
franchise to Comcast of Colorado/Florida/Michigan/New Mexico/Pennsylvania!
Washington, LLC.

City Clerk Casandra Fresquez advised that the last cable franchise agreement
approved by Council was in 1997. Attorney Danelle Smith had reviewed and
approved the attached cable franchise agreement. Ms. Erin Muffoletto with
Comcast was present at meeting to answer questions regarding the proposed
franchise agreement. If approved to publish, the ordinance will be brought to
Council in December for a public hearing and adoption of the ordinance.

Questions were asked by Council regarding Comcast service and addressed by
Comcast Representative, Erin Muffoletto.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve to publish Ordinance No. 18-08, an
ordinance granting a franchise to Comcast of Colorado/Florida/Michigan/New
Mexico/Pennsylvania/Washington, LLC. Councilor Howell seconded the motion.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David G. Romero Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

6. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 18-46 Adopting the updated City of Las
Vegas Meadow City Express-Zero Tolerance Substance Abuse Policy.

City Clerk Casandra Fresquez advised that the Meadow City Express was updating
their current policy to reflect updated regulations required by the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) of the US Department of Transportation. She advised that

17



she had attached the addendums to the policy and stated that the biggest change
was changes to the drug testing panel which were four new opioids.

Councilor Casey asked for clarification regarding the effective date of the adoption
of Resolution 18-46 being last year and if it served as the base.

City Clerk Fresquez explained that it was the base and addendums are added to
the initial resolution.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve of Resolution No. 18-46 adopting the
updated City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express-Zero Tolerance Substance Abuse
Policy. Councilor Howell seconded the motion.

Resolution 18-46 was presented as follows:

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

RESOLUTION NO. 18-46

A RESOLUTION REPEALING AND REPLACING ALL PREVIOUS RESOLUTIONS AND ADOPTING AN

UPDATED CITY OF LAS VEGAS TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT (MEADOW CITY EXPRESS) FTA DRUG

AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY (ZERO TOLERANCE)

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas Transportation Department (Meadow City Express) is required by the
NMDOTTransit and Rail Division to have a FTA Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy in place; and

WHEREAS, upon completion of the Meadow City Express Drug and Alcohol Site Visit it was
recommended that this updated FTA Drug and Alcohol Zero Tolerance Policy be created and adopted by
the Governing Body, and distributed to MCE employees; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Governing Body of the City of Las Vegas hereby approved
the City of Las Vegas Transportation Department (Meadow City Express) FTA Drug and Alcohol Testing
Policy (Zero Tolerance) and directs its distribution to transit employees.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City of Las Vegas Governing Body this

_________day

of

________________________

2018.

City of Las Vegas;

Tonita Gurule-Giron, Mayor

Approved as to legal sufficiency only; Attest;

Esther Garduno-Montoya, City Attorney Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Vincent Howell Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

18



City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

7. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 18-49 Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-out or
Unusable Tangible Personal Property.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that the next three resolutions were part
of the compliance for the Housing Department.

Interim Finance Director Tana Vega advised that the City of Las Vegas was
requesting review and approval of Resolution 18-49 Disposition of obsolete,
worn-out or unusable tangible personal property. (NMSA 1978 Section 13-6-1,
State of New Mexico).

Councilor Casey asked since this was state statute, was there a definition for
tangible personal property and thought that using state statute as a policy was not
acceptable to HUD.

Interim Finance Director Vega informed the definition was included in the statute
and regarding the use of state statute for HUD, it would be acceptable if the
resolution was adopted.

Lengthy discussion took place pertaining to the difference from tangible personal
property and fixed assets, state statute policy affecting federal funding and CFR
(Code of Federal Regulations).

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that they could reference and detail some
language on the resolution stating “the City would comply with all federal
regulations as deemed necessary by the individual program”.

City Attorney Garduno Montoya recommended that the language include, “in any
applicable federal law”.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that an amendment would be made to Resolution
18-49, she would review the amended Resolution and sent to Council for review
as well.

Councilor Casey stated that she would like to review the resolution before voting
on it and made a motion to table business item 7, approval/disapproval of
Resolution 18-49 Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out or Unusable Tangible
Personal Property until language can be added to the resolution. Councilor
Howell seconded the motion.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Vincent Howell Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David G. Romero Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

8. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 18-48 City of Las Vegas Internal Control
Policy.

19



Interim Finance Director Vega advised that the City of Las Vegas was requesting
review and approval of Resolution 18-48 City of Las Vegas Internal Control Policy
and procedures.

Councilor Casey stated that regarding the Internal Control Policy, page 20, when
referencing information, to include the language as to where they can find that
information.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised the language would be added in the future.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve Resolution 18-48 City of Las Vegas
Internal Control Policy with the added language on page 20. Councilor Ulibarri, Jr.
seconded the motion.

Resolution 18-48 was presented as follows:
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CITY OF LAS VEGAS
RESOLUTION NO. j8-48_

CITY OF LAS VEGAS INTERNAL CONTROL POLICY

WHEREAS, the Governing Body in and for the Municipality of the City of Las Vegas, State of
New Mexico have developed an Internal Control Policy, and

WHEREAS, said policy was developed on the basis of need and through cooperation with City
Administration and elected officials, and

WHEREAS, document has been prepared to demonstrate the internal accounting policies and
procedures applicable to the City of Las Vegas, and

WHEREAS, its purpose is to ensure that assets are safeguarded, financial statements are in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and finances are managed with
responsible stewardship, and is intended to formalize accounting policies and selected
procedures for the accounting staff and to document internal controls, and

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this governing body that the City of Las Vegas Internal
Control Policy meets the requirements as currently determined, and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the
Municipality of the City of Las Vegas, State of New Mexico hereby adopts the City of Las Vegas
Internal Control Policy.

RESOLVED: In session this 20th day of November, 2018.

MUNICIPAL GOVERNING BODY
LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO

TONITA GURULE-GIRON, MAYOR
ATTEST:

CASANDRA FRESQUEZ, CITY CLERK (SEAL)

APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

ESTHER GARDUNO-MONTOYA, CITY ATTORNEY

20



Mayor Gurulè-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

Vincent Howell Yes David G. Romero Yes
Barbara A. Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

9. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 18-47 City of Las Vegas Housing Authority
Accounting Policy.

Interim Finance Director Vega advised that the City of Las Vegas was requesting
review and approval of Resolution 18-47 City of Las Vegas Housing Authority
Accounting Policy.

Councilor Howell asked if this was the City’s policy or state statute.

Interim City Manager Gallegos stated it was the City’s policy.

Councilor Howell made a motion to approve of Resolution 18-47 City of Las Vegas
Housing Authority Accounting Policy. Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. seconded the motion.

Resolution 18-47 was presented as follows:
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CITY OF LAS VEGAS
RESOLUTION NO. 18-47

CITY OF LAS VEGAS HOUSING AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING POLICY

WHEREAS, the Governing Body in and for the Municipality of the City of Las Vegas, State of
New Mexico have developed Housing Authority Accounting Policy, and

VHEREAS, said policy was developed on the basis of need and through cooperation with City
Administration and elected officials, and

WHEREAS, document has been prepared to demonstrate the internal accounting procedures for
the City of Las Vegas Housing Authority (LVHA), and

WHEREAS, its purpose is to ensure that assets are safeguarded, financial statements are in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and finances are managed with
responsible stewardship, and

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this governing body that the City of Las Vegas
Housing Authority Accounting Policy meets the requirements as currently determined, and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the
Municipality of the City of Las Vegas, State of New Mexico hereby adopts the City of Las Vegas
Housing Authority Accounting Policy.

RESOLVED: In session this 20th day of November, 2018.

MUNICIPAL GOVERNING BODY
LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO

TONITA GURULE-GIRON, MAYOR
ATTEST:

21



CASANDRA FRESQUEZ, CITY CLERK (SEAL)

APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

ESTHER GARDUNO-MONTOYA, INTERIM, CITY ATTORNEY

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

COUNCILOR’S REPORTS

Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. thanked the entire City staff for all their hard work and to
enjoy Thanksgiving.

Councilor Casey asked for the status of the Garfield Street issues.

City Attorney Garduno Montoya informed that regarding Garfield Street issues,
there was an ordinance brought to council back in 1991 to vacate Garfield Street
from Railroad Avenue up to the train tracks. She advised also paperwork was filed
with the County Clerk in 1992, indicating it was vacant. City Attorney Garduno
Montoya advised that that portion had been vacated and that at the time the
ordinance was heard by Council, City employees indicated it would be too costly
to maintain that portion. She advised that she recently heard questioning
regarding that it should be reversed and that her intent was to meet with who she
thought was the property owner, Mr. Baca on what his reasoning was.

Councilor Casey praised all City employees in every department for their work
ethic and was proud of all them, and thanked them all and wished everyone a
wonderful, blessed and happy Thanksgiving.

Councilor Romero thanked all City employees for their hard work as well and
explained that he was there to represent the people of the community and hoped
everyone understood the reasoning of his questions . He also stated that at the
time of the recent water leak, was out of town and receiving calls with no idea of
the situation and asked if Council could be given information and updates at the
time of emergency situations in the City, in order to be prepared to answer
questions from the community.

Councilor Howell had concerns of snow and ice on the South end of Douglas
Avenue near Charlie’s Bakery after a snowfall, he asked who was responsible and
if it could be addressed.

Streets Superintendent Chris Rodarte explained that the Streets Department was
responsible for snow removal and when salting and cindering, a certain
temperature is needed in order for it to melt and informed that they also blade
the areas, trying to pick up as much as they can.

22



Councilor Howell stated that he was very appreciative of our City staff and this
Administration, even if it sometimes came with struggles, he praised everyone for
working well as a team and reminded everyone to be appreciative so that new
things can come to us. He wished a happy Thanksgiving to all.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that we needed to be thankful for everything we have,
our health and our families and to enjoy loved ones when we do have them. She
thanked all the incredible City staff who support each other and wished everyone
a happy and safe Thanksgiving.

Interim City Manager Gallegos stated that Department Directors and Managers
come together when needed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised there was no need for Executive Session.

ADJOURN

Councilor Howell made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Casey seconded the
motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and
reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón

ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

23



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 12/7/18 DEPT: Utilities MEETING DATE: 12/19/18

ITEMITOPIC: Presentation on the Utility Rate Analysis.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: N/A

BACKGROUNDIRATIONALE: Mr. Scott Verhines from Stantec will be presenting to the
Governing Body on the utility rate analysis.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: N/A

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE CITY
COUNCIL MEETING.

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURULE-GIRóN
MAYOR

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

TANA VEGA, INTERIM
FINANCE DIRECTOR
(PROCUREMENT)

ESTHER GARDUNO-MONTOYA,
CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)

PURCHASING AGENT
(FOR BIDIRFP AWARD)



1



2



Qualifications:

Who We Are

3



• DEl now Stantec has completed rate studies for other communities across New
Mexico including Albuquerque, Las Cruces, Rio Rancho, and Artesia. Our recent
merge with Stantec allows us to tap into a new bank of knowledge and tools to
better serve your community and your needs.

• Our new connections include experts in water management and utility financial
analysis as well as a large array of other supportive services.

4



• Our ability to tap into these resources means that you will receive world class
outcomes tailored to the specific needs of Las Vegas, NM.

• We understand that every place has different requirements (Albuquerque is not the
same as Artesia).

Our team of experts understands
each community is unique

Oqcd

eveIOpingRes

Andy Burnham (17 years)
lead author for reclaimed water and outside
city/wholesale rates chapters in Ml; Reserve
whitepaper for AWVVA

Mike Burton (37 years)
key author of: 4 — Rates for small systems

Mark Hildebrand (17 years)
contributing author to AWWA 200 edition of Water
Rates, Fees, and the Legal Environment

David Hyder (18 years)
primary author for fixed charges chapter in lvi 1

Carol Malesky (20 years)
contributing editor for VVEF MOP 27 — Waslowater

system financing and charges

Bill Zieburtz (31 years)
Former AWWA Manual Ml past chair
of the Rates & Charges Committee

Stantec

5



e

Background

Sustainable Utilities

6



Why do a Rate Study?

EatY)

(Ecrn ()

Stantec

• It is our understanding that water and utility rates were recently modified; however,
rate models are the product of a complicated set of considerations.

• We must be able to balance providing an adequate standard of care to customers,
while keeping bills reasonable, and accounting for infrastructure updates and
maintenance.

• Conducting a review allows us to continue fine-tuning the model to alleviate
customer burden, while creating a positive future for operation and management of
these critically important systems.

7



Financial
Sustainability

Bridging the revenue gap while maintaining
fair customer pricing

• Revenue

Cost to Serve

• In a sustainable model, the revenue matches the cost to serve. This is a
representative example of what we would see in other communities. Sometimes the
cost to serve is greater than revenue, and sometimes the opposite is trye. Analyzing
the rates and rate structure allows us to get closer to that ideal balance of providing
the adequate standard of care for all customers on the network. By designiiig with
the most vulnerable residents in mind, we ensure that pricing is fair and quality is
maintained.

Residential Multi-Family Commercial Industrial Landscaping

8



Rate analysis does not mean rate increase

• We want to be clear on one thing: “Rate Analysis does not mean rate increase.”
• Our purpose is to gather information and provide recommendations that will

alleviate the financial burden of utility costs to create a more equitable model.
• In many cases, average water users will actually see a decrease in their utility bill,

shifting the burden to the biggest water users that make up the smallest pc’rt of the
customer base.

6.1% of bills will increase
by $5 - $78

0.7% of bills will Increase
— by$78.$320

24.5% of bIlls will
Increase by $1 - $9

deceas:25

48.3% of bIlls wUl decrease

•O-4CCF I9-21CCF

Stantec

Previous project showing fair adjustments for customers

5-8CCF 22-4OCCF I>4OCCF

9



For the City of Las Vegas, we have identified four utility sectors that would benefit from
a rate analysis and adjustment. While the analysis process is similar for all four we will
focus on water for the remainder of this presentation.

10



A Proven Strategy

e

11



Active Stakeholder Participation

• Reviewing utility rates involves four major steps.
• We must first look at past, current, and projected operation and capital costs.

This gives us a basis for understanding the revenue needs of this community.
• This evaluation leads to a holistic view into utility spending to

determine necessary and unnecessary expenditures. This encourages
planning ahead to avoid future rate restructuring or increases to
complete large projects.

• We then determine the cost allocation by creating different categories and
tiers of customers being served.

• A single family home with no lawn is going to have different water
needs than a multi-family home with a large property.

• This step allows us to identify those customers that are affected most
by current rate structure and address their concerns.

• The goal is to set up an equitable and fair distribution of utility costs.
• During the rate design, we identify the structures that best fit this community

and assign them to the predetermined tiers.
• Albuquerque example:
• Base rate that everyone is required to pay.
• Additional surcharges for summer/winter water usage diffeence

Evaluation
Process

Stakeholder participation is critical to the
success of any study

0 • ;fj:rr
L

Revenue ) Cost Allocation ) Rate DesignRequirements

• Operating Costs
• Capital Costs

Financial Policies
• Debt Coverage
• Reserves

• Evaluate Available Data
Establish Classes
Identify Methodology
Compare Results to Current
Revenue

• Evaluate Objectives
• Identify Structures
• Set Parameters

Customer Impacts

• Explain Process/Data
• Adtustment Drivers
• National Trends

Local Practices

12



captures costs of providing water for outdoor use.
• Additional surcharge for water use over the average among your peers

(determined by tier) and potential credit for using less than average.
Our final step, communication and community engagement, is just as
important as the rest of these steps in determining the adequacy of the rate
model.

• Conducting surveys allows us to understand the public opinion and
what the community prioritizes in their standard of service.

• Creating discussion spaces by hosting round table sessions for
community members to participate, learn, and provide feedback

• Discuss Albuquerque example.
• As you can see, stakeholder participation is critical for every step of the process.

12



Ood R,o. 100 ——. CPSd.

-

:IIflHUhIH - :.iHiiIflhI

• One of the tools that we are very excited to share with you is this interactive
management tool that allows for continual review of rates, allowing real-time
evaluation and sophisticated analysis in the future.

Tailored solutions for long-term success

FT 2023 . .-. . Fl 2027 FT 1021 702022 FY 2027
I I I I I I I Cu,nvlolv,

WoI7 IW1FI?
A :

Eo:lc,% 100% 100% 00% % 100% )) 100% ‘10% I 00%

Tol1ICooo0Rv F,,dIolono0

:: linflhlUhl
10102.:

,,..,,

:IIIddIIII
CCvndjn2

r:

13



Community Goals

Designing for Las Vegas

14



Community Outreach
Public engagement

• Encourage customer participation

• Capture constructive feedback

• Create a fair pricing model

• Continue commitment to improvement

—
a.

1.
= II

• In our experience, the analysis and data collection is a fairly straight-forward process,
with public participation and engagement varying based on the community.

• We really want to encourage folks to participate and be involved in this process to
make sure that their needs and expectations are met.

• Most importantly, we want to acknowledge constructive feedback that allows us to
keep things that work and improve those that don’t.

• Cooperation and the ability to work together will ensure that the pricing model is fair
and equitable to every member of the community.
We have confidence in a positive outcome and congratulate the city of Las Vegas for
reviewing and fine-tuning their existing model.

Stantec

15



Serving Your Community

Protecting your interests

• Gather data for future decision making

_________

• Design with the most vulnerable
residents in mind

• Provide tools for water resiliency

Stantec

We are committed to serving you and protecting your interests. Our main goal here
is to gather data and provide the tools that you need to better take care of your
constituents and make more informed decisions in the future.

• Our priority is to alleviate imbalance in the existing rate structure by providing
recommendations to help your most vulnerable customers including those people
that have a fixed income and struggle to keep up with the current structure.

• Finally, we want to participate in your plan for resiliency by equipping the City of Las
Vegas with the right tools and the right rate model to adapt to the water challenges
of the future.

41

to HI5tOric r
II. I(TE iR*L
7THgUGL*S

NAY5 IOAM4PM
4544771

16



Without change there is no innovation,
creativity, or incentive for improvement.
Those who initiate change will have a
better opportunity to manage the
change that is inevitable.

William Pollard

17



G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

T
H

R
U

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

30
,

20
18

42
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

L
A

P
S

E
D

(5
of

12
m

o
n
th

s)
FI

SC
A

L
Y

E
A

R
20

19

T
o
ta

l
B

u
d

g
et

to
A

ct
u

al
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o
n

A
B

C
D

(L
ic

en
se

&
F

e
e
s-

B
u
si

n
e
ss

L
ic

en
se

s,
L

iq
u

o
r

L
ic

en
se

s
an

d
B

u
il

d
in

g
P

er
m

it
s,

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

F
ee

s)
(L

o
ca

l
F

in
es

-
C

o
u
rt

F
in

es
,

L
ib

ra
ry

F
in

es
,

T
ra

ff
ic

S
af

et
y

F
in

es
)

F
IS

C
A

L
Y

E
A

R
2
0
1
9

T
o
ta

l
B

u
d

g
et

to
A

ct
u

al
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o
n

A
B

C

(E
IB

)

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

T
A

X
G

R
O

S
S

R
E

C
E

IP
T

T
A

X
1.

22
5

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

T
A

X
G

R
O

S
S

R
E

C
E

IP
T

T
A

X
.7

5
11

8
IN

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

G
R

T
.2

5
(J

A
N

20
11

)
G

R
T

-H
O

L
D

H
A

R
M

L
E

S
S

(J
U

L
Y

2
0
1
5

L
IC

E
N

S
E

&
F

E
E

S
IN

T
E

R
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
L

O
C

A
L

-F
IN

E
S

L
O

C
A

L
-M

IS
C

T
O

T
A

L

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0
1
9

Y
T

D
-

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

FY
20

19
B

U
D

G
E

T
1
,4

8
5
,0

0
0

3
,5

5
0

,0
0

0
7
5
0
,0

0
0

2
,3

3
2
,5

0
0

3
7
2
,0

0
0

1
,0

6
0
,0

0
0

FY
20

18
B

U
D

G
E

T
1
,2

9
1
,0

0
0

3
,5

5
0
,0

0
0

7
7
5
,0

0
0

2
,4

4
0
,0

0
0

3
6
0
,0

0
0

7
2
5
,0

0
0

(1
1
0
,4

0
0
)

6
1
,0

0
0

8
3
,7

1
6

7
7
,0

0
0

1
,7

3
7
,2

3
5

10
,9

89
,5

51

6
1
8
,7

5
0

1
9
1
,8

7
6

1
0
0
,1

7
4

1
,4

7
9

,1
6

7
1

,4
8

9
,3

5
5

1
,5

0
3
,1

1
8

3
1
2
,5

0
0

27
5,

73
1

2
9
3
,2

7
7

9
7

1
,8

7
5

9
7
8
,5

4
0

9
8
7
,2

5
9

1
5
5
,0

0
0

1
5
6
,1

3
9

1
6
5
,5

3
0

4
4

1
,6

6
7

4
4

3
,0

3
9

4
6
3
,4

0
5

8
3
,5

0
0

7
7

,1
4

4
6
6
,5

0
0

1
,6

4
8
,8

0
0

1
1
,4

2
5

,4
4

4

0
3
4
,7

9
2

32
,1

43
27

,7
08

6
8
7
,0

0
0

4
,7

6
0
,6

0
2

G
(E

IB
)

FY
20

19
%

R
E

V
7% 42

%
39

%
42

%
44

%
44

%

I
5°

I
39

%
33

%
41

%
37

%

4
0

,2
3

3
31

,5
10

25
,8

23
7

1
4

,2
1

5
4
,3

4
6
,4

6
0

1
2
,7

5
4

29
,8

30
22

,2
66

68
0,

46
1

4
,2

5
8
,0

7
4

FY
20

18
B

U
D

G
E

T
3
0
7
,9

5
9

FY
20

19
B

U
D

G
E

T
2
9
4
,6

4
8

7
3
,0

3
8

6
0
,7

3
6

2
6
1
,4

1
2

D
E

F
H

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

2
0
1
9

Y
T

D
-

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

A
V

A
IL

.
B

A
L

.
1
1
5
,2

8
2

1
1
6
,2

5
7

2
9
,5

6
5

17
.9

19

JU
D

IC
IA

L
G

O
V

E
R

N
IN

G
B

O
D

Y
M

A
Y

O
R

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

C
L

E
R

K
C

IT
Y

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
IH

R
F

IN
A

N
C

E
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
D

E
V

.
P

O
L

IC
E

C
O

D
E

E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
A

N
IM

A
L

S
H

E
L

T
E

R
F

IR
E

P
U

B
L

IC
W

O
R

K
S

IA
IR

P
O

R
T

P
A

R
K

S
A

IR
P

O
R

T
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
M

U
S

E
U

M

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

S
A

L
A

R
Y

C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
Y

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
T

O
T

A
L

3
9
7
,9

6
9

2
7
2
,8

5
8

2
3
1
,9

4
4

2
7
8
,9

6
0

4
5
2
,3

9
3

5
3
3
,8

4
5

3
,8

5
4
,7

4
4

1
3
6
,1

1
3

1
3
5
,4

9
0

1
,2

5
7
,3

6
5

4
7
4
,0

0
4

2
8
6
,2

2
2

1
2
2
,7

7
0

3
0
,4

3
3

2
5
,3

0
7

1
0
8
,9

2
2 0

9
2
,7

0
8

9
5
,7

1
0

10
2,

19
1

1
9
4
,6

7
6

2
2
0
,2

9
4

1
,6

6
9
,4

5
0

6
2
,6

3
9

5
6
,4

5
4

56
5,

61
1

1
8
7
,8

4
7

1
2
1
.1

2
9

2
2

2
,4

9
9

2
2

9
,7

0
4

2
4

5
,2

5
9

4
6

7
,2

2
3

5
2
8
,7

0
6

4
,0

0
6

,6
8

0
1
5
0
,3

3
4

1
3
5
,4

9
0

1
,3

5
7
,4

6
7

4
5
0

,8
3

2
2
9
0
,7

0
9

1
5
7
,7

7
7

86
,1

01
7
3
,5

8
7

1
0
5
,3

0
6

1
6
9
,9

5
6

1
6
0
,3

2
2

1,
36

7,
23

1
52

,4
63

4
4
,8

6
2

4
5

8
,9

7
6

1
6
8
,3

5
2

-
11

1.
65

1

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

17
8,

39
1

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

4
3

,4
7

3
4

2
,8

1
7

8
7

,3
9

4
1
7
4
,0

1
8 0

1
2
7
,4

8
4

1
7
1
,1

8
3

1
6
5
,8

4
8

3
0
9
,4

2
0

3
9
0
,2

0
5

2
,4

5
3

,1
3

8
1
0
8
,7

7
9

9
1

,6
1

5
8
5
9
,8

1
9

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

2
9

0
,8

3
4

2
1
3
,8

1
9

9
5
,0

1
5

58
,5

21
79

,4
11

1
5
7
,8

0
3

13
8,

50
1

1
,5

5
3
,5

4
2

4
1

,5
5

5
4
3
,8

7
5

4
9

7
,6

4
8

1
5
9
,9

9
8

7
6
.8

9
0

B
D

G
T

39
%

40
%

30
%

33
%

0% 43
%

25
%

32
%

34
%

26
%

39
%

28
%

32
%

37
%

35
%

26
%

0% 35
%

32
%

24
%

0% 42
%

33
%

0
0

0
0

0
2
0
5
,2

1
7

2
0

0
,0

4
6

8
3
,3

5
3

7
8

,3
8

8
7
0
,8

1
4

1
2
9
,2

3
2

1
5
0
,8

4
5

1
4

8
,1

1
6

6
1
,7

1
5

52
,8

56
4

7
,0

3
9

1
0
1
,0

7
7

2
,3

5
8
,2

4
8

3
,1

6
1
,4

1
0

1
,3

1
7

,2
5

4
7
4
7
,8

3
3

7
7
2
,5

9
2

2
,3

8
8
,8

1
8

0
0

0
0

0
7
1
9
,6

6
7

7
3

9
,6

6
7

3
0
8
,1

9
5

2
9
9
,7

9
5

3
0
8
,1

2
5

4
3

1
,5

4
2

1
2
,0

5
3
,8

4
3

1
3
,0

2
3

,9
7

6
5
,4

2
6
,6

5
7

4
,2

5
0
,7

3
8

4
,3

5
2
,4

6
4

8
,6

7
1

,5
1

2



E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
F

U
N

D
S

-R
E

V
E

N
U

E
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

T
H

R
U

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

30
,

20
18

42
%

Y
E

A
R

L
A

P
S

E
D

(5
of

12
m

o
n
th

s)
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

20
19

T
o

ta
l

B
u

d
g

et
to

A
ct

u
al

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

A
B

C
0

E
G

(E
IB

)
F

Y
2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

2
0

1
9

F
Y

2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0
1
9

%
B

U
D

G
E

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
(6

10
)

2
,8

6
6

,1
0

0
2

,9
6

6
,1

0
0

1,
23

5,
87

5
1,

17
7,

67
0

1,
28

3,
43

9
43

%
N

A
T

U
R

A
L

G
A

S
(6

20
)

5
,2

3
6

,0
0

0
5

,0
3
6
,0

0
0

2
,0

9
8
,3

3
3

87
9,

30
5

96
6,

15
1

19
%

S
O

L
ID

W
A

S
T

E
(6

30
)

3
,4

1
9

,4
0

0
3

,4
1
9
,4

0
0

1
,4

2
4
,7

5
0

1,
42

6,
76

6
1,

41
5,

88
5

41
%

W
A

T
E

R
(6

40
)

4
,8

0
0

,1
5

0
5

,1
3
8
,9

5
0

2
,1

4
1

,2
2

9
2

,1
2

3
,0

5
4

2,
24

7,
52

1
44

%
T

o
ta

l
o
f

E
n
te

rp
ri

se
F

u
n
d
s

1
6

,3
2

1
,6

5
0

1
6

,5
6
0
,4

5
0

5
,5

2
0
,1

5
0

5
,6

0
6
,7

9
5

5
,9

1
2
,9

9
6

36
%

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
F

U
N

D
S

-E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

T
H

R
U

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

30
,

20
18

42
%

Y
E

A
R

L
A

P
S

E
D

(5
o
f

12
m

o
n

th
s)

F
IS

C
A

L
Y

E
A

R
20

19

T
o

ta
l

B
u

d
g

et
to

A
ct

u
al

C
o
m

p
ar

is
o
n

A
B

C
0

E
F

H
(E

IB
)

F
Y

2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0

1
9

F
Y

2
0

1
9

F
Y

2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

2
0

1
9

%
B

U
D

G
E

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
A

V
A

IL
.

B
A

L
.

B
U

D
G

E
T

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

(6
10

)
3

,2
9

7
,7

7
8

3
,8

5
2
,9

5
8

1,
60

5,
39

9
1,

23
7,

47
0

1,
12

3,
18

7
2,

72
9,

77
1

29
%

N
A

T
U

R
A

L
G

A
S

(6
20

)
5

,9
3

8
,9

0
8

6
,9

7
2

,2
7

3
2
,9

0
5
,1

1
4

1,
33

5,
67

5
1
,0

8
8
,5

1
4

5
,8

8
3
,7

5
9

16
%

S
O

L
ID

W
A

S
T

E
(6

30
)

3,
73

3,
78

7
3

,7
2
9

,5
9

7
1,

55
3,

99
9

1,
38

7,
60

0
1
,1

3
4
,1

2
7

3
,6

1
6
,1

4
5

30
%

W
A

T
E

R
(6

40
)

5
,6

8
1

,8
2

0
4

,7
0

7
,6

6
3

1,
96

1,
52

6
2
,1

1
5
,1

0
6

1,
57

3,
40

8
2
,6

1
9
,0

6
2

33
%

T
o
ta

l
o

f
E

n
te

rp
ri

se
F

u
n
d
s

1
8

,6
5

2
,2

9
3

1
9
,2

6
2

,4
9

1
8

,0
2

6
,0

3
8

6,
07

5,
85

1
4

,9
1

9
,2

3
5

1
4
,8

4
8
,7

3
7

26
%



R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
-T

A
X

E
S

(C
ig

)
W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S
C

E
N

T
E

R
O

P
E

N
SW

IM
Y

A
FL

Y
A

B
L

S
U

M
M

E
R

FU
N

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

-O
T

H
E

R

G
E

N
FU

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

T
O

T
A

L

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
-R

E
V

E
N

U
E

C
O

M
P

A
R

IS
O

N
T

H
R

U
N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
30

,
20

18
-

42
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

L
A

P
S

E
D

5
O

F
12

M
O

N
T

H
S

F
IS

C
A

L
Y

E
A

R
20

19

A

FY
20

18
B

U
D

G
E

T

G
(E

IB
)

%
R

E
V

0% 37
%

21
%

(
0
I

V
1

0

28
%

11
%

19
%

42
%

35
%

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
-

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

C
O

M
P

A
R

IS
O

N
T

H
R

U
N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
30

,
20

18
-

42
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

L
A

P
S

E
D

5
O

F
12

M
O

N
T

H
S

F
IS

C
A

L
Y

E
A

R
20

19

B
C

D
E

F
Y

20
19

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

20
18

F
Y

2
0
1
9

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

0
0

11
5,

00
0

11
5,

00
0

47
,9

17
42

,3
17

47
,2

99
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
8,

33
3

4,
25

1
4,

31
1

0
0

0
0

0
20

,0
00

16
,5

00
6,

87
5

4,
65

0
2,

10
3

20
,0

00
26

,0
00

10
,8

33
2,

84
0

7,
22

4
10

8,
96

4
85

,0
00

35
,4

17
16

,5
49

5,
89

8
40

0,
00

0
40

0,
00

0
16

6,
66

7
16

6,
60

0
13

3,
28

0
68

3,
96

4
68

3,
96

4
27

6,
04

2
23

7,
20

6
20

0,
11

4

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

E
X

P.
Y

A
FL

Y
A

B
L

O
T

H
E

R
O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
E

X
P

.
C

A
PI

T
A

L
O

U
T

L
A

Y
T

O
T

A
L

A
B

C
0

E
F

H

F
Y

20
18

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

20
18

F
Y

2
0
1
9

F
Y

20
19

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

A
V

A
IL

.
B

A
L

.
59

4,
08

9
63

3,
16

6
26

3,
81

9
20

1,
67

0
20

5,
54

7
42

7,
61

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
4,

05
0

8,
50

0
3,

54
2

0
1,

12
8

7,
37

2
13

8,
56

2
95

,3
50

39
,7

29
36

,5
91

22
,6

92
72

,6
58

8,
00

0
9,

50
0

3,
95

8
4,

02
4

3,
32

1
6,

17
9

74
4,

70
1

74
6,

51
6

31
1,

04
8

24
2,

28
4

23
2,

68
8

51
3,

82
8

(E
IB

)
%

B
D

G
T

32
%

n
o
,

U
1

0

13
%

24
%

35
%

31
%



Regular Session
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 12/06/2018 DEPT: POLICE MEETING DATES: 12/19/2018

DISCUSSION ITEM/TOPIC: Out of State travel to Tulsa, Oklahoma

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval of travel request

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: Less Lethal Impact Projectiles Instructors Course will be held in Tulsa,
Oklahoma on March 24-30, 2019. Our Sergeant and a Police Officer will be attending this training.

Registration cost for this training is $768.00 each person attending. Per Diem expenses will cost $805.00
each person attending. Total cost of $1,573.00 each person.

Less Lethal Impact Projectiles Instructor Course is high risk training, and will train two (2) of officers to
become instructors for the department. They will be trained in the. proper utilization and deployment of
less than lethal equipment and munitions. In their return they will train department personnel assigned to
the departments Emergency Response Team and any other personnel deploying less than lethal
equipment.

This training is critical to ensure the Las Vegas Police Department meets instructor training requirements
mandated by the New Mexico Department of Public Safety on high risk instructor courses, which require
two instructors during instruction of students.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval of request for two (2) Police Personnel tQ attend training in
Tulsa, Oklahoma.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: None

IHIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO LATER THAN

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

44a
TONITA GURULE-GIRON
MAYOR

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE REVIEWED)

DAVID T. BIBB III
CHIEF OF POLICE

TANA VEGA, INTERIM
FINANCE DIRECTOR
(PROCUREMENT)

PURCHASING AGENT
(FOR BID/RFP AWARD)



City of Las Vegas
318 Moreno Street • Las Vegas New Mexico 87701 • Ph4 (o) 425-7504 • Fax (505) 425-6346

Interim Chief Christopher Lopez

MEMORANDUM

TO: Christopher Lopez, Interim Chief of Police

FROM: RECEJ\7DEriN. Padilla
Comiiander SEP 072018

THRU:cL By/4/4
Kenth Jenkins
Deputy Chief

THRU:

_________

Pamela Sandoval
Training/Recruiting Interim Commander

DATE: September 04, 2018

RE: Request for Out of State Training (Advanced Firearms Training)

This memo is a request to send Police Officer David Lautaloand Sgt. Jason Gage to a less than
lethal, flash and sound diversionary device and chemical agent instructor course. The course will be
held in Tulsa Oklahoma March 25. 2019, and is a 5 day 40 hour course. The cost of the course is
$768.00 for registration for non members and $744.00 for members. and is hosted by The National
Tactical Officers Association. Sgt. Gage was a member of the NTOA both he and P0 Lautalo will
need to travel a day before the course starts and return the day after the course ends.

We currently have less than lethal equipment in our armory, which is essential equipment for the
department Emergency Response Team. P0 Lautalo is our departments firearm instructor and Sgt.
Gage is assigned to our departments Emergency Response Team. I am asking for two instructors in
this course because it is high risk training. The New Mexico Department of Public Safety requires
two instructors for high risk instruction, when instructing five or more students. After Sgt. Gage’s
and P0 Lautalo’s certifications in this course they will train personnel assigned to the Emergency
Response Team in the proper use and deployment of the less than lethal equipment we have. They
will train department personnel on the use and deployment of less than lethal equipment such as
bean bag rounds. This training and its entirety is not held in New Mexico. Both Officers will drive
to Tulsa Oklahoma due to having to transport training equipment. Should you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your consideration in this matter.



Review by:

Maria Martinez,iin’ance Se ist

Beatrice/SajAzar, iant Administrator

City of Las Vegas
318 Moreno Street • Las Vegas New Mexko 877o1• Ph (o) 425-7504 • Fax # (505) 425-6346

Interim Chief Christopher Lopez

/?
Date “

Jw cLr

c6

9/1//
Date

e 7/
Date



TO:
Ann Marie Gallegos
Interim City Manager

FR :
Ke eth C. Je kins
Deputy Chief o ice

DATE: November 1, 2018

RE: Out of State Travel-Tulsa, Oklahoma
Less than Lethal Training
March 24-30, 2019
2 LVPD Personnel

Per Diem for 1 LVPD Personnel
@ 805.00 per individual

Registration for 1 LVPD Personnel
Ei $768.00 per individual

TOTAL COST

$1,536.00

$ 3,146.00

All expenses will be paid by Law Protection Fund 215-0000-710-7202, 215-0000-710-7203, and
partial by General Fund 101-4800-710-7203.

XC: File LAS VEGAS
NW MXIC0

City of Las Vegas
‘as New Mexico 87701. Ph# (505) 425.7504• Fax # (505) 425-6346

MEMORANDUM

Estimated Travel Cost

$1,610.00



9/
7/

20
18

N
T

O
A

T
ra

in
in

g
R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

S
ys

te
m

H
/\

Ir
r:

c
u
’

1.
S

,
F

S
/

C
A

T
N

S
F R

U
C

T
C

R
T

jr
-&

9
Lr

/
F

‘9

C
O

U
R

SE
if:

2
0
1
9
0
5
1
0

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

:
T

U
L

SA
,

O
K

ST
A

R
T

D
A

TE
:

3
/2

5
/2

0
1
9

N
O

N
-M

E
M

B
E

R
C

O
ST

:
$
7
9
9
.0

0
T

E
A

M
M

E
M

B
E

R
C

O
ST

:
$
7
6
9
.0

0
IN

D
R

/D
U

A
L

M
E

M
B

E
R

C
O

ST
:

$
7
4
4
.0

0

o
u

C
os

t:
$
7
9
9
O

O
vm

iw
M

e
b

D
h

th
e
:
d

o
w

tc
re

c
e
v
e

m
b
e

d
s
c
t
i

T
H

E
N

T
O

A
R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

T
H

E
R

IG
H

T
T

O
C

A
N

C
E

L
A

N
Y

C
O

U
R

SE
U

P
T

O
30

D
A

Y
S

PR
IO

R
T

O
T

H
E

ST
A

R
T

.
PL

E
A

SE
D

O
N

O
T

M
A

K
E

A
N

Y
N

O
N

-R
E

FU
N

D
A

B
L

E
1J

A
V

E
L

A
FR

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

S
B

E
FO

R
E

T
H

IS
T

IM
E

.

M
E

M
B

E
R

ID
D

O
N

T
K

N
O

W
Y

O
U

R
M

E
M

B
E

R
ID

?

P
L

E
A

S
E

E
N

T
E

R
Y

O
U

R
IN

D
IV

ID
U

A
L

O
R

T
E

A
M

M
E

M
B

E
R

ID
(O

N
LY

T
H

E
N

U
M

E
R

IC
P

O
R

T
IO

N
).

T
H

IS
IS

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
IN

O
R

D
E

R
T

O
R

E
C

E
IV

E
A

M
E

M
B

E
R

D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
.

ST
U

D
E

N
T

FI
R

ST
N

A
M

E

R
A

N
K

H
O

M
E

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

SW
A

T

M
I

V

ST
U

D
E

N
T

L
A

ST
N

A
M

E

C
IT

Y
S

T
A

T
E

A
la

ba
m

a
V

Z
IP

H
O

M
E

PH
O

N
E

C
E

L
L

PH
O

N
E

H
O

M
E

E
M

A
IL

W
O

R
K

E
M

A
IL

A
SS

IG
N

M
E

N
T

(S
E

L
E

C
T

O
N

E
)

O
T

H
E

R
A

SS
IG

N
M

E
N

T

ht
tp

:l
/t

ra
in

in
g.

nt
oa

.o
rg

/C
ou

rs
eR

eg
is

tr
at

io
n/

de
fa

ul
ta

sp
?n

um
=

20
1

90
51

0
1/

3



TRAINING ANNOUNCEMENT
Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents Instructor Certification

March 25-29, 2019

Tulsa, 01<

Co-Hosted By Tulsa Pohce Department

Course Overview
THIS INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION EXPIRES FOUR YEARS AFTER COMPLETION OF THE CERTIFICATION COURSE.

The Less Lethal Impact Projectiles Instructor Course is a train the trainer course designed to familiarize attendees with less lethal
weapons, impact munitions and deployment tactics. Topics to be covered include instructor development techniques, less lethal
force philosophy, case law, policy issues, technology overview, deployment tactics, product demonstrations, and less lethal
practical scenarios.

The Flash Sound Diversionary Device Instructor Course is a train the trainer course designed to familiarize attendees with flash
sound diversionary devices (FSDD). Topics to be covered include history of diversionary devices, definitions, and nomenclature,
legal aspects of diversionary devices, policy issues, preparation and deployment of diversionary devices, and practical application.
The Chemical Agent Instructor Course is a train the trainer course designed to familiarize attendees with chemical munitions.
Topics to be covered include history, products and characteristics, delivery systems, hazards, decontamination, gas masks, and
general tactics as they relate to the use of chemical agents.

Register online at http://www.ntoa.org

Registration . NTOA Team Members: (Includes 1 yr digitalNTOA Individual Members: $744 . I $769Fee: membership)

Non-Member (Includes 1 year Individual Membership: $799

REGISTRATION DEADLINE: 2/25/2019 course # 20190510

Prerequisites: Sworn full time law enforcement personnel

Training Location: Tulsa Police Academy 6066 E 66th Street North Tulsa, OK 74117

. Law Enforcement I. 0.
i Student Equipment:
F See attached list

Start Time: 0800

Co-host Point of Contact: Cpl. Jason Muse jmuse@cityoftulsa.org

Nearest Airport: Tulsa International Airport

Use the following ID#, XZ17D23 to get the discounted rate. You can log ontoSuggested Car Rental Agency
www.enterprise.com and use the pin code of NAT or call 1-800-RENT-A-CAR

Hotel Suggestions: Double Tree by Hilton 616 W. Seventh Street Tulsa, OK, 74127 918-587-8000

Cancellation Policy:

Student will receive full refund of any paid fee if cancelled in writing 30+ days prior to course start.
NTOA will charge $100 cancellation fee if written notice is received less than 30 days prior to course start.
No written notice, no refund. Qualified substitutions are always acceptable.
NTOA reserves the right to cancel a course 30 days prior to the start date. We will notify you immediately if this occurs.

Completed registrations may be emailed to training@ntoa.org
Checks made payable to NTOA may be mailed to 7150 Campus Drive Suite 215, Colorado Springs, CO 80920

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 10

7150 Campus Drive, Suite 215 Coiorado Springs, CO 80920 .8002799127



LESS LETHAL, FLASH SOUND DIVERSIONARY DEVICE, CHEMICAL AGENTS

INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION

COURSE OVERVIEW AND INSTRUCTIONAL GOALS

COURSE LENGTH: 40 Hours 5 Days
29 Hours Classroom
11 Hours Practical

COURSE OVERVIEW

THIS INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION EXPIRES FOUR YEARS AFTER COMPLETION OF THE CERTIFICATION COURSE.

The Less Lethal Impact Projectiles Instructor Course is a train the trainer course designed to familiarize attendees

with less lethal weapons, impact munitions and deployment tactics. Topics to be covered include instructor

development techniques, less lethal force philosophy, case law, policy issues, technology overview, deployment

tactics, product demonstrations, and less lethal practical scenarios.

The Flash Sound Diversionary Device Instructor Course is a train the trainer course designed to familiarize attendees

with flash sound diversionary devices (FSDD). Topics to be covered include history of diversionary devices,

definitions, and nomenclature, legal aspects of diversionary devices, policy issues, preparation and deployment of

diversionary devices, and practical application.

The Chemical Agent Instructor Course is a train the trainer course designed to familiarize attendees with chemical

munitions. Topics to be covered include history, products and characteristics, delivery systems, hazards,

decontamination, gas masks, and general tactics as they relate to the use of chemical agents.

NOTICE

The information necessary to present instruction regarding less lethal munitions, flash sound diversionary devices,

and chemical agents is contained within the curricula of this course. The ability to teach others and correctly convey

the course content is an individual skill. Completing this NTOA course of instruction is not an endorsement of any

individuals teaching skill or experience. Instructors should ensure that they have met the necessary requirements

to instruct the subject matter as required by local or state mandates. Further, instructors should be.approved to

teach the materials by their agency head or designee.

INSTRUCTIONAL GOALS

Upon completion of this course the attendee will be familiar with:

1. Instructor Development Techniques

2. Less Lethal Force Philosophy
3. Case Laws, Legal Studies Training Issues
4. Less Lethal Policy

5. Use of Force Reports

6. Less Lethal Force Technology
7. Less Lethal Deployment Tactics

8. Conducting Less Lethal Practical Scenarios
9. History of Flash Sound Diversionary Devices (FSDD’s)

10. Specific Definitions
11. Nomenclature

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 2

7150 Campus Drive, Suite 215 - Colorado Springs, CO 80920 -000 279 9127



12. Legal Aspects of Diversionary Devices

13. Tactics involving Flash Sound Diversionary Devices

14. Deployment Concerns

15. FSDD Policy Issues
16. Preparation and Deployment of Diversionary Devices

17. Chemical Munitions Products and Characteristics

18. Chemical Munitions Delivery Systems

19. Potential Hazards of Chemical Munitions

20, Decontamination Issues

21. Gas Masks
22. General Tactics as they Relate to the Use of Chemical Agents

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONAL GOALS

1. The less lethal force philosophy as outlined in this course of instruction

2. At least three significant less lethal force options available to law enforcement today

3. Two basic classifications of kinetic energy impact munitions

4. The three most significant factors that must be considered when evaluating kinetic energy impact

projectiles

5. At least three kinetic energy impact projectile delivery systems

6. The characteristics of the most commonly used less lethal projectiles

7. Less lethal kinetic energy impact projectiles and their placement on a “use of force” model. Students will

also be able to explain some circumstances that may cause an officer to use such devices differently than

the “use of force” model suggests.

8. Several situations in which the use of less lethal force projectiles would be appropriate

9. Actions that should be taken in cases where a person is struck with a kinetic energy impact projectile

10. The three most significant issues that must be addressed with end users in extended range kinetic energy

impact programs
11. Case laws as they relate to less lethal deployment

12. Sample less lethal policies and the philosophy behind less lethal policies

13. Use of force reports as they relate to the deployment of kinetic energy impact projectiles

14. Various tactics as they relate to the deployment of kinetic energy impact projectiles as well as arrest

teams, entry teams, containment teams, and civil disorder

15. The actual deployment of various kinetic energy impact projectiles. Students will observe them being

deployed and will discuss accuracy issues and proper application.

16. The history of the flash sound diversionary device (FSDD)

17. What a diversionary device is
18. Specific definitions as they relate to the FSDD

19. Specific nomenclature as it relates to a FSDD

20. The difference between a deceptive and physiological distraction and the characteristics of each

21. The effects of the FSDD on the human body

22. Three types of explosions

23. The difference between a detonating explosive and a deflagrating explosive

24. The components of a FSDD
25. The components of the M2O1A1 fuze
26. The combustion characteristics of a FSDD

27. Deployment concerns involved with using a FSDD

28. The “critical number” as it relates to the sound produced by a FSDD

29. Rendering safe procedures for a FSDD

30. Concerns to be addressed when developing policy for the use of a FSDD

31. Case law as it relates to the deployment of a FSDD

32. The first documented case in which a lacrimator was used by civilian law enforcement

33. The two basic concepts of chemical munitions deployment

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 3

7150 Campus Drive, Suite 215 Colorado Springs, CO 80920.800 279 9127



34. The two most common chemical agents used by civilian law enforcement today
35. The most likely effects of law enforcement chemical agents on human beings
36. The differences between primary and secondary contamination
37. The most commonly used chemical munitions and the deployment concepts most applicable to those

particular munitions
38. Multiple concepts of chemical munitions deployment
39. The steps in the chemical agent decontamination process
40. The process of testing a chemical agent mask for proper fit and operation

In addition, the student will:

1. Take part in practical scenarios to become familiar with tactics and proper decision-making involving the
use of less lethal impact munitions, diversionary devices, and chemical agents.

2. Take part in familiarization drills utilizing several less lethal projectile delivery systems, including the 12-
gauge shotgun, 37 mm launcher, and 40 mm launcher.

3. Demonstrate in a practical examination, the ability to safely and effectively deploy a diversionary device.
Students will deploy at least one diversionary device.

4. Demonstrate the ability to safely dismantle and clean a FSDD (if applicable to the brand being deployed).
5. Complete a written test on Less Lethal Projectiles, FSDD’s, and Chemical Agents which requires 80% to

pass.

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 4

7150 Campus Drive, Suite 21S Colorado Springs, CO 80920800 279 9127



LESS LETHAL, FLASH SOUND DIVERSIONARY DEVICE, CHEMICAL AGENTS —

INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION

DAY TO DAY / HOUR TO HOUR AGENDA

Instruction:

Introduction of Instructor and Students / Registration

Pie-Test for Less Lethal Projectiles, FSDD’s, and Chemical Agents

Explanation of Course Objectives

Instructor Development Techniques / Safety Lead - In

Less Lethal Force Philosophy

Lunch

Less Lethal Force Technology

Instruction:

Less Lethal Force Technology

Case Laws, Legal Concepts, Use of Force Reports

Less Lethal Policy

Lunch

Injury Photos / Impact Projectile Death Cases

Tactical Decision Making

DAY THREE

Hours:

0800-0900

0900-1100

1100-1200

1200-1400

1400-1700

Instruction:

Less Lethal Final Exam

Less Lethal Videos / Incident Debriefs

Lunch

(AT RANGE) Product Demo and Familiarization Drills

(AT RANGE) Practical Scenarios / Scenario Demonstration

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 5

DAY ONE

Hours:

0800-0830

0830-0900

0900-0930

0930-1030

1030-1200

1200-1300

1300-1700

DAY TWO

Hours:

0800-0900

0900-1100

1100-1200

1200-1300

1300-1500

1500-1700

7150 Campus Drive, Suite 215 Colorado Springs, CO 80920-800 279 9127



Instruction:

Chemical Munitions Overview / Decontamination / Policy Considerations

Chemical Agents Delivery Systems

Lunch

Gas Masks

Chemical Munitions Incident Debriefs

(AT RANGE) Chemical Agent Product Demonstration / Practical Demonstration and
Deployment of 12 Gauge / 37 mm / 40 mm Chemical Agent Projectiles / Chemical Agents
Exposure / Gas Mask Clearance Demonstration / Decontamination

DAY FIVE

Instruction:

Diversionary Devices History, Definitions, Nomenclature, Types

Characteristics of Diversionary Devices, Tactics

Diversionary Device Legal Aspects, Policy Considerations, Deployment Concerns

Lunch

Chemical Agents / FSDD Review and Exam

(AT RANGE) Practical Deployment of Diversionary Devices / Demonstration of Cleaning and
Preparation of Diversionary Devices

Course Review! Course Closeout at Range

DAY FOUR

Hours:

0800-1030

10304200

1200-1300

1330-1330

1330-1400

1400-1700

Hours:

0800-1000

1000-1100

1100-1200

1200-1300

1300-1400

1400-1630

1630-1700

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 6

7150 Campus Drive, Suite 216 Colorado Springs, CO 80920- 800 279 9127



LESS LETHAL, FLASH SOUND DIVERSIONARY DEVICE, CHEMICAL AGENTS
INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION

INDIVIDUAL

INDIVIDUAL

STUDENT EQUIPMENT LIST

Law Enforcement I. D.
Eye protection

Ear protection

Gas mask

Nomex Gloves

Clothing such as BDU’s that are suitable for physical activity. Students will be outside at times and
will take part in range activities.
A change of clothes to wear after chemical contamination
Agency Approved Chemical Agent Mask (APR)

Students who have not received an approved level 1, 2, or 3 chemical agent exposure to CS or DC will
be required to have an exposure for completions of this course. However, a waiver is available to
students who have already been exposed. Students who complete the waiver will be exempt from the
level 1,2, and 3 exposure requirements. It is recognized that many students participating in this course
have already been exposed to CS or OC.

All students will be exposed to pyrotechnic CS for fit and evaluation o their masks.

Less Lethal, Flash Sound Diversionary Device, Chemical Agents — Instructor Certification Revised April 2016 8

7150 Campus Odve, Suite 215 Colorado Springs, CO 80920.000 279-9127



1q/l/2Ol8 las vegas nm to tulsa oklahoma - Google Maps

GogIe Maps las vegas nm to tulsa oklahoma Drive 597 miles, 8 h 37 mm

Go g I e :-A’t
Lto5ock

-

Daliso
Fort Worthe

Map data ©201 8 Google 50 ml’

via 1-40 E

Fastest route, the usual traffic
This route has toHs.

8 h 37 mm

597 miles

Your clesiNnatlon 5 in C ditierent time zone

viaUS-412E 9 h 3 mm

582 miles

6:50 PM—t28 PM (Tuesday)

New Mexico Pail Runner Express (N..

Greyhound

17h 38 mm

Grand
arcase-000alalto

Natceal
Ricrsrert

anyofl
ii OnCe

z a

Tcnto National
Forest

lob IN Ito I

Cm KANSAS
mpF /ob a

RN d WhI

Na
NI IFs St

—

- 0 ;;-ccne,Nator&Forest Z -

,r:;a --

- -
-

-- -

ma V

9h3in
—

— ._._...._.oS2,s’es - V

Ca so — —•-

- Notional Forest
- SIlar’—-• Talso

OF ObLAHO 1A

S IF

-

V

--

GNG1MEXICC

Silo National V
Forest - . -

-- - ROido

https://www.google.com/maps/djr/las+vegas+nm/tulsa+oklahoma/©359365926j 03.561 661 7,7zldatam!3m1 !4b1 4m 1 3l4m1 2’ 1 m5! 1 mill s0x871 9140... 1/1



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE 12110/2018 DEPT: Finance MEETING DATE: 12I19!2018

ITEM/TOPIC: Review and approve Resolution 18-49 Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out
or Unusable Tangible Personal Property

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 18-49
Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out or Unusable Tangible Personal Property.

BACKGROUNDIRATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas is requesting review and
approval of Resolution 18-49 Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out or Unusable Tangible
Personal Property.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE

APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURULE-GIRO
MAYOR

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

TANA VEGA, INTIM
FINANCE DIRECTOR
(PROCUREMENT)

PURCHASING AGENT
(FOR BID/RFP AWARD)

ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CITY OF LAS VEGAS

RESOLUTION NO. 18-49
DISPOSITION OF OBSOLETE, WORN-OUT OR UNUSABLE TANGIBLE

PERSONAL PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the Governing Body in and for the Municipality of the City of Las Vegas
have adopted NMSA 1978, Section 13-6-1, the State of New Mexico’s Disposition of
obsolete, worn-out or unusable tangible personal property, and applicable federal law and
regulations, and

WHEREAS, said policy was developed for use by the governing bodies of each state
agency, local public body, school district and state educational institution, and

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this governing body that the State of New
Mexico’s, Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out or Unusable Tangible Personal Property
meets the requirements of the City of Las Vegas, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the
Municipality of the City of Las Vegas, State of New Mexico hereby adopts the State of
New Mexico’s Disposition of Obsolete, Worn-Out or Unusable Tangible Personal
Property and applicable federal law and regulations.

RESOLVED: In session this 19th day of December, 2018.

MUNICIPAL GOVERNING BODY
LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO

TONITA GURULE-GIRON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CASANDRA FRESQUEZ, CITY CLERK (SEAL)

APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

ESTHER GARDUNO-MONTOYA, CITY ATTORNEY



13-6-1. Disposition of obsolete, worn-out or unusable tangible personal property.

A. The governing authority of each state agency, local public body, school district and state
educational institution may dispose of any item of tangible personal property belonging to that
authority and delete the item from its public inventory upon a specific finding by the authority that
the item of property is:

(1) of a current resale value of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or less; and

(2) worn out, unusable or obsolete to the extent that the item is no longer economical or
safe for continued use by the body.

B. The governing authority shall, as a prerequisite to the disposition of any items of tangible
personal property:

(1) designate a committee of at least three officials of the governing authority to approve
and oversee the disposition: and

(2) give notification at least thirty days prior to its action making the deletion by sending a
copy of its official finding and the proposed disposition of the property to the state auditor and the
appropriate approval authority designated in Section 13-6-2 NMSA 1978. duly sworn and
subscribed under oath by each member of the authority approving the action.

C. A copy of the official finding and proposed disposition of the property sought to be
disposed of shall be made a permanent part of the official minutes of the governing authority and
maintained as a public record subject to the Inspection of Public Records Act [Chapter 14, Article 2
NMSA 1978],

D. The governing authority shall dispose of the tangible personal property by negotiated sale
to any governmental unit of an Indian nation, tribe or pueblo in New Mexico or by negotiated sale
or donation to other state agencies. local public bodies, school districts, state educational
institutions or municipalities or through the central purchasing office of the governing authority b)
means of competitive sealed bid or public auction or. if a state agency, through the surplus property
bureau of the transportation services division of the general services department.

E. A state agency shall give the surplus property bureau of the transportation services division
of the general services department the right of first refusal when disposing of obsolete, worn-out or
unusable tangible personal property of the state agency.

F. If the governing authority is unable to dispose of the tangible personal property pursuant to

Subsection D or E of this section, the governing authority may sell or, if the property has no value.
donate the property to any organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986.

G. If the governing authority is unable to dispose of the tangible personal property pursuant to
Subsection D, E or F of this section. it may order that the property be destroyed or otherwise
permanently disposed of in accordance with applicable laws.

H. If the governing authority determines that the tangible personal property is hazardous or
contains hazardous materials and may not be used safely under any circumstances, the property
shall be destroyed and disposed of pursuant to Subsection 0 of this section.

I. No tangible personal property shall be donated to an employee or relative of an employee of
a state agency. local public body. school district or state educational institution; provided that

lof2 2 142018.3:20 PM



nothing in this subsection precludes an employee from participating and bidding for public property
at a public auction.

J. This section shall not apply to any property acquired by a museum through abandonment
procedures pursuant to the Abandoned Cultural Properties Act [18-10-i to 18-10-5 NMSA 1978].

K. Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection A of this section, the department of
transportation may sell through public auction or dispose of surplus tangible personal property used
to manage. maintain or build roads that exceeds five thousand dollars ($5,000) in value. Proceeds
from sales shall be credited to the state road fund. The department of transportation shall notify the
department of finance and administration regarding the disposition of all property.

L. If the secretary of public safety finds that the K-9 dog presents no threat to public safety, the
K-9 dog shall be released from public ownership as provided in this subsection. The K-9 dog shall
first be offered to its trainer or handler free of charge. If the trainer or handler does not want to
accept ownership of the K-9 dog. then the K-9 dog shall be offered to an organization described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 free of charge. If both of the above fail,
the K-9 dog shall only be sold to a qualified individual found capable of providing a good home to
the animal.

History: 1953 Comp., § 6-1-7.1. enacted by Laws 1961. ch. 100. § 1; 1979, ch. 195, § 2; 1984.
ch. 47. § 1: 1987. ch. 15. § 1: 1989. ch. 211, § 6; 1995, ch. 181, § 1: 1998. ch. 16. § 1; 2001, ch.
317. § 1; 2007, ch. 57. § 4; 2012. ch. 10. § 1; 2013, ch, 9. § I.

2ot2 2142018,3:2OPM



Regular or Special
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 12/10/18 DEPT: City Clerk MEETING DATE: 12/19/18

ITEMITOPIC: Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance No. 18-08, Cable Franchise
Agreement.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Conduct a Public Hearing and Approval/Disapproval of
Ordinance 18-08.

BACKGROUNDIRATIONALE: Council approved the publication of Ordinance 18-08 on
11/20/18. The last cable franchise agreement approved by Council was in 1997. Attorney
Danelle Smith has reviewed and approved the proposed cable franchise agreement.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO LATER
THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE CITY COUNCIL
MEETING. 6

SuBMITTER’S IGNTU
RE WEDA APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURULE-GIRON
MAYOR

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS, ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER CITY ATTORNEY (ALL

CONTRACTS, ORDINANCES AND
RESOLUTIONS MUST BE
REVIEWED)

TANA VEGA
INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR
(PROCUREMENT)

Revised 9/18



CITY OF LAS VEGAS

ORDINANCE NO. 18-08

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO COMCAST OF
COLORADO/FLORIDA/MICHIGAN/NEW
MEXICO/PENNSYLVANIA/WASHINGTON, LLC. d/b/a/ COMCAST (“GRANTEE”)
TO OWN OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A CABLE TELEVISION SYSTEM IN THE
CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO, SETTING FORTH CONDITIONS
ACCOMPANYING THE GRANT OF FRANCHISE, AND PROVIDING FOR
REGULATIONS AND USE OF SAID SYSTEM BY SAID CITY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS,
NEW MEXICO, AS FOLLOWS:

COMCAST OF COLORADO/FLORIDA/MICHIGAN/NEW
MEXICO/PENNSYLVANIA/WASHINGTON, LLC

AND
CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO

CABLE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Table of Contents

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

SECTION 2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE 6
2.1 Grant 6
2.2 Use of Right-of-Way 8
2.3 Term of Franchise 8
2.4 Franchise Nonexclusive 8
2.5 Police Powers 9
2.6 Competitive Equity 9
2.7 Familiarity with Franchise 10
2.8 Effect of Acceptance 10

SECTION 3. FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENT AND FINANCIAL CONTROLS II
3.1 Franchise Fee II
3.2 Payments II
3.3 Acceptance of Payment and Recomputation II
3.4 Quarterly Franchise Fee Reports II



3.5 Annual Franchise Fee Reports 11
3.6 Franchise Fees Subject to Audit 11
3.7 Late Payments 12
3.8 Underpayments 12
3.9 Alternative Compensation 12
3.10 Maximum Legal Compensation 12
3.1 1 Additional Commitments Not Franchise Fee Payments 12
3.12 Tax Liability 13
3.13 Financial Records 13
3.14 Payment on Termination 13

SECTION 4. ADMINISTRATION AND REGULATION 13
4.1 Authority 13
4.2 Rates and Charges 13
4.3 Rate Discrimination 14
4.4 Filing of Rates and Charges 14
4.5 Cross Subsidization 14
4.6 Reserved Authority 14
4.7 Franchise Amendment Procedure 15
4.8 Performance Evaluations 15
4.9 Force Majeure 15

SECTIONS. FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 16
5.1 Indemnification 16
5.2 Insurance 16

SECTION 6. CUSTOMER SERVICE 16
6.1 Customer Service Standards 16
6.2 Subscriber Privacy 17
6.3 Subscriber Bills 17

SECTION 7. BOOKS AND RECORDS 17
7.1 Books and Records 17
7.2 Confidentiality 17
7.3 Records Required 18
7.4 Copies of Federal and State Reports 18

SECTION 8. PROGRAMMING 18
8.1 Broad Programming Categories 18
8.2 Deletion or Reduction of Broad Programming Categories 19
8.3 Obscenity 19
8.4 Parental Control Device 19
8.5 Continuity of Service Mandatory 20
8.6 Services for the Disabled 20

SECTION 9. GENERAL RIGHT-OF-WAY USE AND CONSTRUCTION 20
9.1 Permits and General Obligations 20
9.2 Conditions of Street Occupancy 21

ii



9.3 Relocation at request of Third Party 21
9.4 Restoration of Right-of-Way 21
9.5 Safety Requirements 21
9.6 Trimming of Trees and Shrubbery 21
9.7 Aerial and Underground Construction 22
9.8 Undergrounding and Beautification Projects 22

SECTION 10. CABLE SYSTEM, TECHNICAL STANDARDS AND TESTING 22
10.1 Subscriber Network 22
10.2 Standby Power 23
10.3 Emergency Alert Capability 23
10.4 Technical Performance 23
10.5 Cable System Performance Testing 23

SECTION 11. SERVICE AVAILABILITY, INTERCONNECTION AND SERVICE TO SCHOOLS
AND PUBLIC BUILDINGS 24

11.1 Service Availability 24
11.2 Connection of Public Facilities 26

SECTION 12. FRANCHISE VIOLATIONS 26
12.1 Procedure for Remedying Franchise Violations 26
12.2 Revocation 27
12.3 Procedures in the Event of Termination or Revocation 28
12.4 Purchase of Cable System 29
12.5 Receivership and Foreclosure 30
12.6 No Monetary Recourse Against the City 30
12.7 Alternative Remedies 30
12.8 Effect of Abandonment 31
12.9 What Constitutes Abandonment 31

SECTION 13. FRANCHISE RENEWAL AND TRANSFER 31
13.1 Renewal 31
13.2 Transfer of Ownership or Control 31

SECTION 14. SEVERABILITY 32

SECTION 15. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS Error! Bookmark not defined.
15.1 Preferential or Discriminatory Practices Prohibited 32
15.2 Notices 32
15.3 Descriptive Headings 33
15.4 Binding Effect 33
15.5 No Joint Venture 33
15.6 Waiver 33
15.7 Reasonableness of Consent or Approval 33
15.8 Entire Agreement 33

111



COMCAST OF COLORADOIFLORIDAJMICHIGANINEW
MEXICO/PENNSYLVANIAJWASHINGTON, LLC

AND
CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO

CABLE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Franchise, the following terms, phrases, words and their
derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, words
used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in
the singular include the plural. Words not defined shall be given their common and ordinary
meaning. The word ‘shall’ is always mandatory and not merely directory.

1.1 “Activated” means the status of any capacity or part of the Cable System in which any
Cable Service requiring the use of that capacity or part is available without further installation of
system equipment, whether hardware or software.

1.2 “Affiliate,” when used in connection with Grantee, means any Person who owns or
controls, is owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership or control with, Grantee.

1.3 “Applicable Law” means any statute, ordinance, judicial decision, executive order or
regulation having the force and effect of law, that determines the legal standing of a case or
issue.

1.4 “Bad Debt” means amounts lawfully billed to a Subscriber and owed by the Subscriber
for Cable Service and accrued as revenues on the books of Grantee, but not collected after
reasonable efforts have been made by Grantee to collect the charges.

1.5 “Basic Service” is the level of programming service which includes, at a minimum, all
Broadcast Channels, all PEG SD Access Channels required in this Franchise, and any additional
Programming added by the Grantee, and is made available to all Cable Services Subscribers in
the Franchise Area.

1.6 “Broadcast Channel” means local commercial television stations, qualified low power
stations and qualified local noncommercial educational television stations, as referenced under

47 USC § 534 and 535.

1.7 “Broadcast Signal” means a television or radio signal transmitted over the air to a wide
geographic audience, and received by a Cable System by antenna, microwave, satellite dishes or
any other means.

1.8 “Cable Act” means the Title VI of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES



1.9 “Cable Operator” means any Person or groups of Persons, including Grantee, who
provide(s) Cable Service over a Cable System and directly or through one or more affiliates
owns a significant interest in such Cable System or who otherwise control(s) or is (are)
responsible for, through any arrangement, the management and operation of such a Cable
System.

1. 10 “Cable Service” means the one-way transmission to Subscribers of video programming
or other programming service, and Subscriber interaction, if any, which is required for the
selection or use of such video programming or other programming service.

1.11 “Cable System” means any facility, including Grantee’s, consisting of a set of closed
transmissions paths and associated signal generation, reception, and control equipment that is
designed to provide Cable Service which includes video programming and which is provided to
multiple Subscribers within a community, but such term does not include (A) a facility that
serves only to retransmit the television signals of one or more television broadcast stations; (B) a
facility that serves Subscribers without using any Right-of-Way; (C) a facility of a common
carrier which is subject, in whole or in part, to the provisions of Title II of the federal
Communications Act (47 U.S.C. 201 et seq.), except that such facility shall be considered a
Cable System (other than for purposes of Section 62 1(c) (47 U.S.C. 54 1(c)) to the extent such
facility is used in the transmission of video programming directly to Subscribers, unless the
extent of such use is solely to provide interactive on-demand services; (D) an open video system
that complies with federal statutes; or (E) any facilities of any electric utility used solely for
operating its electric utility systems.

1.12 “çjy” is the City of Las Vegas New Mexico, a body politic and corporate under the laws
of the State of New Mexico.

1. 13 “City Council” means the Las Vegas City Council, or its successor, the governing body
of the City of Las Vegas, New Mexico.

1.14 “Channel” means a portion of the electromagnetic frequency spectrum which is used in
the Cable System and which is capable of delivering a television channel (as television channel
is defined by the FCC by regulation).

1.15 “Commercial Subscribers” means any Subscribers other than Residential Subscribers.

1. 16 “Digital Starter Service” means the Tier of optional video programming services, which
is the level of Cable Service received by most Subscribers above Basic Service, and does not
include Premium Services.

1.17 “Downstream” means carrying a transmission from the Headend to remote points on the
Cable System or to Interconnection points on the Cable System.

1.18 “Dwelling Unit” means any building, or portion thereof, that has independent living
facilities, including provisions for cooking, sanitation and sleeping, and that is designed for
residential occupancy. Buildings with more than one set of facilities for cooking shall be

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
2



considered Multiple Dwelling Units unless the additional facilities are clearly accessory.

1.19 “Effective Date” means the date on which all persons necessary to sign this Agreement in
order for it to be binding on both parties have executed this Agreement as indicated on the
signature page(s), unless a specific date is otherwise provided in the “Term” section herein.

1 .20 “FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission.

1.21 “Fiber Optic” means a transmission medium of optical fiber cable, along with all
associated electronics and equipment, capable of carrying Cable Service by means of electric
lightwave impulses.

1.22 “Franchise” means the document in which this definition appears, i.e., the contractual
agreement, executed between the City and Grantee, containing the specific provisions of the
authorization granted, including references, specifications, requirements and other related
matters.

1.23 “Franchise Area” means the area within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City,
including any areas annexed by the City during the term of this Franchise.

1.24 “Franchise Fee” means that fee payable to the City described in subsection 3.1.

1 .25 “Grantee” means Comcast of Colorado/Florida/Michigan/New
Mexico/PennsylvaniafWashington, LLC or its lawful successor, transferee or assignee.

1 .26 “Gross Revenues” means, and shall be construed broadly to include all revenues derived
directly or indirectly by Grantee and/or an Affiliated Entity that is the cable operator of the Cable
System, from the operation of Grantee’s Cable System to provide Cable Services within the City.
Gross revenues include, by way of illustration and not limitation:

• monthly fees for Cable Services, regardless of whether such Cable Services are provided
to residential or commercial customers, including revenues derived from the provision of all
Cable Services (including but not limited to pay or premium Cable Services, digital Cable
Services, pay-per-view, pay-per-event and video-on-demand Cable Services);

• installation, reconnection, downgrade, upgrade or similar charges associated with
changes in subscriber Cable Service levels;

• fees paid to Grantee for channels designated for commercial/Leased Access use and shall
be allocated on a pro rata basis using total Cable Service subscribers within the City;

• converter, remote control, and other Cable Service equipment rentals, leases, or sales;

• Advertising Revenues as defined herein;

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
3



• late fees, convenience fees and administrative fees which shall be allocated on a pro rata
basis using Cable Services revenue as a percentage of total subscriber revenues within the City;

• revenues from program guides;

• Franchise Fees;

• FCC Regulatory Fees; and,

• commissions from home shopping channels and other Cable Service revenue sharing
arrangements which shall be allocated on a pro rata basis using total Cable Service subscribers
within the City.

(A) “Advertising Revenues” shall mean revenues derived from sales of advertising
that are made available to Grantee’s Cable System subscribers within the City and shall be
allocated on a pro rata basis using total Cable Service subscribers reached by the advertising.
Additionally, Grantee agrees that Gross Revenues subject to franchise fees shall include all
commissions, rep fees, Affiliated Entity fees, or rebates paid to National Cable Communications
(“NCC”) and Comcast Spotlight (“Spotlight”) or their successors associated with sales of
advertising on the Cable System within the City allocated according to this paragraph using total
Cable Service subscribers reached by the advertising.

(B) “Gross Revenues” shall not include:

• actual bad debt write-offs, except any portion which is subsequently collected
which shall be allocated on a pro rota basis using Cable Services revenue as a percentage of total
subscriber revenues within the City;

• any taxes and/or fees on services furnished by Grantee imposed by any
municipality, state or other governmental unit, provided that Franchise Fees and the FCC
regulatory fee shall not be regarded as such a tax or fee;

• fees imposed by any municipality, state or other governmental unit on Grantee
including but not limited to Public, Educational and Governmental (PEG) Fees;

• launch fees and marketing co-op fees; and,

• unaffiliated third party advertising sales agency fees which are reflected as a
deduction from revenues.

(C) To the extent revenues are received by Grantee for the provision of a discounted
bundle of services which includes Cable Services and non-Cable Services, Grantee shall
calculate revenues to be included in Gross Revenues using a methodology that allocates revenue
on a pro rata basis when comparing the bundled service price and its components to the sum of
the published rate card, except as required by specific federal, state or local law, it is expressly
understood that equipment may be subject to inclusion in the bundled price at full rate card

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
4



value. This calculation shall be applied to every bundled service package containing Cable
Service from which Grantee derives revenues in the City. The City reserves its right to review
and to challenge Grantee’s calculations.

(D) Grantee reserves the right to change the allocation methodologies set forth in this
Section 1.26 in order to meet the standards required by governing accounting principles as
promulgated and defined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) and/or the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Grantee will explain and document the required changes to the City as part of any audit or
review of franchise fee payments, and any such changes shall be subject to 1.26(E) below.

(E) Resolution of any disputes over the classification of revenue should first be
attempted by agreement of the Parties, but should no resolution be reached, the Parties agree that
reference shall be made to generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as promulgated
and defined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF”) and/or the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Notwithstanding
the forgoing, the City reserves its right to challenge Grantee’s calculation of Gross Revenues,
including the interpretation of GAAP as promulgated and defined by the FASB, EITF and/or the
SEC.

1.27 “Headend” means any facility for signal reception and dissemination on a Cable System,
including cables, antennas, wires, satellite dishes, monitors, switchers, modulators, processors
for Broadcast Signals, equipment for the Interconnection of the Cable System with adjacent
Cable Systems and Interconnection of any networks which are part of the Cable System, and all
other related equipment and facilities.

1.28 “Leased Access Channel” means any Channel or portion of a Channel commercially
available for video programming by Persons other than Grantee, for a fee or charge.

1.29 “Manager” means the City Manager of the City or designee.

1.30 “Person” means any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, association, or
corporation, or any other form of entity or organization.

1.31 “Premium Service” means programming choices (such as movie Channels, pay-per-view
programs, or video on demand) offered to Subscribers on a per-Channel, per-program or per-
event basis.

1.32 “Residential Subscriber” means any Person who receives Cable Service delivered to
Dwelling Units or Multiple Dwelling Units, excluding such Multiple Dwelling Units billed on a
bulk-billing basis.

1.33 “Right-of-Way” means each of the following which have been dedicated to the public or
are hereafter dedicated to the public and maintained under public authority or by others and
located within the City: streets, roadways, highways, avenues, lanes, alleys, bridges, sidewalks,
easements, right-of-way and similar public property and areas.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES

5



1.34 “State” means the State of New Mexico.

1.35 “Subscriber” means any Person who or which elects to subscribe to, for any purpose,
Cable Service provided by Grantee by means of or in connection with the Cable System and
whose premises are physically wired and lawfully Activated to receive Cable Service from
Grantee’s Cable System, and who is in compliance with Grantee’s regular and nondiscriminatory
terms and conditions for receipt of service.

1.36 “Subscriber Network” means that portion of the Cable System used primarily by Grantee
in the transmission of Cable Services to Residential Subscribers.

1.37 “Telecommunications” means the transmission, between or among points specified by
the user, of information of the users choosing, without change in the form or content of the
information as sent and received (as provided in 47 U.S.C. Section 153(43)).

1.38 “Telecommunications Service” means the offering of Telecommunications for a fee
directly to the public, or to such classes of users as to be effectively available directly to the
public, regardless of the facilities used (as provided in 47 U.S.C. Section 153(46)).

1.39 “Tier” means a group of Channels for which a single periodic subscription fee is charged.

1.40 “Two-Way” means that the Cable System is capable of providing both Upstream and
Downstream transmissions.

1.41 “Upstream” means carrying a transmission to the Headend from remote points on the
Cable System or from Interconnection points on the Cable System.

SECTION 2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE

2.1 Grant

(A) The City hereby grants to Grantee a nonexclusive authorization to make
reasonable and lawful use of the Right-of-Way within the City to construct, operate, maintain,
reconstruct and rebuild a Cable System for the purpose of providing Cable Service subject to the
terms and conditions set forth in this Franchise and in any prior utility or use agreements entered
into by Grantee with regard to any individual property.

(B) Nothing in this Franchise shall be deemed to waive the lawful requirements of

any generally applicable City ordinance existing as of the Effective Date, as defined in
subsection 1.19.

(C) Each and every term, provision or condition herein is subject to the provisions of
State law, federal law, the Charter of the City, and the ordinances and regulations enacted
pursuant thereto. The Charter and Municipal Code of the City, as the same may be amended

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
6



from time to time, are hereby expressly incorporated into this Franchise as if fully set out herein
by this reference. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City may not unilaterally alter the material
rights and obligations of Grantee under this Franchise. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or
Municipal Code that are in conflict with or otherwise impose obligations different from the
provisions of this Franchise are superseded by this Franchise. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Franchise, Grantee reserves the right to challenge provisions of any ordinance,
rule, regulation, or other enactment of the City that conflicts with its contractual rights under this
Franchise, either now or in the future.

(D) This Franchise shall not be interpreted to prevent the City from imposing
additional lawful conditions, including additional compensation conditions for use of the Right
of-Way, should Grantee provide service other than Cable Service.

(E) Grantee promises and guarantees, as a condition of exercising the privileges
granted by this Franchise, that any Affiliate of the Grantee directly involved in the offering of
Cable Service in the Franchise Area, or directly involved in the management or operation of the
Cable System in the Franchise Area, will also comply with the obligations of this Franchise.

(F) No rights shall pass to Grantee by implication. Without limiting the foregoing, by
way of example and not limitation, this Franchise shall not include or be a substitute for:

(1) Any other permit or authorization required for the privilege of transacting
and carrying on a business within the City that may be required by the ordinances and
laws of the City;

(2) Any permit, agreement, or authorization required by the City for Right-of-
Way users in connection with operations on or in Right-of-Way or public property
including, by way of example and not limitation, street cut permits; or

(3) Any permits or agreements for occupying any other property of the City or
private entities to which access is not specifically granted by this Franchise including,
without limitation, permits and agreements for placing devices on poles, in conduits or in
or on other structures.

(G) This Franchise is intended to convey limited rights and interests only as to those
Right-of-Way in which the City has an actual interest. It is not a warranty of title or interest in
any Right-of-Way; it does not provide the Grantee with any interest in any particular location
within the Right-of-Way; and it does not confer rights other than as expressly provided in the
grant hereof.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
7



(H) This Franchise does not authorize Grantee to provide Telecommunications
Service, or to construct, operate or maintain Telecommunications facilities. This Franchise is not
a bar to the provision of non-Cable Services, or to the imposition of any lawful conditions on
Grantee with respect to Telecommunications, whether similar, different or the same as the
conditions specified herein. This Franchise does not relieve Grantee of any obligation it may
have to obtain from the City an authorization to provide Telecommunications Services, or to
construct, operate or maintain Telecommunications facilities, or relieve Grantee of its obligation
to comply with any such authorizations that may be lawfully required.

2.2 Use of Right-of-Way

(A) Subject to the City’s supervision and control, Grantee may erect, install, construct,
repair, replace, reconstruct, and retain in, on, over, under, upon, across, and along the Right-of-
Way within the City such wires, cables, conductors, ducts, conduits, vaults, manholes,
amplifiers, pedestals, attachments and other property and equipment as are necessary and
appurtenant to the operation of a Cable System within the City. Grantee, through this Franchise,
is granted extensive and valuable rights to operate its Cable System for profit using the City’s
Right-of-Way in compliance with all applicable City construction codes and procedures. As
trustee for the public, the City is entitled to fair compensation as provided for in Section 3 of this
Franchise to be paid for these valuable rights throughout the term of the Franchise.

(B) Grantee must follow City established nondiscriminatory requirements for
placement of Cable System facilities in Right-of-Way, including the specific location of facilities
in the Right-of-Way, and must in any event install Cable System facilities in a manner that
minimizes interference with the use of the Right-of-Way by others, including others that may be
installing communications facilities. Within limits reasonably related to the City’s role in
protecting public health, safety and welfare, the City may require that Cable System facilities be
installed at a particular time, at a specific place or in a particular manner as a condition of access
to a particular Right-of-Way; may deny access if Grantee is not willing to comply with City’s
requirements; and may remove, or require removal of, any facility that is not installed by Grantee
in compliance with the requirements established by the City, or which is installed without prior
City approval of the time, place or manner of installation, and charge Grantee for all the costs
associated with removal; and may require Grantee to cooperate with others to minimize adverse
impacts on the Right-of-Way through joint trenching and other arrangements.

2.3 Term of Franchise

The term of the Franchise granted hereunder shall be ten (10) years, commencing upon
the Effective Date of the Franchise, unless the Franchise is renewed or is lawfully terminated in
accordance with the terms of this Franchise Agreement and the Cable Act, or is extended by
mutual agreement of the City and Grantee.

2.4 Franchise Nonexciusive

This Franchise shall be nonexciusive, and subject to all prior rights, interests, easements
or licenses granted by the City to any Person to use any property, Right-of-Way, right, interest or

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
8



license for any purpose whatsoever, including the right of the City to use same for any purpose it
deems fit, including the same or similar purposes allowed Grantee hereunder. The City may at
any time grant authorization to use the Right-of-Way for any purpose not incompatible with
Grantee’s authority under this Franchise and for such additional franchises for Cable Systems as
the City deems appropriate.

2.5 Police Powers

Grantee’s rights hereunder are subject to the police powers of the City to adopt and
enforce ordinances necessary to the safety, health, and welfare of the public, and Grantee agrees
to comply with all laws and ordinances of general applicability enacted, or hereafter enacted, by
the City or any other legally constituted governmental unit having lawful jurisdiction over the
subject matter hereof. The City shall have the right to adopt, from time to time, such ordinances
as may be deemed necessary in the exercise of its police power; provided that such hereinafter
enacted ordinances shall be reasonable and not materially modify the terms of this Franchise.
Any conflict between the provisions of this Franchise and any other present or future lawful
exercise of the Citys police powers shall be resolved in favor of the latter.

2.6 Competitive Equity

(A) Purposes. The Grantee and the City acknowledge that there is increasing
competition in the video marketplace among cable operators, direct broadcast satellite providers,
telephone companies, broadband content providers and others; new technologies are emerging
that enable the provision of new and advanced services to City residents; and changes in the
scope and application of the traditional regulatory framework governing the provision of video
services are being considered in a variety of federal, state and local venues. To foster an
environment where video service providers using the public Right-of-Way can compete on a
competitively neutral and nondiscriminatory basis; encourage the provision of new and advanced
services to City residents; promote local communications infrastructure investments and
economic opportunities in the City; and provide flexibility in the event of subsequent changes in
the law, the Grantee and the City have agreed to the provisions in this Section, and they should
be interpreted and applied with such purposes in mind.

(B) New Video Service Provider. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement or any other provision of law, if any Video Service Provider (“VSP”) (i) enters into
any agreement with the City to provide video services to subscribers in the City, or (ii) otherwise
begins to provide video services to subscribers in the City (with or without entering into an
agreement with the City), the City, upon written request of the Grantee, shall permit the Grantee
to construct and operate its Cable System and to provide video services to subscribers in the City
under the same agreement and/or under the same terms and conditions as apply to the new VSP.
The Grantee and the City shall enter into an agreement or other appropriate authorization (if
necessary) containing the same terms and conditions as are applicable to the VSP within sixty
(60) days after the Grantee submits a written request to the City.

(C) If there is no written agreement or other authorization between the new VSP and
the City, the Grantee and the City shall use the sixty (60) day period to develop and enter into an

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PIJRPOSES
9



agreement or other appropriate authorization (if necessary) that to the maximum extent possible
contains provisions that will ensure competitive equity between the Grantee and other VSPs,
taking into account the terms and conditions under which other VSPs are allowed to provide
video services to subscribers in the City.

(D) Subsequent Change in Law. If there is a change in federal, state or local law that
provides for a new or alternative form of authorization for a VSP to provide video services to
subscribers in the City, or that otherwise changes the nature or extent of the obligations that the
City may request from or impose on a VSP providing video services to subscribers in the City,
the City agrees that, notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon Grantee’s written request
the City shall: (i) permit the Grantee to provide video services to subscribers in the City on the
same terms and conditions as are applicable to a VSP under the changed law; (ii) modify this
Agreement to comply with the changed law; or (iii) modify this Agreement to ensure competitive
equity between the Grantee and other VSPs, taking into account the conditions under which
other VSPs are permitted to provide video services to subscribers in the City. The City and the
Grantee shall implement the provisions of this Section within sixty (60) days after the Grantee
submits a written request to the City. Notwithstanding any provision of law that imposes a time
or other limitation on the Grantee’s ability to take advantage of the changed law’s provisions, the
Grantee may exercise its rights under this Section at any time, but not sooner than thirty (30)
days after the changed law goes into effect.

(E) Effect on This Agreement. Any agreement, authorization, right or determination
to provide video services to subscribers in the City under Sections 2,6B, 2.6C or 2.6D shall
supersede this Agreement, and the Grantee, at its option, may terminate this Agreement or
portions thereof, upon written notice to the City, without penalty or damages.

(F) The term “Video Service Provider” or “VSP” shall mean any entity using the
public Right-of-Way to provide multiple video programming services to subscribers, for
purchase or at no cost, regardless of the transmission method, facilities, or technology used. A
VSP shall include but is not limited to any entity that provides cable services, multichannel
multipoint distribution services, broadcast satellite services, satellite-delivered services, wireless
services, and Internet-Protocol based services.

2.7 Familiarity with Franchise

The Grantee acknowledges and warrants by acceptance of the rights, privileges and
agreements granted herein, that it has carefully read and fully comprehends the terms and
conditions of this Franchise and is willing to and does accept all lawful and reasonable risks of
the meaning of the provisions, terms and conditions herein. The Grantee further acknowledges
and states that it has fully studied and considered the requirements and provisions of this
Franchise, and finds that the same are commercially practicable at this time, and consistent with
all local, State and federal laws and regulations currently in effect, including the Cable Act.

2.8 Effect of Acceptance

By accepting the Franchise, the Grantee: (1) acknowledges and accepts the City’s legal

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
10



right to issue and enforce the Franchise; (2) accepts and agrees to comply with each and every
provision of this Franchise subject to Applicable Law; and (3) agrees that the Franchise was
granted pursuant to processes and procedures consistent with Applicable Law, and that it will not
raise any claim to the contrary.

SECTION 3. FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENT AND FINANCIAL CONTROLS

3.1 Franchise Fee

As compensation for the benefits and privileges granted under this Franchise and in
consideration of permission to use the City’s Right-of-Way, Grantee shall within sixty (60) days
of the Effective Date of this agreement pay as a Franchise Fee to the City, throughout the
duration of and consistent with this Franchise, an amount equal to five percent (5%) of Grantee’s
Gross Revenues.

3.2 Payments

Grantee’s Franchise Fee payments to the City shall be computed quarterly for the
preceding calendar quarter ending March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31. Each
quarterly payment shall be due and payable no later than forty-five (45) days after said dates.

3.3 Acceptance of Payment and Recomputation

No acceptance of any payment shall be construed as an accord by the City that the
amount paid is, in fact, the correct amount, nor shall any acceptance of payments be construed as
a release of any claim the City may have for further or additional sums payable or for the
performance of any other obligation of Grantee.

3.4 Quarterly Franchise Fee Reports

Each payment shall be accompanied by a written report to the City, or concurrently sent
under separate cover, verified by an authorized representative of Grantee, containing an accurate
statement in summarized form, as well as in detail, of Grantee’s Gross Revenues and the
computation of the payment amount. Such reports shall detail all Gross Revenues of the Cable
System.

3.5 Annual Franchise Fee Reports

Upon thirty (30) day’s written notice from the City, Grantee shall, within sixty (60) days
after the end of each year, furnish to the City a statement stating the total amount of Gross
Revenues for the year and all payments, dedLictions and computations for the period.

3.6 Franchise Fees Subject to Audit

Upon reasonable prior written notice and no more than once annually, during normal
business hours at Grantee’s principal business office, the City shall have the right to inspect the

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
II



Grantee’s financial records used to calculate the City’s franchise fees; provided, however, that
any such inspection shall take place within two (2) years from the date the Franchising Authority
receives such payment, after which period any such payment shall be considered final.

3.7 Late Payments

In the event any payment due quarterly is not received within forty-five (45) days from
the end of the calendar quarter, Grantee shall pay interest on the amount due (at the prime rate as
listed in the Wall Street Journal on the date the payment was due), compounded daily, calculated
from the date the payment was originally due until the date the City receives the payment.

3.8 Underpayments

If a net Franchise Fee underpayment is discovered as the result of an audit, Grantee shall
pay interest at the rate of the five percent (5%) per annum, compounded quarterly, calculated
from the date each portion of the underpayment was originally due until the date Grantee remits
the underpayment to the City.

3.9 Alternative Compensation

In the event the obligation of Grantee to compensate the City through Franchise Fee
payments is lawfully suspended or eliminated, in whole or part, then Grantee shall pay to the
City compensation equivalent to the compensation paid to the City by other similarly situated
users of the Citys Right-of-Way for Grantee’s use of the City’s Right-of-Way, provided that in
no event shall such payments exceed the equivalent of five percent (5%) of Grantee’s Gross
Revenues (subject to the other provisions contained in this Franchise), to the extent consistent
with Applicable Law.

3.10 Maximum Legal Compensation

The parties acknowledge that, at present, applicable federal law limits the City to
collection of a maximum permissible Franchise Fee of five percent (5%) of Gross Revenues. In
the event that at any time during the duration of this Franchise, the City is authorized to collect
an amount in excess of five percent (5%) of Gross Revenues, then this Franchise may be
amended unilaterally by the City to provide that such excess amount shall be added to the
Franchise Fee payments to be paid by Grantee to the City hereunder, provided that Grantee has
received at least ninety (90) days prior written notice from the City of such amendment, so long
as all cable operators in the City are paying the same Franchise Fee amount.

3.11 Additional Commitments Not Franchise Fee Payments

No term or condition in this Franchise shall in any way modify or affect Grantee’s
obligation to pay Franchise Fees. Although the total sum of Franchise Fee payments and
additional commitments set forth elsewhere in this Franchise may total more than five percent
(5%) of Grantee’s Gross Revenues in any twelve (12) month period, Grantee agrees that the
additional commitments herein are not Franchise Fees as defined under any federal law, nor are

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
12



they to be offset or credited against any Franchise Fee payments due to the City, nor do they
represent an increase in Franchise Fees.

3.12 Tax Liability

The Franchise Fees shall be in addition to any and all taxes or other levies or assessments
which are now or hereafter required to be paid by businesses in general by any law of the City,
the State or the United States including, without limitation, sales, use and other taxes, business
license fees or other payments. Payment of the Franchise Fees under this Franchise shall not
exempt Grantee from the payment of any other license fee, permit fee, tax or charge on the
business, occupation, property or income of Grantee that may be lawfully imposed by the City.
Any other license fees, taxes or charges shall be of general applicability in nature and shall not
be levied against Grantee solely because of its status as a Cable Operator, or against Subscribers,
solely because of their status as such.

3.13 Financial Records

Grantee agrees to meet with a representative of the City upon request to review Grantees
methodology of record-keeping, financial reporting, the computing of Franchise Fee obligations
and other procedures, the understanding of which the City deems necessary for reviewing reports
and records.

3.14 Payment on Termination

If this Franchise terminates for any reason, the Grantee shall file with the City within
ninety (90) calendar days of the date of the termination, a financial statement, certified by an
independent certified public accountant, showing the Gross Revenues received by the Grantee
since the end of the previous fiscal year. The City reserves the right to satisfy any remaining
financial obligations of the Grantee to the City by utilizing the funds available in any security
provided by the Grantee.

SECTION 4. ADMINISTRATION AND REGULATION

4.1 Authority

(A) The City shall be vested with the power and right to reasonably regulate the
exercise of the privileges permitted by this Franchise in the public interest.

(B) Nothing in this Franchise shall limit nor expand the Citys right of eminent
domain under State law.

4.2 Rates and Charges

All of Grantee’s rates and charges related to or regarding Cable Services shall be subject
to regulation by the City to the full extent authorized by applicable federal, State and local laws.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
13



4.3 Rate Discrimination

All of Grantee’s rates and charges shall be published (in the form of a publicly-available
rate card) and be non-discriminatory as to all Persons and organizations of similar classes, under
similar circumstances and conditions. Grantee shall apply its rates in accordance with
Applicable Law, with identical rates and charges for all Subscribers receiving identical Cable
Services, without regard to race, color, ethnic or national origin, religion, age, sex, sexual
orientation, marital, military or economic status, or physical or mental disability or geographic
location within the City. Grantee shall offer the same Cable Services to all Residential
Subscribers at identical rates to the extent required by Applicable Law and to Multiple Dwelling
Unit Subscribers to the extent authorized by FCC rules or applicable Federal law. Grantee shall
permit Subscribers to make any lawful in-residence connections the Subscriber chooses without
additional charge nor penalizing the Subscriber therefor. However, if any in-home connection
requires service from Grantee due to signal quality, signal leakage or other factors, caused by
improper installation of such in-home wiring or faulty materials of such in-home wiring, the
Subscriber may be charged reasonable service charges by Grantee. Nothing herein shall be
construed to prohibit:

(A) The temporary reduction or waiving of rates or charges in conjunction with valid
promotional campaigns; or,

(B) The offering of reasonable discounts to senior citizens or economically
disadvantaged citizens; or,

(C) The offering of rate discounts for Cable Service; or,

(D) The Grantee from establishing different and nondiscriminatory rates and charges
and classes of service for Commercial Subscribers, as allowable by federal law and regulations.

4.4 Filing of Rates and Charges

Grantee shall, upon thirty (30) day’s written notice from the City, provide a complete
schedule of applicable rates and charges for Cable Services provided under this Franchise.
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to require Grantee to file rates and charges under
temporary reductions or waivers of rates and charges in conjunction with promotional
campaigns.

4.5 Cross Subsidization

Grantee shall comply with all Applicable Laws regarding rates for Cable Services and all
Applicable Laws covering issues of cross subsidization.

4.6 Reserved Authority

Both Grantee and the City reserve all riEhts they may have under the Cable Act and any
other relevant provisions of federal, State, or local law.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
14



4.7 Franchise Amendment Procedure

Either party may at any time seek an amendment of this Franchise by so notifying the
other party in writing. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice, the City and Grantee shall
meet to discuss the proposed amendment(s). If the parties reach a mutual agreement upon the
suggested amendment(s), such amendment(s) shall be submitted to the City Council for its
approval. If so approved by the City Council and the Grantee, then such amendment(s) shall be
deemed part of this Franchise. If mutual agreement is not reached, there shall be no amendment.

4.8 Performance Evaluations

(A) The City may hold performance evaluation sessions upon ninety (90) days written
notice, provided that such evaluation sessions shall be held no more frequently than once every
two (2) years. All such evaluation sessions shall be conducted by the City.

(B) Special evaluation sessions may be held at any time by the City during the term of
this Franchise, upon ninety (90) days written notice to Grantee.

(C) All regular evaluation sessions shall be open to the public and announced at least
two (2) weeks in advance in any manner within the discretion of the City. Grantee shall also
include with or on the Subscriber billing statements for the billing period immediately preceding
the commencement of the session, written notification of the date, time, and place of the regular
performance evaluation session, and any special evaluation session as required by the City,
provided Grantee receives appropriate advance notice.

(D) Topics which may be discussed at any evaluation session may include, but are not
limited to, Cable Service rate structures; Franchise Fee payments; liquidated damages; free or
discounted Cable Services; application of new technologies; Cable System performance; Cable
Services provided; programming offered; Subscriber complaints; privacy; amendments to this
Franchise; judicial and FCC rulings; line extension policies; and the City or Grantees rules;
provided that nothing in this subsection shall be construed as requiring the renegotiation of this
Franchise.

(E) During evaluations under this subsection, Grantee shall fully cooperate with the
City and shall provide such information and documents maintained in the ordinary course of
business as the City may reasonably require to perform the evaluation.

4.9 Force Majeure

In the event Grantee is prevented or delayed in the performance of any of its obligations
under this Franchise by reason beyond the control of Grantee, Grantee shall have a reasonable
time, under the circumstances, to perform the affected obligation under this Franchise or to
procure a substitute for such obligation which is satisfactory to the City. Those conditions which
are not within the control of Grantee include, but are not limited to, natural disasters, civil
disturbances, work stoppages or labor disputes, power outages, telephone network outages, and

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
15



severe or unusual weather conditions which have a direct and substantial impact on the Grantee’s
ability to provide Cable Services in the City and which was not caused and could not have been
avoided by the Grantee which used its best efforts in its operations to avoid such results.

If Grantee believes that a reason beyond its control has prevented or delayed its
compliance with the terms of this Franchise, Grantee shall provide documentation as reasonably
reqLlired by the City to substantiate the Grantee’s claim. If Grantee has not yet cured the
deficiency, Grantee shall also provide the City with its proposed plan for remediation, including
the timing for such cure.

SECTION 5. FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 Indemnification

The Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees,
and agents from and against any liability or claims resulting from property damage or bodily
injury (including accidental death) that arise out of the Grantee’s construction, operation,
maintenance or removal of the Cable System, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs, provided that the City shall give the Grantee written notice of its obligation to
indemnify and defend the City within thirty (30) business days of receipt of a claim or action
pursuant to this Section. If the City determines that it is necessary for it to employ separate
counsel, the costs for such separate counsel shall be the responsibility of the City.

5.2 Insurance

Throughout the term of this Franchise Agreement, the Grantee shall, at its own cost and
expense, maintain Comprehensive General Liability Insurance and provide the City certificates
of insurance designating the City and its officers, boards, commissions, councils, elected
officials, agents and employees as additional insureds and demonstrating that the Grantee has
obtained the insurance required in this Section. Such policy or policies shall be in the minimum
amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for bodily injury or death to any one person, and
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for bodily injury or death of any two or more persons
resulting from one occurrence, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for property damage
resulting from any one accident. Such policy or policies shall be non-cancelable except upon
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City. The Grantee shall provide workers’
compensation coverage in accordance with applicable law. The Grantee shall indemnify and hold
harmless the City from any workers compensation claims to which the Grantee may become
subject during the term of this Franchise.

SECTION 6. CUSTOMER SERVICE

6.1 Customer Service Standards

The City hereby adopts the customer service standards set forth in Part 76, §76.309 of the
FCC’s rules and regulations, as amended. The Grantee shall comply in all respects with the
customer service requirements established by the FCC.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
16



6.2 Subscriber Privacy

The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state privacy laws, including
Section 63 1 of the Cable Act and regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

6.3 Subscriber Bills

Subscriber bills shall be designed in such a way as to present the information contained
therein clearly and comprehensibly to Subscribers, and in a way that (A) is not misleading and
(B) does not omit material information. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 6. 1,
above, the Grantee may, in its sole discretion, consolidate costs on Subscriber bills as may
otherwise be permitted by Section 622(c) of the Cable Act (47 U.S.C. §542(c)).

SECTION 7, BOOKS AND RECORDS

7.1 Books and Records

Throughout the term of this Franchise Agreement, the Grantee agrees that the City may
review the Grantee’s books and records that are maintained in the ordinary course of business in
the Franchise Area to monitor Grantee’s compliance with the provisions of this Franchise
Agreement, upon reasonable prior written notice to the Grantee, at the Grantee’s business office,
during normal business hours, and without unreasonably interfering with Grantee’s business
operations. All such documents that may be the subject of an inspection by the City shall be
retained by the Grantee for a minimum period of three (3) years.

7.2 Confidentiality

The City agrees to treat as confidential any books or records that constitute proprietary or
confidential information under federal or State law, to the extent Grantee makes the City aware
of such confidentiality. Grantee shall be responsible for clearly and conspicuously stamping the
word ‘Confidential’ on each page that contains confidential or proprietary information, and shall
provide a brief written explanation as to why such information is confidential under State or
federal law. If the City believes it must release any such confidential books and records in the
course of enforcing this Franchise, or for any other reason, it shall advise Grantee in advance so
that Grantee may take appropriate steps to protect its interests. If the City receives a demand
from any Person for disclosure of any information designated by Grantee as confidential, the
City shall, so far as consistent with Applicable Law, advise Grantee and provide Grantee with a
copy of any written request by the party demanding access to such information within a
reasonable time. Until otherwise ordered by a court or agency of competent jurisdiction, the City
agrees that, to the extent permitted by State and federal law, it shall deny access to any of
Grantee’s books and records marked confidential as set forth above to any Person. Grantee shall
reimburse the City for all reasonable costs and attorney’s fees incurred in any legal proceedings
pursued under this Section.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
17



7.3 Records Required

(A) Grantee shall at all times maintain, and shall furnish to the City upon 30 days
written request and subject to Applicable Law:

(1) A complete set of maps showing the exact location of all Cable System
equipment and facilities in the Right-of-Way, but excluding detail on proprietary
electronics contained therein and Subscriber drops. As-built maps including proprietary
electronics shall be available at Grantees offices for inspection by the City’s authorized
representative(s) or agent(s) and made available to such during the course of technical
inspections as reasonably conducted by the City. These maps shall he certified as
accurate by an appropriate representative of the Grantee;

(2) A copy of all FCC filings on behalf of Grantee, its parent corporations or
Affiliates which relate to the operation of the Cable System in the City;

(3) A log of Cable Services added or dropped, Channel changes, number of
Subscribers added or terminated, all construction activity, and total homes passed for the
previous twelve (12) months; and

(4) A list of Cable Services, rates and Channel line-ups.

(B) Subject to subsection 7.2, all information furnished to the City is public
information, and shall be treated as such, except for information involving the privacy rights of
individual Subscribers.

7.4 Copies of Federal and State Reports

Within thirty (30) days of a written request, Grantee shall submit to the City copies of all
pleadings, applications, notifications, communications and documents of any kind, submitted by
Grantee or its parent corporation(s), to any federal, State or local courts, regulatory agencies and
other government bodies if such documents directly relate to the operations of Grantees Cable
System within the City. Grantee shall not claim confidential, privileged or proprietary rights to
such documents unless under federal, State, or local law such documents have been determined
to be confidential by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a federal or State agency.

SECTION 8. PROGRAMMING

8.1 Broad Programming Categories

Grantee shall provide or enable the provision of at least the following initial broad
categories of programming to the extent such categories are reasonably available:

(A) Educational programming;

(B) New Mexico news, weather & information;

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
18



(C) Sports;

(D) General entertainment (including movies);

(E) Children/family-oriented;

(F) Arts, culture and performing arts;

(G) Foreign language;

(H) Science/documentary;

(I) National news, weather and information; and,

(J) Public, Educational and Government Access, to the extent required by this
Franchise.

8.2 Deletion or Reduction of Broad Programming Categories

(A) Grantee shall not delete or so limit as to effectively delete any broad category of
programming within its control without the prior written consent of the City.

(B) In the event of a modification proceeding under federal law, the mix and quality
of Cable Services provided by Grantee on the Effective Date of this Franchise shall be deemed
the mix and quality of Cable Services required under this Franchise throughout its term.

8.3 Obscenity

Grantee shall not transmit, or permit to be transmitted over any Channel subject to its
editorial control, any programming which is obscene under, or violates any provision of,
Applicable Law relating to obscenity, and is not protected by the Constitution of the United
States. Grantee shall be deemed to have transmitted or permitted a transmission of obscene
programming only if a court of competent jurisdiction has found that any of Grantee’s officers or
employees or agents have permitted programming which is obscene under, or violative of, any
provision of Applicable Law relating to obscenity, and is otherwise not protected by the
Constitution of the United States, to be transmitted over any Channel subject to Grantee’s
editorial control. Grantee shall comply with all relevant provisions of federal law relating to
obscenity.

8.4 Parental Control Device

Upon request by any Subscriber, Grantee shall make available a parental control or
lockout device, traps or filters to enable a Subscriber to control access to both the audio and
video portions of any or all Channels. Grantee shall inform its Subscribers of the availability of
the lockout device at the time of their initial subscription and periodically thereafter. Any device

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
19



offered shall be at a rate, if any, in compliance with Applicable Law.

8.5 Continuity of Service Mandatory

(A) It shall be the right of all Subscribers to continue to receive Cable Service from
Grantee insofar as their financial and other obligations to Grantee are honored and they are in
compliance with Grantee’s terms of services, residential service agreement or other such
provisions. The Grantee shall act so as to ensure that all Subscribers receive continuous,
uninterrupted Cable Service regardless of the circumstances. For the purposes of this subsection,
‘uninterrupted” does not include short-term outages of the Cable System for maintenance or
testing.

(B) In the event of a change of grantee, or in the event a new Cable Operator acquires
the Cable System in accordance with this Franchise, Grantee shall cooperate with the City, new
franchisee or Cable Operator in maintaining continuity of Cable Service to all Subscribers.
During any transition period, Grantee shall be entitled to the revenues for any period during
which it operates the Cable System, and shall be entitled to reasonable costs for its services when
it no longer operates the Cable System.

(C) In the event Grantee fails to operate the Cable System for four (4) consecutive
days without prior approval of the Manager, or without just cause, the City may, at its option,
operate the Cable System itself or designate another Cable Operator until such time as Grantee
restores service under conditions acceptable to the City or a permanent Cable Operator is
selected. If the City is required to fulfill this obligation for Grantee, Grantee shall reimburse the
City for all reasonable costs or damages that are the result of Grantee’s failure to perform.

8.6 Services for the Disabled

Grantee shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and any amendments
thereto.

SECTION 9. GENERAL RIGHT-OF-WAY USE AND CONSTRUCTION

9.1 Permits and General Obligations

The Grantee shall be responsible for obtaining, at its own cost and expense, all generally
applicable permits, licenses, or other forms of approval or authorization necessary to construct,
operate, maintain or repair the Cable System, or any part thereof, prior to the commencement of
any such activity. Construction, installation, and maintenance of the Cable System shall be
performed in a safe, thorough and reliable manner using materials of good and durable quality.
All transmission and distribution structures, poles, other lines, and equipment installed by the
Grantee for use in the Cable System in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Franchise Agreement shall be located so as to minimize the interference with the proper use of
the Right-of-Way and the rights and reasonable convenience of property owners who own
property that adjoins any such Right-of-Way.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
20



9.2 Conditions of Street Occupancy

New Grades or Lines. If the grades or lines of any Public Way within the Franchise Area
are lawfully changed at any time during the term of this Franchise Agreement, then the Grantee
shall, upon reasonable advance written notice from the City (which shall not be less than ten (10)
business days) and at its own cost and expense, protect or promptly alter or relocate the Cable
System, or any part thereof, so as to conform with any such new grades or lines. If public funds
are available to any other user of the Right-of-Way for the purpose of defraying the cost of any
of the foregoing, the City shall notify Grantee of such funding and make available such funds to
the Grantee.

9.3 Relocation at request of Third Party

The Grantee shall, upon reasonable prior written request of any Person holding a permit
issued by the City to move any structure, temporarily move its wires to permit the moving of
such structure; provided (i) the Grantee may impose a reasonable charge on any Person for the
movement of its wires, and such charge may be required to be paid in advance of the movement
of its wires; and (ii) the Grantee is given not less than ten (10) business days advance written
notice to arrange for such temporary relocation.

9.4 Restoration of Right-of-Way

If in connection with the construction, operation, maintenance, or repair of the Cable
System, the Grantee disturbs, alters, or damages any Right-of-Way, the Grantee agrees that it
shall at its own cost and expense replace and restore any such Public Way to a condition
reasonably comparable to the condition of the Right-of-Way existing immediately prior to the
disturbance.

9.5 Safety Requirements

The Grantee shall, at its own cost and expense, undertake all necessary and appropriate
efforts to maintain its work sites in a safe manner in order to prevent failures and accidents that
may cause damage, injuries or nuisances. All work undertaken on the Cable System shall be
performed in substantial accordance with applicable FCC or other federal and state regulations.
The Cable System shall not unreasonably endanger or interfere with the safety of Persons or
property in the Franchise Area.

9.6 Trimming of Trees and Shrubbery

The Grantee shall have the authority to trim trees or other natural growth overhanging any of its
Cable System in the Franchise Area so as to prevent contact with the Grantee’s wires, cables, or
other equipment. All such trimming shall be done at the Grantee’s sole cost and expense. The
Grantee shall be responsible for any damage caused by such trimming. The Grantee shall give
reasonable advance notice to the owner or occupant of the premises abutting the Right-of-Way in
or over which the tree is growing.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
21



9.7 Aerial and Underground Construction

At the time of Cable System construction, if all of the transmission and distribution
facilities of all of the respective public or municipal utilities in any area of the Franchise Area are
underground, the Grantee shall place its Cable Systems’ transmission and distribution facilities
underground, provided that such underground locations are actually capable of accommodating
the Grantee’s cable and other equipment without technical degradation of the Cable System’s
signal quality. In any region(s) of the Franchise Area where the transmission or distribution
facilities of the respective public or municipal utilities are both aerial and underground, the
Grantee shall have the discretion to construct, operate, and maintain all of its transmission and
distribution facilities, or any part thereof, aerially or underground. Nothing in this Section shall
be construed to require the Grantee to construct, operate, or maintain underground any ground-
mounted appurtenances such as Subscriber taps, line extenders, system passive devices,
amplifiers, power supplies, pedestals, or other related equipment.

9.8 Undergrounding and Beautification Projects

In the event all users of the Right-of-Way relocate aerial facilities underground as part of
an undergrounding or neighborhood beautification project, Grantee shall participate in the
planning for relocation of its aerial facilities contemporaneously with other utilities. Grantee’s
relocation costs shall be included in any computation of necessary project funding by the
municipality or private parties. Grantee shall be entitled to reimbursement of its relocation costs
from public or private funds raised for the project and made available to other users of the Right-
of-Way.

SECTION 10. CABLE SYSTEM, TECHNICAL STANDARDS AND TESTING

10.1 Subscriber Network

(A) Ih Cable System shall deliver no less than eighty five (85) Channels of video
programming services to Subscribers.

(B) Equipment must be installed so that all closed captioning programming received
by the Cable System shall include the closed caption signal so long as the closed caption signal is
provided consistent with FCC standards. Equipment must be installed so that all local signals
received in stereo or with secondary audio tracks are retransmitted in those same formats.

(C) All construction shall be subject to the Citys permitting process.

(D) Grantee will take prompt corrective action if it finds that any facilities or
equipment on the Cable System are not operating as expected, or if it finds that facilities and
equipment do not comply with the requirements of this Franchise or Applicable Law.

(E) Grantees construction decisions shall be based solely upon legitimate engineering
decisions and shall not take into consideration the income level of any particular community

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
22



within the Franchise Area.

(F) Grantee shall not be required to obtain permits for construction work related to
the connection and disconnection of Subscribers between the distribution plant in the public
rights of way and the Subscriber’s residence to the extent such work disturbs no more than 20
feet of the public right of way.

10.2 Standby Power

Grantee’s Cable System Headend shall be capable of providing at least twelve (12) hours
of emergency operation. In addition, throughout the term of this Franchise, Grantee shall have a
plan in place, along with all resources necessary for implementing such plan, for dealing with
outages of more than four (4) hours. This outage plan and evidence of requisite implementation
resources shall be presented to the City no later than thirty (30) days following receipt of a
request.

10.3 Emergency Alert Capability

Grantee shall provide an operating Emergency Alert System (“EAS”) throughout the
term of this Franchise in compliance with FCC standards.

10.4 Technical Performance

The technical performance of the Cable System shall meet or exceed all applicable
federal (including, but not limited to, the FCC), and State technical standards, as they may be
amended from time to time, regardless of the transmission technology utilized. The City shall
have the full authority permitted by Applicable Law to enforce compliance with these technical
standards.

10.5 Cable System Performance Testing

(A) Grantee shall, at Grantee’s expense, perform the following tests on its Cable
System:

(1) All tests required by the FCC;

(2) All other tests reasonably necessary to determine compliance with
technical standards adopted by the FCC at any time during the term of this Franchise; and

(3) All other tests as otherwise specified in this Franchise.

(B) At a minimum, Grantee’s tests shall include:

(1) Cumulative leakage index testing of any new construction;

(2) Semi-annual compliance and proof of performance tests in conformance

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES

23



with generally accepted industry guidelines;

(3) Tests in response to Subscriber complaints;

(4) Periodic monitoring tests, at intervals not to exceed six (6) months, of
Subscriber (field) test points, the Headend, and the condition of standby power supplies;
and

(5) Cumulative leakage index tests, at least annually, designed to ensure that
one hundred percent (100%) of Grantee’s Cable System has been ground or air tested for
signal leakage in accordance with FCC standards.

(C) Grantee shall maintain written records of all results of its Cable System tests,
performed by or for Grantee. Copies of such test results will be provided to the City upon
reasonable request.

(D) If the FCC no longer requires proof of performance tests for Grantee’s Cable
System during the term of this Franchise, Grantee agrees that it shall continue to conduct proof
of performance tests on the Cable System in accordance with the standards that were in place on
the Effective Date, or any generally applicable standards later adopted, at least once a year, and
provide written results of such tests to the City upon request.

(E) The FCC semi-annual testing is conducted in January/February and July/August
of each year. If the City contacts Grantee prior to the next test period (i.e., before December 15
and June 15 respectively of each year), Grantee shall provide City with no less than seven (7)
days prior written notice of the actual date(s) for FCC compliance testing. If City notifies
Grantee by the December 15th and June 15th dates that it wishes to have a representative present
during the next test(s), Grantee shall cooperate in scheduling its testing so that the representative
can be present. Notwithstanding the above, all technical performance tests may be witnessed by
representatives of the City.

(F) Grantee shall be required to promptly take such corrective measures as are
necessary to correct any performance deficiencies fully and to prevent their recurrence as far as
possible. Grantee’s failure to correct deficiencies identified through this testing process shall be
a material violation of this Franchise. Sites shall be re-tested following correction.

SECTION 11. SERVICE AVAILABILITY, INTERCONNECTION AND SERVICE TO
SCHOOLS AND PUBLIC BUILDINGS

11.1 Service Availability

(A) In General. Except as otherwise provided in herein, Grantee shall provide Cable
Service within seven (7) days of a request by any Person within the City. For purposes of this
Section, a request shall be deemed made on the date of signing a service agreement, receipt of
funds by Grantee, receipt of a written request by Grantee or receipt by Grantee of a verified
verbal request. Except as otherwise provided herein, Grantee shall provide such service:

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
24



(1) With no line extension charge except as specifically authorized elsewhere
in this Franchise Agreement.

(2) At a non-discriminatory installation charge for a standard installation,
consisting of a 125 foot drop connecting to an inside wall for Residential Subscribers, with
additional charges for non-standard installations computed according to a non-discriminatory
methodology for such installations, adopted by Grantee and provided in writing to the City;

(3) At non-discriminatory monthly rates for Residential Subscribers.

(B) Service to Multiple Dwelling Units. Consistent with this Section 11.1, the
Grantee shall offer the individual units of a Multiple Dwelling Unit all Cable Services offered to
other Dwelling Units in the City and shall individually wire units upon request of the property
owner or renter who has been given written authorization by the owner; provided, however, that
any such offering is conditioned upon the Grantee having legal access to said unit in the form of
an access and wiring agreement that is mutually satisfactory to the Grantee and the property
owner. The City acknowledges that the Grantee cannot control the dissemination of particular
Cable Services beyond the point of demarcation at a Multiple Dwelling Unit.

(C) Subscriber Charges for Extensions of Service. Grantee agrees to extend its Cable
System to all persons living in areas with a residential density of thirty-five (35)residences per
mile of Cable System plant and if the area is within 1,320 cable-bearing strand feet of Grantee’s
existing distribution plant. If the residential density is less than thirty-five (35) - residences per
5,280 cable-bearing strand feet of trunk or distribution cable, service may be made available on
the basis of a capital contribution in aid of construction, including cost of material, labor and
easements. For the purpose of determining the amount of capital contribution in aid of
construction to be borne by the Grantee and Subscribers in the area in which service may be
expanded, the Grantee will contribute an amount equal to the construction and other costs per
mile, multiplied by a fraction whose numerator equals the actual number of residences per 5,280
cable-bearing strand feet of its trunk or distribution cable and whose denominator equals thirty
five (35). Subscribers who request service hereunder will bear the remainder of the construction
and other costs on a pro rata basis. The Grantee may require that the payment of the capital
contribution in aid of construction borne by such potential Subscribers be paid in advance.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PtJRPOSES

25



11.2 Connection of Public Facilities

Grantee shall, at no cost to the City, provide one outlet of Basic Service to all City owned
and occupied buildings, schools and public libraries located in areas where Grantee provides
Cable Service, so long as these facilities are already served or are located within 125 feet from
the distribution point on the Cable System from which cable service can be provided to these
facilities. For purposes of this subsection, “school” means all State-accredited K-12 public and
private schools. Such obligation to provide free Cable Service shall not extend to areas of City
buildings where the Grantee would normally enter into a commercial contract to provide such
Cable Service (e.g., golf courses, airport restaurants and concourses, and recreation center work
out facilities). Outlets of Basic Service provided in accordance with this subsection may be used
to distribute Cable Services throughout such buildings, provided such distribution can be
accomplished without causing Cable System disruption and general technical standards are
maintained. Such Cable Service shall not be located in public waiting areas or used to entertain
the public nor shall they be used in a way that might violate copyright laws. The outlets may
only be used for lawful purposes. The Cable Service provided shall not be distributed beyond the
originally installed outlets without authorization from Grantee, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld. Grantee is not required to provide free reception equipment for any complimentary
account provided pursuant to this subsection. Grantee does not waive any rights under
applicable law regarding complimentary service. Should Grantee elect to begin offsetting the
value of complimentary service against franchise fees, Grantee shall first provide Franchise
Authority with ninety (90) days prior written notice.

SECTION 12. FRANCHISE VIOLATIONS

12.1 Procedure for Remedying Franchise Violations

(A) If the City reasonably believes that Grantee has failed to perform any obligation
under this Franchise or has failed to perform in a timely manner, the City shall notify Grantee in
writing, stating with reasonable specificity the nature of the alleged default. Grantee shall have
thirty (30) days from the receipt of such notice to:

(1) respond to the City, contesting the Citys assertion that a default has
occurred, and requesting a meeting in accordance with subsection (B), below;

(2) cure the default; or,

(3) notify the City that Grantee cannot cure the default within the thirty (30)
days, because of the nature of the default. In the event the default cannot be cured within
thirty (30) days, Grantee shall promptly take all reasonable steps to cure the default and
notify the City in writing and in detail as to the exact steps that will be taken and the
projected completion date. In such case, the City may set a meeting in accordance with
subsection (B) below to determine whether additional time beyond the thirty (30) days
specified above is indeed needed, and whether Grantees proposed completion schedule
and steps are reasonable.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
26



(B) If Grantee does not cure the alleged default within the cure period stated above, or
by the projected completion date under subsection (A)(3), or denies the default and requests a
meeting in accordance with (A)(1), or the City orders a meeting in accordance with subsection
(A)(3), the City shall set a meeting to investigate said issues or the existence of the alleged
default. The City shall notify Grantee of the meeting in writing and such meeting shall take
place no less than thirty (30) days after Grantee’s receipt of notice of the meeting. At the
meeting, Grantee shall be provided an opportunity to be heard and to present evidence in its
defense.

(C) If, after the meeting, the City determines that a default exists, the City shall order
Grantee to correct or remedy the default or breach within fifteen (15) days or within such other
reasonable time frame as the City shall determine. In the event Grantee does not cure within
such time to the City’s reasonable satisfaction, the City may:

(1) Recommend the revocation of this Franchise pursuant to the procedures in
subsection 12.2; or,

(2) Recommend any other legal or equitable remedy available under this
Franchise or any Applicable Law.

(D) The determination as to whether a violation of this Franchise has occurred shall
be within the discretion of the City, provided that any such final determination may be subject to
appeal to a court of competent jurisdiction under Applicable Law.

12.2 Revocation

(A) In addition to revocation in accordance with other provisions of this Franchise,
the City may revoke this Franchise and rescind all rights and privileges associated with this
Franchise in the following circumstances, each of which represents a material breach of this
Franchise:

(1) If Grantee fails to perform any material obligation under this Franchise or
under any other agreement, ordinance or document regarding the City and Grantee;

(2) If Grantee willfully fails for more than forty-eight (48) hours to provide
continuous and uninterrupted Cable Service;

(3) If Grantee attempts to evade any material provision of this Franchise or to
practice any fraud or deceit upon the City or Subscribers; or

(4) If Grantee becomes insolvent, or if there is an assignment for the benefit
of Grantee’s creditors;

(5) If Grantee makes a material misrepresentation of fact in the application for
or negotiation of this Franchise.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES

27



(B) Following the procedures set forth in subsection 12.1 and prior to forfeiture or
termination of the Franchise, the City shall give written notice to the Grantee of its intent to
revoke the Franchise and set a date for a revocation proceeding. The notice shall set forth the
exact nature of the noncompliance.

(C) Any proceeding under the paragraph above shall be conducted by the City
Council and open to the public. Grantee shall be afforded at least forty-five (45) days prior
written notice of such proceeding.

(1) At such proceeding, Grantee shall be provided a fair opportunity for full
participation, including the right to be represented by legal counsel, to introduce
evidence, and to question witnesses. A complete verbatim record and transcript shall be
made of such proceeding and the cost shall be shared equally between the parties. The
City Council shall hear any Persons interested in the revocation, and shall allow Grantee,
in particular, an opportunity to state its position on the matter.

(2) Within ninety (90) days after the hearing, the City Council shall determine
whether to revoke the Franchise and declare that the Franchise is revoked; or if the
breach at issue is capable of being cured by Grantee, direct Grantee to take appropriate
remedial action within the time and in the manner and on the terms and conditions that
the City Council determines are reasonable under the circumstances. If the City
determines that the Franchise is to be revoked, the City shall set forth the reasons for such
a decision and shall transmit a copy of the decision to the Grantee. Grantee shall be
bound by the City’s decision to revoke the Franchise unless it appeals the decision to a
court of competent jurisdiction within fifteen (15) days of the date of the decision.

(3) Grantee shall be entitled to such relief as the Court may deem appropriate.

(4) The City Council may at its sole discretion take any lawful action which it
deems appropriate to enforce the Citys rights under the Franchise in lieu of revocation of
the Franchise.

12.3 Procedures in the Event of Termination or Revocation

(A) If this Franchise expires without renewal after completion of all processes
available under this Franchise and federal law or is otherwise lawfully terminated or revoked, the
City may, subject to Applicable Law:

(1) Allow Grantee to maintain and operate its Cable System on a month-to-
month basis or short-term extension of this Franchise for not less than six (6) months,
unless a sale of the Cable System can be closed sooner or Grantee demonstrates to the
Citys satisfaction that it needs additional time to complete the sale; or

(2) Purchase Grantees Cable System in accordance with the procedures set
forth in subsection 12.4, below.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
28



(B) In the event that a sale has not been completed in accordance with subsections
(A)(l) and/or (A)(2) above, the City may order the removal of the above-ground Cable System
facilities and such underground facilities from the City at Grantee’s sole expense within a
reasonable period of time as determined by the City. In removing its plant, structures and
equipment, Grantee shall refill, at is own expense, any excavation that is made by it and shall
leave all Right-of-Way, public places and private property in as good condition as that prevailing
prior to Grantee’s removal of its equipment without affecting the electrical or telephone cable
wires or attachments. The indemnification and insurance provisions shall remain in full force
and effect during the period of removal, and Grantee shall not be entitled to, and agrees not to
request, compensation of any sort therefore.

(C) If Grantee fails to complete any removal required by subsection 12.3 (B) to the
City’s satisfaction, after written notice to Grantee, the City may cause the work to be done and
Grantee shall reimburse the City for the costs incurred within thirty (30) days after receipt of an
itemized list of the costs.

(D) The City may seek legal and equitable relief to enforce the provisions of this
Franchise.

12.4 Purchase of Cable System

(A) If at any time this Franchise is revoked, terminated, or not renewed upon
expiration in accordance with the provisions of federal law, the City shall have the option to
purchase the Cable System.

(B) The City may, at any time thereafter, offer in writing to purchase Grantee’s Cable
System. Grantee shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of a written offer from the City within
which to accept or reject the offer.

(C) In any case where the City elects to purchase the Cable System, the purchase shall
be closed within one hundred twenty (120) days of the date of the City’s audit of a current profit
and loss statement of Grantee. The City shall pay for the Cable System in cash or certified
funds, and Grantee shall deliver appropriate bills of sale and other instruments of conveyance.

(D) For the purposes of this subsection, the price for the Cable System shall be
determined as follows:

(1) In the case of the expiration of the Franchise without renewal, at fair
market value determined on the basis of Grantee’s Cable System valued as a going
concern, but with no value allocated to the Franchise itself. In order to obtain the fair
market value, this valuation shall be reduced by the amount of any lien, encumbrance, or
other obligation of Grantee which the City would assume.

(2) In the case of revocation for cause, the equitable price of Grantee’s Cable
System.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
29



12.5 Receivership and Foreclosure

(A) At the option of the City, subject to Applicable Law, this Franchise may be
revoked one hundred twenty (120) days after the appointment of a receiver or trustee to take over
and conduct the business of Grantee whether in a receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy or
other action or proceeding, unless:

(1) The receivership or trusteeship is vacated within one hundred twenty (120)
days of appointment; or

(2) The receivers or trustees have, within one hundred twenty (120) days after
their election or appointment, fully complied with all the terms and provisions of this
Franchise, and have remedied all defaults under the Franchise. Additionally, the
receivers or trustees shall have executed an agreement duly approved by the court having
jurisdiction, by which the receivers or trustees assume and agree to be bound by each and
every term, provision and limitation of this Franchise.

(B) If there is a foreclosure or other involuntary sale of the whole or any part of the
plant, property and equipment of Grantee, the City may serve notice of revocation on Grantee
and to the purchaser at the sale, and the rights and privileges of Grantee under this Franchise
shall be revoked thirty (30) days after service of such notice, unless:

(1) The City has approved the transfer of the Franchise, in accordance with
the procedures set forth in this Franchise and as provided by law; and

(2) The purchaser has covenanted and agreed with the City to assume and be
bound by all of the terms and conditions of this Franchise.

12.6 No Monetary Recourse Against the City

Grantee shall not have any monetary recourse against the City or its officers, officials,
boards, commissions, agents or employees for any loss, costs, expenses or damages arising out of
any provision or requirement of this Franchise or the enforcement thereof, in accordance with the
provisions of applicable federal, State and local law. The rights of the City under this Franchise
are in addition to, and shall not be read to limit, any immunities the City may enjoy under
federal, State or local law.

12.7 Alternative Remedies

No provision of this Franchise shall be deemed to bar the right of the City to seek or
obtain judicial relief from a violation of any provision of the Franchise or any rule, regulation,
requirement or directive promulgated thereunder. Neither the existence of other remedies
identified in this Franchise nor the exercise thereof shall be deemed to bar or otherwise limit the
right of the City to recover monetary damages for such violations by Grantee, or to seek and
obtain judicial enforcement of Grantees obligations by means of specific performance,
injunctive relief or mandate, or any other remedy at law or in equity.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES

30



12.8 Effect of Abandonment

If the Grantee abandons its Cable System during the Franchise term, or fails to operate its
Cable System in accordance with its duty to provide continuous service, the City, at its option,
may operate the Cable System; designate another entity to operate the Cable System temporarily
until the Grantee restores service under conditions acceptable to the City, or until the Franchise is
revoked and a new franchisee is selected by the City; or obtain an injunction requiring the
Grantee to continue operations. If the City is required to operate or designate another entity to
operate the Cable System, the Grantee shall reimburse the City or its designee for all reasonable
costs, expenses and damages incurred.

12.9 What Constitutes Abandonment

The City shall be entitled to exercise its options in subsection 12.8 if:

(A) The Grantee fails to provide Cable Service in accordance with this Franchise over
a substantial portion of the Franchise Area for four (4) consecutive days, unless the City
authorizes a longer interruption of service; or

(B) The Grantee, for any period, willfully and without cause refuses to provide Cable
Service in accordance with this Franchise.

SECTION 13. FRANCHISE RENEWAL AND TRANSFER

13.1 Renewal

(A) The City and Grantee agree that any proceedings undertaken by the City that
relate to the renewal of the Franchise shall be governed by and comply with the provisions of
Section 626 of the Cable Act, unless the procedures and substantive protections set forth therein
shall be deemed to be preempted and superseded by the provisions of any subsequent provision
of federal or State law.

(B) In addition to the procedures set forth in said Section 626(a), the City agrees to
notify Grantee of the completion of its assessments regarding the identification of future cable-
related community needs and interests, as well as the past performance of Grantee under the then
current Franchise term. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, Grantee and
City agree that at any time during the term of the then current Franchise, while affording the
public adequate notice and opportunity for comment, the City and Grantee may agree to
undertake and finalize negotiations regarding renewal of the then current Franchise and the City
may grant a renewal thereof. Grantee and City consider the terms set forth in this subsection to
be consistent with the express provisions of Section 626 of the Cable Act.

13.2 Transfer of Ownership or Control

Neither the Grantee nor any other Person may transfer the Cable System or the Franchise

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
31



without the prior written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld
or delayed. No transfer of control of the Grantee, defined as an acquisition of 51 % or greater
ownership interest in Grantee, shall take place without the prior written consent of the City,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No consent shall be required,
however, for (i) a transfer in trust, by mortgage, hypothecation, or by assignment of any rights,
title, or interest of the Grantee in the Franchise or in the Cable System in order to secure
indebtedness, or (ii) a transfer to an entity directly or indirectly owned or controlled by Comcast
Corporation. Within thirty (30) days of receiving a request for consent, the City shall, in
accordance with FCC rules and regulations, notify the Grantee in writing of the additional
information, if any, it requires to determine the legal, financial and technical qualifications of the
transferee or new controlling party. If the City has not taken final action on the Grantee’s
request for consent within one hundred twenty (120) days after receiving such request, consent
shall be deemed granted.

14. Severability

If any Section, subsection, paragraph, term or provision of this Franchise is determined to
be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by any court or agency of competent jurisdiction, such
determination shall have no effect on the validity of any other Section, subsection, paragraph,
term or provision of this Franchise, all of which will remain in full force and effect for the term
of the Franchise.

15.1 Preferential or Discriminatory Practices Prohibited

NO DISCRIMINATION iN EMPLOYMENT. In connection with the performance of
work under this Franchise, the Grantee agrees not to refuse to hire, discharge, promote or
demote, or discriminate in matters of compensation against any Person otherwise qualified,
solely because of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, age, military status, sexual
orientation, marital status, or physical or mental disability; and the Grantee further agrees to
insert the foregoing provision in all subcontracts hereunder. Throughout the term of this
Franchise, Grantee shall fully comply with all equal employment or non-discrimination
provisions and requirements of federal, State and local laws, and in particular, FCC rules and
regulations relating thereto.

15.2 Notices

Throughout the term of the Franchise, each party shall maintain and file with the other a
local address for the service of notices by mail. All notices shall be sent overnight delivery
postage prepaid to such respective address and such notices shall be effective upon the date of
mailing. These addresses may be changed by the City or the Grantee by written notice at any
time. At the Effective Date of this Franchise:

Grantee’s address shall be:

Comcast of Colorado/Florida!MichiganlNew Mexico/PennsylvanialWashington, LLC
8000 E. Iliff Ave.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
32



Denver, CO 80231
Attn: Government Affairs Dept.

The City’s address shall be:

City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Ave.
Las Vegas, NM 87701
Attn: City Manager

15.3 Descriptive Headings

The headings and titles of the Sections and subsections of this Franchise are for reference
purposes only, and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of the text herein.

15.4 Binding Effect

This Franchise shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their permitted successors and
assigns.

15.5 No Joint Venture

Nothing herein shall be deemed to create a joint venture or principal-agent relationship
between the parties, and neither party is authorized to, nor shall either party act toward third
Persons or the public in any manner which would indicate any such relationship with the other.

15.6 Waiver

The failure of the City at any time to require performance by the Grantee of any provision
hereof shall in no way affect the right of the City hereafter to enforce the same. Nor shall the
waiver by the City of any breach of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a waiver of any
succeeding breach of such provision, or as a waiver of the provision itself or any other provision.

15.7 Reasonableness of Consent or Approval

Whenever under this Franchise “reasonableness” is the standard for the granting or denial
of the consent or approval of either party hereto, such party shall be entitled to consider public
and governmental policy, moral and ethical standards as well as business and economic
considerations.

15.8 Entire Agreement

This Franchise and all Exhibits represent the entire understanding and agreement between
the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior oral
negotiations between the parties.

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
33



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Franchise is signed in the name of the City of Las Vegas,
New Mexico this day of

________,

2018.

ATTEST: CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO:

City Clerk Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: RECOMMENDED AND APPROVED:

City Attorney City Manager

Accepted and approved this

_____

day of

____________,

2018.

Comcast of Co1oradoIoridafMichiganJNew MexicofPennsyIvaniaRashington, LLC

By: Richard C. Jennings
Its: Regional Senior Vice President, Cable Management

FRANCHISE PROPOSAL FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES
34



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 12/7/18 DEPT: Utilities MEETING DATE: 12/19/18

ITEMITOPIC: Stantec Engineers task order — Utility Rate Study.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval / Disapproval of task order with
Stantec Engineers.

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: Stantec Engineers will be performing a utility rate study
for water, waste water, sanitary and raw water utilities for the City of Las Vegas.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of task order with Stantec for utility rate study.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: This item was discussed at the regular meeting of
the Utility Advisory Committee on December 10, 2018. Their recommendation will be
provided at the Council Meeting.

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK3 OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. AND A HALF WEEI TH
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURULE-GIRON
MAYOR

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT
(FOR BIDIRFP AWARD)

TANA VEGA, INTERIM
FINANCE DIRECTOR
(PROCUREMENT)

ESTHER GARDUNO-MONTOYA,
CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)

RE

/



TASK ORDER - UTILITY RATE STUDY
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR LAS VEGAS WATER

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

Attached to and forming part of the Professional Services Agreement between the City of Las Vegas
(hereinafter called the “City”) -and- Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. (hereinafter called “Stantec”)

This TASK ORLER is issued under the Professional Services Agreement (dated October 19, 2017)
between STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. (“STANTEC”) and the CITY OF LAS VEGAS
(“CITY”) for Services to be provided by STANTEC on the Engineering Services for City of Las Vegas
Utility Rate Study (“Project”), as more fully described below. This Task Order is incorporated into and
part of the Professional Services Agreement (Contract# 3339-17).

The City of Las Vegas hereby authorizes Stantec to proceed with Scope of work: Las Vegas Utility Rate
Study.

Contact Person For City of Las Vegas: Marvin Cordova, Project Manager
mcordova877l 2(mail.com

Contact Person For Stantec Scott Verhines, Senior Principal
scott.verhines(stantec.com
Niva Romero, Client Manager
niva.romero(istantec.com

Services:

Stantec proposes to perform a utility rate study for water, wastewater, sanitary, and raw water utilities for the
City of Las Vegas. The City agrees to provide necessary documentation to complete analysis including prior
studies, existing data, and rate structure. The City also agrees to provide supporting data for the creation of a
model which is anticipated to examine a five-year history of drinking water, reuse water and wastewater, and
sanitation operations, rate class consumption and service characteristics (number and size of containers and
frequency of collection for sanitation), bill history, expense and revenue trends, financial results, capital
requirements, and other financial policies that affect the revenue requirements of each utility system. The total
rate analysis will be composed of seven project tasks: review of rate methodologies, prior studies, and existing
system data; development of a multi-year financial plan based on five-year utility financial history; cost of
service analysis using industry-accepted cost of service allocation methodologies and comparison to revenue
requirements; rate structure review and design; benchmarking analysis comparing recommended rates to local
or peer groups; development of utility impact fees and miscellaneous customer charges; creation of report,
presentations, and ordinance assistance. Customized models, with user manuals and on-site training will be
delivered to the City. Two public presentation of results are included in the scope with additional coordination,
communication, and public involvement to be added as necessary for public engagement and education or as
requested by the City to be charged as time and materials. The preliminary report of results will be delivered
within 30 days of analysis completion. The City will be allowed time for review of the report at which point we
will schedule a meeting to present the report findings. A Final Report incorporating the meeting minutes will
conclude the utility rate analysis.

Additional detail can be found in Attachment A.

Las Vegas Leak Utility Rate Study



TASK ORDER - UTILITY RATE STUDY
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR LAS VEGAS WATER

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

Summary Project Work Plan & Scope of Services

Phase I Subtotal 195 $37,001
Phase II

Develop Multi-Year Financial Plan 140 $22,484
Cost of Service Analysis 163 $26,262
Rate Structure Review and Design 104 $16,753
Impact Fees & Miscellaneous Charges 93 $14,503

Expenses - Phase II $10,890

Phase II Subtotal 500 $90,892
Phase Ill

Task 7 Report, Presentations, & Resolution/Ordinance Assistance

Expenses

Phase Ill Subtotal 165 $32,132
Additional Coordination, Communication, and Public Involvement (T&M) 144 $26,724

Expenses (T&M) $11,262
Additional Coordination Subtotal 144 $37,986

Total Project 1169 $198,011
Total Cost - Rate Analysis & Planning (Lump Sum) $160,025
Total Cost - Coordination, Communication, and Public Involvement (T&M) $37,9.6

Additional detail can be found in attachments B, C, and D.

Fees:

The City will compensate Stantec as follows:

Rate Analysis and Planning

Coordination and Public Involvement

S 160,025 (Lump Sum)

$37,986 (Time and Materials)*

*Time and materials, not to exceed without prior City approval. Fees for this task order are
based on the revised rate schedule (attachment D). Fee does not include applicable taxes.

Stantec

12/3/2018
Date

City of Las Vegas

Date

Task Hours Cost

Phase I

Task 1 Review Rate Methodologies, Prior Studies, and System Data

Task 2 Benchmarking Analysis

Expenses - Phase I

Task 3

Task 4

Task 5

Task 6

69 $11,724

126 $21,523

$3,754

165 $27,402

$4,730

Las Vegas Leak Utility Rate Study’



Attachment “A”: Detailed Scope and Approach
Stantec’s Financial Services practice has completed thousands of similar studies throughout the
country for 250+ communities. Our approach is centered on our proven interactive decision
support process that engages your staff, Council, and key stakeholders, and is integrated with
key facility master planning initiatives as appropriate. While our team will facilitate all aspects of
the study, provide industry expertise, and give specific recommendations, we believe that input
that the City provides is essential to achieving successful outcomes. It is essential for the study to
reflect the unique nature and specific needs of the City, and it is vitally important that the City
and key stakeholders participate along the way. Our interactive process facilitates this input in
an effective manner while providing transparency and a comprehensive look at the utility.

The schematic below outlines the general flow of a typical utility rate study, followed by specific
discussion of each task we will conduct based upon the scope of services finalized with the
City’s specific direction.

Revenue
Requirements

• Operating Costs
• Capital Costs

Financial Policies
• Debt Coverage
• Reserves

Cost
Allocation

• Evaluate Available Data
• Establish Classes
• Identify Methodology
• Compare Results to

Current Revenue

Rate Design

Evaluate Objectives
• Identify Structures
• Set Parameters
• Customer Impacts

MJiiJ.rJ

• Miscellaneous Fees
• Capital Charges
• Benchmarking

• National Trends
• Local Practices

Active Stakeholder Participation

cD



Task 1: Review Rate Methodologies, Prior Studies, and System Data
To begin, we will review the methodology and underlying assumptions employed in prior studies
and compare them to current conditions, existing data and fee structure. We will conduct an
on-site work shop with City staff to discuss key issues or concerns from prior studies, as well as key
elements that you would like to retain going forward. We will gather all data needed to
complete the study and discuss with City staff to ensure full understanding of what we are
working with prior to utilization in the study.

Task 2: Benchmarking Analysis
During this task, we will perform a benchmarking analysis of the rates of local or peer group
communities. We will provide detailed surveys comparing the rates, fees and rate structures of
comparable water, wastewater, and sanitation utilities to the rates recommended during the
study to ensure the recommended rates are aligned with the City’s peers to the extent
appropriate. This will include other utilities of comparable size in New Mexico, similar to the
surveys presented below, completed recently for the City of Saint Petersburg, Florida.

$000 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00 $30.00

$80

Typical Water and Wastewater Bill Comparison

__

L .__

__ __

_-.

Tanpa New Port Dunedin Pauco County Hilisboroagh Pineilas County Oldemar Safety Harbor Clearwater St. Petersburg Tarpon Springe Ouifpo,t
Richey County

FY19 •FYIB

Sanitation and Recycling Monthly Fee Survey

Tampa

(lea rwater

St. Petersburg

Safety liathor

Gu Ilport

Tarpon Springt

Olds mar

Dunedin

l.argo

515.00

Note: Levels/types of service often vary significantly between communities



Moreover, we will also benchmark the financial performance (operational costs, capital
improvement spending, debt levels, remaining asset life, etc.) of the water and wastewater
systems of the City to other utilities. Our team has developed one of the largest repositories of
financial metrics for the US water sector—precisely to help utility managers understand how they
compare to other systems with real data instead of subjective assumptions.

Our data set is completely unbiased with utilities selected randomly from throughout the US and
reflects audited financial information. Our database grows every day, but currently includes 500
agencies, four years of reports, and 100 data points for every year of information reported, to a
total of 200,000 data points that can be filtered and sorted so you can make it all relevant to
you. We provide standard reporting outputs including dozens of typical financial ratios and a
complete common-size set of financial statements. Every ratio and output is easily compared to
industry averages. Customized reporting allows us to create custom league tables comparing
key financial performance indicators for your utility to industry leaders and industry neighbors.

‘“mmary

utilitiwise

— I I I
e. I

‘‘L’ ::=

Task 3: Develop Multi-Year Financial Plan
We will populate the Financial Planning module of our Financial Analysis and Management
System (FAMS-XL) model to develop a long-term financial management plan for the City,
inclusive of projected annual revenue requirements and rate adjustments for each utility system.
Within the model, we anticipate that we will examine a five-year history of drinking water, reuse
water and wastewater, and sanitation operations, rate class consumption and service
characteristics (number and size of containers and frequency of collection for sanitation), bill
history, expense and revenue trends, financial results, capital requirements, and other financial
policies that affect the revenue requirements of each utility system.

We will then analyze and project expected revenues, expenses and capital costs, based on
data and discussions with City staff, and the results of related planning documents. This will



include projections in 5-year, 10-year, 15-year and 20-year plans. We will determine the
adequacy of rates and charges to fully recover the cost of providing senilce, including capital
improvement funding analysis and compliance analysis.

In addition to evaluating financial goals and objectives, we will also evaluate alternative
demand projections (including those developed in the Master Plan), cost escalatV’n factors,
changes in usage patterns, elasticity of customer demand in response to rate increases,
participation in green” initiatives/programs for sanitation, and other variables that could affect
the financial performance of each utility.

One item of particular importance in a water resource utility’s financial plan is the projection of
volumetric sales, especially as it relates to the possibility of adopting rate structure changes.
Water consumption patterns are influenced by price signals, and this change in customer
behavior can be enhanced by other non-price factors, such as rainfall and economic
conditions. We will incorporate estimates of price elasticity and analyze estimates of the
probable range of responses to different degrees of rate increases and rate structure changes.
We will also evaluate historical rainfall patterns, and to the extent that the test year upon which
our revenue projections are based reflects abnormal rainfall, we will normalize” our projections
based upon normal rainfall. Prudent planning requires that utilities prepare for reductions and
changes in demand patterns, and such planning will be incorporated to achieve financial
targets and maintenance of fund balances.

The financial planning module provides a valuable capital planning tool which we will use to
integrate and inform the capital improvement schedule, and to evaluate the impacts of
alternative projects, costs, timing, and funding sources. For all scenarios reviewed, the financial
planning module will develop a funding plan, using the capital funding optimization function of
the model, to identify the amount, timing, and type of borrowing required as may be necessary.
We will examine the utility’s use of debt versus cash financing for capital improvements and
build a financing plan to support a •DebtCIP Funding Sourcesproper balance of debt coverage and Operating

a Capital Reserve Fundrate stabilization over the planning $70M
period. A key feature of the model is $60M

$50Mour ability to evaluate key metrics of
financial performance. We are very $30M
familiar with the criteria that the rating $20M
agencies are currently using, such as $10M

new matrices and scorecards to $0M

________

evaluate financial performance.

__________________________________________

Proceeds

L 17 18 19 2O 21fl567,

Closely related to this analysis is an examination of adequacy of reserves for operGting and
capital projects. Adequate reserves are fundamental to achieving financial stability, and can
help avoid sudden or disruptive rate adjustments in the face of unanticipated operating or
capital needs or changes in demand for service. We will examine the City’s fund balances and
incorporate these balances and alternative reserve policies into the financial planning model
and the conversations we will have regarding financial sustainability.



We have the ability to evaluate scenarios specific to our clients, such as the acquisition,
expansion or disposal of service areas, impacts of new programs, and operational changes. We
will work closely with your staff to review the financial and rate impacts of these scenarios, and
incorporate them into the financial plan such that any rate impacts can be fully visualized,
recognized and planned for accordingly.

An example of a control panel/interactive dashboard from our revenue sufficiency and
financial planning module used for the development of a ten-year financial plan far a water
and wastewater system is presented below. The green bars and panels represent the “last”
scenario evaluated, which was “just-in-time” rates, resulting in varying increases throughout the
forecast starting in FY 2023. The blue bars and panels
represent the “active” scenario, which includes a level
plan of annual rate increases starting in FY20 19. The
graph shows that the financial consequences of the
earlier “level” plan of rate increases in the “active’
scenario are acceptable, and that the rate increases
provide smaller, more predictable customer impacts.

FAMS-XL User Manual

Revenue Sulficiency and Financial Fovecosting Model

St,rntev

CIP Funding

525M

52DM

SI5M

51DM

ElM

$OM

PY2025 FY2926
Ovetride

Water Rate Plan
Last Plan

Cvernde
Sewer Rate Plan

Last Plan

AI.ln Debt Coverage
Last Plan

Scenarlø Managetstevt

ClPtuecu’ort% 100% 00%

Ose’ 9ese’ue Mos 4 5
0GM Execution % 95% 95%

Avg Bill (3,000 gall
last Plan
ChangeS

FY 2028 Fl’ 2022 FY 2027

CumulatIve
3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 13.65% 33.40%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.04% 6.45% 8.54% 8.06% 8.38% 7.78% 0.00% 40.29%

3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 13.69% 33.35%
0.00% 0.00% x8o

- 0110% 4.04% 6.42% 8.57% 8,12% 844% 7.80% 0.00% 40.29%
4.35 479 4.34 4.13 389 3.50 2.96 2.52 2.19 1.94 1 74
4.35 4.4/ 3.71 3.20 2.66 2.32 2.05 J9I 1.82 J,77- 1.74

$85.68 $88.46 591.34 $94.32 $97.38 5100.53 5103.79 5107 16 $110.66 5114.26 5117.97
$85.68 $85.68 $85.68 $85.68 $85.68 $89.16 $94.82 $102.81 $111.09 $120.34 $129.55

100% 00% 00% l 00% 100% 100% 00% 00%
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

52.75

lackfiav’ Yes
Ftog,o,n?

$3.88 52.98 $3116 $3.15 $326 $3.37 $3.50 $360 $3.71

ROE Tipe
cl’e,k

I Opera*ng Fund C..,rx,,l Tue iou legxl Rev vs. Exp — cdl., —Cet, o, CIP Spending
•Covnt Pta, •Lo,t Pie,

Cal, Qot
53GM

540M
— 93DM

52DM — — Hiiiiiiiil
520M $30M 52GM

SIOM 91DM
DIEM

SuM
DOM SuM

17 8 9 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 28 27 28 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 28 27 28

lPlantCapaclty Fund Balance

5358

(41

IC.,,.,’ Pie, ILe,Ple,

EE luilillIlO
17 9 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Borrowing
•S.t,u’d.,uv •‘u,ruEo,d, liouFlo,

$2058

5MM

5E 1iiiiiiIIII
• -—bl
0ou’rt,iCal,

15 19 20 21 02 23 34 25 26 21 25

‘Ii.. iii 111:1
18 19 20 21 23 23 24 25 26 27 28



At the conclusion of the study, we will provide you with the financial planning models at no
additional cost. The model you will receive for each utility is a fully functioning Excel-based
model that can be used by staff for future updates. We do require that you sign a usage and
non-disclosure agreement for our model. Within the agreement, we typically identify the
parameters for any future maintenance, updates, and support services that you may desire.
Upon request, we can provide a sample agreement that we have used with our clients.

We will prepare a customized user manual for each model as well as onsite training for staff to
ensure future beneficial use of the modeling system. For each tab of the model, the user manual
presents the purpose and important features, describes how to update each tab, and identifies
other tabs within the model that are dependent upon or linked to each tab.

Task 4: Cost of Service Analysis
To begin the cost of service portion of the study, we will compile and review all available system
data in order to determine the best cost of service allocation approaches. Using our modeling
tools, we will allocate the total cost of service and revenue requirements identified in Task 3 for
each utility system to functional components. Each system’s cost of service and revenue
requirements are functionalized to defined segments, which are then allocated to each class of
customer based upon the characteristics or units of service (such as average day, max day, or
peak hour demands, or container size and frequency of pickup for sanitation) of each class of
customer. We are likely to utilize the Base-Extra Capacity approach for water, and a system-
function basis for wastewater and sanitation, but as with all key decisions, our approach will
reflect your unique conditions. An example of typical functions and customer classes for each
utility system are presented below. System functions, units of service, and customer classes are
unique to each community and would be determined for the City based upon a review of its
system/user data, but this image suggests the types of allocations commonly performed.

Sanitation Cost of Service Water Cost of Service Wostewater Cost of Service

Source of Supply Treatment & Disposal
.2 - Collection I
t I o Treatment I Collection

I I 0
- Disposal —‘ Transmission I Reclaimed Water

—. Pumping L_.> —‘ chemical Oxygen Demand
- Containers

—‘ Metering Suspended Solids

- Residential Single-Family Res. Phosphorus

B Multi-Family Res. Ammonia
- Commercial I 5

I —
—‘ Commercial I — Single-Family Res.

2 L...W I
°

- Roll-Off E —‘ Irrigation I B -. Multi-Family Res.
0 ID Wholesale I -. Commercialo —

- BulkBrush
General Service E — Industrial

0
-. Wholesale

o
-. Reclaimed Water

As indicated, we will identify the most appropriate industry-accepted cost of service allocation
methodologies (as defined by the AWWA, WEF, EPA, and other industry sources) based upon
available data, legal requirements, system configuration, service agreements, resources,
customer usage characteristics, local practice, and public policy objectives. Regardless of the



methodology selected, we will be able to establish the cost of providing retail, wholesale, and
other services, including the cost of providing raw/untreated water.

At the conclusion of the cost allocation analysis, we compare the resulting allocation of revenue
requirements to the revenue generated by the current rates for each customer class. To the
extent current revenue recovery levels are not in line with the cost of service allocations, we
evaluate alternative levels of revenue recovery by class of customer within the rato structure
analysis that would better comport with the identified cost of service allocations. The objective
is establishing and demonstrating equity in cost recovery by class, which is fundamental to
maintaining a resilient rate structure over the long term.

$21.67 $21.15

$15.35

$13.66

Variance
$1.69M Variance
12.3% 58.04 $1.30M

31.8%
$5.63

Variance
-$2.41M
l30.0%

Mul titami ly

Task 5: Rote Structure Review and Design
At this point, we will also perform an independent review of the current rate structures for each
customer class and examine rate structure modifications using our rate design module. The rate
structure will be evaluated to determine if there are opportunities to improve fiscal stability or to
meet other public policy objectives relating to fixed cost recovery, conservation, waste
diversion, and affordability, while ensuring a fair and equitable distribution of costs, and
conformance to accepted industry practice, legal precedent, and bulk service agreements.

We will also evaluate the specific distribution/assignment of costs to the fixed and variable
components of the rate structure, and will make recommendations that are consistent with your
cost recovery objectives and consider your reserve policies as well as revenue stability,
conservation, waste diversion, and affordability objectives. Our interactive modeling process
gives us the ability to facilitate your discussion and understanding of alternative conservation
rate structures (including conservation block or tier size changes), and facilitates the creation of
a sound and workable solution that can be easily communicated to stakeholders.

Residential Non-Residential Water Only



Crop Type

x

Parcel Size: 8,000
Landscape Area: 2,000

Evapotranspiration:
81 Inches

Beneficial Rainfall:
4 Inches Irrigation System

Efficiency: 70%

Parcel Size: 8,000
Landscape Area: 2,000

Gallons per Month

The following example identifies the presentation of the impact of a new rate structure in terms
of the resulting dollar change in a typical residential quarterly bill for water and sewer service.

Residential Quarterly Bill Impact
Example 1

5/8” meter with water and sewer service
Two person household with minimal outdoor water use
8 CCF per quarter

$80.69

Variance:
$14.67
22.2%

$66.02

Current Proposed

8 CCF = 5,984 Gallons

0-6000 6,001-12,000 12,001-20,000

I
Prices shown net 10% on time payment discount



Note that our presentation of customer bill impacts is based on our pattern of acquiring and
analyzing an extensive database from our client’s billing systems. We are careful to understand
the way that billing systems actually store information and process meter reading data to
calculate and generate bills. Our rate analysis is always conducted with an awareness of the
limitations (or opportunities) of your billing system and full knowledge of impacts to all customers.

This portion of the project provides the opportunity to evaluate impacts on low income
customers. The question of rate affordability is receiving increasing attention in recent years as
more and more utilities begin to approach full cost recovery through rates, and as the
percentage of household budgets devoted to utility expenses continues to rise.

Task 6: Impact Fees & Miscellaneous Charges
Our modeling system also includes a system development charges module that is used to
calculate capital cost recovery fees (often referred to as capital contribution charges, impact
fees or connection fees). The system development charges module is adjusted for each client to
reflect the specific system configuration, available data, and local legal requirements. We will
review all data relative to the system to determine the portion of the costs eligible for recovery
from system development charges and the appropriate methodology to calculate the fees.

We will then provide recommendations related to impact fees based on the analysis of the
available data and financial impacts/benefits of such fees. We will provide a comparative fee
survey of other localities in the region, and evaluate alternative levels of fees in the context of
consistency with industry practice and the capital needs of the water/raw water, wastewater,
and solid waste systems.

Our modeling system also includes a miscellaneous service charge template that is used to
calculate miscellaneous charges and fees. During this portion of the study, we will review the
City’s existing fees, including plan review fees, construction inspection fees, connection/tap fees
and other service fees, and current utility operations, to determine it any additional fees or
charges are appropriate based upon our knowledge of accepted industry practice.

Affordable



Specifically, we will interview staff relative to unit costs and staff time, provide a customized and
partially populated template to staff, and instruct staff on how to use the template to finalize
cost of service based fees for each service. Upon completion of staff’s calculations, we will
review the template and provide recommended adjustments, and will also provide assistance
with any necessary ordinance or resolution updates that may be required.

This portion of the study will also include a detailed review of existing extra strength surcharges
that will build upon the cost of service allocations from Task 4. Specifically, we will isolate the
treatment portion of the wastewater expenses and allocate those costs to each of the
respective treatment processes. The costs of each process will then be allocated between flow
and each of the strength parameter, and ultimately aggregated to determine updated unit
costs. It is important to analyze a utility’s extra strength surcharges periodically, but many
systems have tended to leave these charges unchanged for extended periods. Changes in
both the nature and volumes of industrial/wholesale demands or in treatment standards often
necessitate revisions to these charges to preserve equity in cost recovery. We recently
conducted an industrial wastewater surcharge analysis for the City of Plant City, Florida to
update the cost allocation to each waste parameter to reflect recent treatment facility
expansion and technology enhancements that improved the quality of treated wastewater
effluent and changed the appropriate distribution of costs among users.

Task 7: Report, Presentations & Resolution/Ordinance Assistance
Public support for rate design depends on whether or not the public perceives the utility as
taking their interests to heart, and the rates as fair. We recognize that rates play an important
role in supporting public engagement and support of the utility overall, and we know that
presenting the results of rate work is not merely a ‘checkbox” exercise.

Developing or enhancing public support requires openness and a high degree of clarity in all
presentations and discussions at public hearings. Minor misunderstandings of the underlying
rationale for a selected approach can cause disproportionate dissatisfaction with any proposed
change in rates. We know that our support is not complete until the City has been able to
adopt and implement any rate or fee changes desired as a result of the project, so we
communicate with that end in mind from beginning to end. We often engage governing
boards and key stakeholders at the beginning of the project, and then again in the finalization
of the process to provide these community leaders an advance understanding of the rates and
make subsequent public discourse less confused.

Higher and lower levels of involvement for elected officials can be appropriate in different
circumstances, but staff involvement in the way we communicate study results is cways critical.
Throughout the conduct of the Study, our project team will work closely with City staff to prepare
for and present meetings at critical points during the study process. At the conclusion of the
study, we will first prepare a draft report, provide it to City staff for comment, and then
incorporate any edits into a final report. We will then present the results at various meetings
determined by City staff, including presentations to the City Council.

We have worked in many locations and with utilities facing a wide variety of circumstances. Our
industry experience helps us to help you communicate the right level of detail in the right way to



meet the City’s objectives. In some cases, we have developed extensive outreach programs to
address a wide variety of concerns, sometimes ranging beyond issues related to rates and
charges. In other cases, very focused and brief communications provide the best approach.

We will help you communicate the information most important for customers to understand:

• The City keeps your water safe, protects the environment and supports the local economy.

• The costs of facilities and services are allocated fairly, reflecting use of the City’s systems.

• Rates and charges must recover the full costs of service to keep the systems functioning
over the long term while considering affordability and promoting conservation



it
ta

c
h
m

e
n
t

‘B
”

D
et

ai
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
W

or
k

P
la

n
&

S
co

p
e

of
S

er
v

ic
es

a
s
k

.
w

ev
ie

w
R

at
e

M
et

h
o

d
o

lo
:

es
ric

’r
S

tu
d
ie

s,
a
n
d

S
y

st
em

D
at

a
1.

1
P

re
pa

re
ti

m
el

in
e

fo
r

ta
sk

pl
an

,
in

iti
al

da
ta

re
q
u
es

t
lis

t,
an

d
ca

le
nd

ar
in

g
of

ke
y

m
il

es
to

ne
s.

P
er

fo
rm

jo
b

se
t-

up
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

.
1.

2
R

ev
ie

w
in

iti
al

da
ta

,
pr

io
r

st
ud

ie
s,

cu
rr

en
t

co
nd

it
io

ns
,

ex
is

ti
ng

fe
e

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
an

d
ot

he
r

do
cu

m
en

ta
ti

on
pr

ov
id

ed
by

st
af

f
an

d
su

bm
it

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l
re

q
u
es

ts
.

1.
3

R
ev

ie
w

an
d

ev
al

ua
te

fi
xe

d
as

se
t,

G
IS

,
an

d
bi

lli
ng

sy
st

em
d

at
as

et
s.

P
er

fo
rm

qu
al

ity
re

vi
ew

an
d

d
is

cu
ss

w
ith

st
af

f.
1.

4
C

on
du

ct
an

on
-s

it
e

w
or

ks
ho

p
fo

r
C

ity
st

af
f

to
d

is
cu

ss
co

nc
er

ns
fr

om
pr

io
r

st
ud

ie
s,

in
du

st
ry

is
su

es
an

d
tr

en
ds

,
th

e
ra

te
st

ud
y

pr
oc

es
s,

pr
ov

id
e

an
in

tr
od

uc
ti

on
to

th
e

C
ity

an
d

ho
w

yo
u

co
m

pa
re

lo
ca

lly
an

d
na

tio
na

lly
,

an
d

te
e-

up
co

st
re

co
ve

ry
co

nc
ep

ts
,

is
su

es
,

po
te

nt
ia

l
m

od
if

ic
at

io
ns

,
et

c.
fo

r
C

ity
in

pu
t.

7 7

9 2 0 5

2’ 2 2 9 2 2 2 4

0 0 0 2

4
10 15 17 27

2

0 0 0

T
as

k
2

B
en

ch
m

ar
k
in

g
A

n
al

y
si

s
2.

1
Id

en
tit

y
lis

t
of

lo
ca

l
an

d
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e
sy

st
em

s
fo

r
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
pu

rp
os

es
.

P
re

pa
re

su
m

m
ar

y
st

at
is

ti
ca

l
co

m
pa

ri
so

n.
2.

2
G

at
he

r
an

d
an

al
yz

e
fi

na
nc

ia
l

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

da
ta

fo
r

se
le

ct
ed

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e

an
d

lo
ca

l
ut

ili
tie

s
us

in
g

ou
r

U
til

iti
W

is
e

so
ft

w
ar

e.
2.

3
P

re
pa

re
su

rv
ey

s
of

co
st

re
co

ve
ry

st
ru

ct
ur

es
an

d
fi

na
nc

ia
l/

ex
pa

ns
io

n
po

li
ci

es
to

co
m

pa
re

C
ity

’s
m

ec
h
an

is
m

s
&

po
li

ci
es

.
2.

4
C

on
du

ct
de

ta
il

ed
ev

al
ua

ti
on

of
C

ity
’s

co
st

re
co

ve
ry

m
ec

h
an

is
m

s
fo

r
al

l
cu

st
om

er
cl

as
se

s
to

id
en

tif
y

st
re

n
g
th

s
an

d
w

ea
k
n
es

se
s

in
te

rm
s

of
bu

t
no

t
lim

ite
d

to
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

cr
it

er
ia

:
a.

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

w
ith

le
ga

l
p
re

ce
d
en

t
an

d
ge

ne
ra

ll
y

ac
ce

p
te

d
in

du
st

ry
pr

ac
ti

ce
(n

at
io

na
l

an
d

lo
ca

l)
.

b.
Fa

ir
an

d
eq

ui
ta

bl
e

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

of
co

st
s

to
cu

st
o
m

er
s

in
pr

op
or

ti
on

to
th

e
be

ne
fi

t
re

ce
iv

ed
an

d
de

m
an

d
on

th
e

sy
st

em
.

c.
C

on
si

st
en

cy
w

ith
po

li
ci

es
an

d
ob

je
ct

iv
es

re
ga

rd
in

g
su

ch
th

in
gs

as
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
,

co
ns

er
va

ti
on

,
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
et

c.
d.

F
is

ca
l

st
ab

ili
ty

/r
is

k
of

th
e

ut
ili

ty
.

e.
E

as
e

of
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
an

d
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g

to
C

ity
st

af
f

an
d

cu
st

om
er

s.
2.

5
In

te
rn

al
re

vi
ew

of
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
re

su
lt

s
&

ev
al

ua
ti

on
of

C
ity

’s
co

st
re

co
ve

ry
st

ru
ct

ur
es

.
Id

en
tif

y
to

pi
cs

fo
r

re
vi

ew
w

ith
st

af
f.

2.
6

P
re

pa
re

su
m

m
ar

y
of

in
iti

al
fi

nd
in

gs
fo

r
re

vi
ew

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f,
in

cl
ud

in
g

po
te

nt
ia

l
m

od
if

ic
at

io
ns

fo
r

di
sc

us
si

on
.

2.
7

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
re

vi
ew

in
iti

al
re

su
lt

s
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

vi
a

w
eb

co
nf

er
en

ce
.

2.
8

P
er

fo
rm

ad
di

ti
on

al
re

se
ar

ch
an

d
m

od
if

y
ev

al
ua

ti
on

b
as

ed
up

on
in

pu
t

re
ce

iv
ed

fr
om

C
ity

st
af

f.
2.

9
P

re
pa

re
fo

r
an

d
p
re

se
n
t

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

fi
nd

in
gs

an
d

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
to

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il.

P
h
as

e
II:

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
M

et
h
o
d
s

fo
r

F
ai

r
an

d
E

q
u

it
ab

le
R

at
es

T
as

k
3

)e
v
e
lo

p
M

ul
ti

-Y
ea

r
F

in
an

ci
al

P
la

n
3.

1
P

re
pa

re
cu

st
om

er
an

d
de

m
an

d
an

al
y

se
s

fo
r

ea
ch

se
rv

ic
e

to
de

te
rm

in
e

pr
oj

ec
te

d
gr

ow
th

,
tr

en
ds

in
u
sa

g
e

pa
tt

er
ns

,
id

en
ti

ty
pe

ak
d
em

an
d
s

an
d

th
e

d
em

an
d

s
pl

ac
ed

on
th

e
sy

st
em

,
an

d
to

ta
l

pr
oj

ec
te

d
cu

st
om

er
s,

eq
ui

va
le

nt
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
co

nn
ec

ti
on

s/
un

it
s,

an
d

u
sa

g
e.

3.
2

In
pu

t
fi

na
nc

ia
,

an
d

bi
lli

ng
da

ta
in

to
ou

r
FA

M
t-

X
1

fi
na

nc
ia

l
pl

an
ni

ng
m

od
ul

e
(s

ep
ar

at
e

m
od

ul
es

fo
r

w
at

er
/r

aw
w

at
er

,
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

so
lid

w
as

te
),

ru
n

th
e

m
od

ul
es

,
an

d
pr

od
uc

e
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
ou

tp
ut

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

a
lo

ng
-t

er
m

fi
na

nc
ia

l
m

an
ag

em
en

t
pr

og
ra

m
fo

r
ea

ch
en

te
rp

ri
se

fu
nd

th
at

w
ill

in
cl

ud
e

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g:
o

R
at

e
R

ev
en

ue
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
fo

r
5-

ye
ar

,
10

-y
ea

r,
15

-y
ea

r,
an

d
20

-y
ea

r
pr

oj
ec

ti
on

pe
ri

od
s

o
E

xa
m

in
at

io
n

of
hi

st
or

ic
al

an
d

pr
oj

ec
te

d
ex

p
en

se
s

(o
pe

ra
ti

ng
,

ca
pi

ta
l,

an
d

eq
ui

pm
en

t)
an

d
re

ve
nu

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
o

C
ap

ita
l

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

P
ro

gr
am

an
d

C
ap

it
al

F
in

an
ci

ng
P

la
n

-
P

ro
je

ct
lis

tin
g

by
ye

ar
,

in
cl

ud
in

g
in

te
gr

at
io

n
of

S
pe

ci
fi

c
sc

en
ar

io
s

as
re

qu
ir

ed
-

A
lt

er
na

ti
ve

fu
nd

in
g

so
u

rc
es

fo
r

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
oj

ec
ts

-
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

of
a

ca
pi

ta
l

fi
na

nc
in

g
pl

an
,

in
cl

ud
in

g
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
on

of
tim

in
g

an
d

am
ou

nt
of

bo
rr

ow
in

g
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
o

R
or

ro
w

in
o

Pr
nc

ir
am

2 3 5 3 5 5 18

2 7 7 2 4 2 0 3 2

27

4 2 3 0 7 2 0

0 0 0 2 2 0 0

4 4 3 7 3 0

0 5 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0

8 19
’

18 15 16 13 11 8 18 14 45

0 0 0 0 0 0



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
“B

’
D

et
ai

le
d

P
ro

je
ct

W
or

k
P

la
n

&
S

co
p
e

of
S

er
v
ic

es

B
or

ro
w

in
g

re
qu

ir
ed

(b
y

so
u
rc

e)
to

fu
nd

C
IP

pr
oj

ec
ts

no
t

fu
nd

ed
by

ot
he

r
so

u
rc

es
to

in
cl

ud
e

bu
t

no
t

n
ec

es
sa

ri
ly

be
lim

ite
d

to
re

ve
nu

e
bo

nd
s,

S
ta

te
or

ot
he

r
pr

og
ra

m
s

or
ba

nk
lo

an
s

-
T

im
in

g
of

bo
nd

is
su

e(
s)

/l
oa

n(
s)

to
pr

ov
id

e
re

qu
ir

ed
bo

rr
ow

ed
fu

nd
s

-
A

nn
ua

l
de

bt
se

rv
ic

e
of

bo
nd

is
su

e(
s)

/l
oa

n(
s)

o
R

ev
en

ue
Su

ff
ic

ie
nc

y
A

na
ly

si
s,

in
cl

ud
in

g
C

as
h

Fl
ow

s
-

A
nn

ua
l

re
ve

nu
e

pr
oj

ec
ti

on
s,

in
cl

ud
e

a
br

ea
kd

ow
n

of
re

ve
nu

es
fr

om
sa

le
of

se
rv

ic
es

,
ca

pi
ta

l
fe

es
&

ot
he

r
re

v
en

u
es

-
A

nn
ua

l
op

er
at

io
ns

an
d

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
ex

p
en

se
pr

oj
ec

ti
on

s
-

A
ll

ot
he

r
an

nu
al

re
ve

nu
e

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

su
ch

as
re

ne
w

al
an

d
re

pl
ac

em
en

t,
m

in
or

ca
pi

ta
l,

tr
an

sf
er

s
to

ot
he

r
fu

nd
s,

cu
rr

en
t

de
bt

se
rv

ic
e/

lo
an

pa
ym

en
ts

,
re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t

of
re

se
rv

es
,

et
c.

o
S

o
u
rc

es
an

d
U

se
s

of
F

un
ds

A
na

ly
si

s
-

B
eg

in
ni

ng
an

d
en

di
ng

fu
nd

s
b
al

an
ce

s
by

fu
nd

by
ye

ar
3.

3
R

ev
ie

w
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
po

li
ci

es
fo

r
va

ri
ou

s
re

se
rv

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
an

d
pr

ov
id

e
sp

ec
if

ic
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s

fo
r

re
se

rv
e

3.
4

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
to

th
e

m
od

el
s

as
re

qu
ir

ed
in

or
de

r
to

si
m

ul
at

e
th

e
ut

ili
ty

’s
cu

rr
en

t
an

d/
or

sp
ec

if
ic

fi
na

nc
ia

l
dy

na
m

ic
s.

3.
5

P
er

fo
rm

qu
al

ity
co

nt
ro

l
re

vi
ew

an
d

m
ak

e
re

qu
ir

ed
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
,

re
co

nc
il

e
to

st
af

f
fo

re
ca

st
s,

an
d

p
re

p
ar

e
sc

en
ar

io
s.

3.
6

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

an
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

3.
7

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
an

d
di

st
ri

bu
te

w
or

kb
oo

k
of

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

,
in

pu
ts

,
an

d
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s
fo

r
st

af
f

re
vi

ew
.

3.
8

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

se
co

nd
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

ad
ju

st
ed

re
su

lt
s.

3.
9

P
er

fo
rm

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

pe
r

in
pu

t
fr

om
C

ity
st

af
f

an
d

de
te

rm
in

e
pl

an
of

ra
te

an
nu

al
re

ve
nu

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
an

d
re

ve
nu

e

T
as

k
4

s’
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

A
n

cl
y

si
s

4.
1

Id
en

tif
y

al
l

te
st

ye
ar

co
st

s/
re

v
en

u
e

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

as
so

ci
at

ed
w

ith
th

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
w

at
er

an
d

sa
ni

ta
ry

se
w

er
se

rv
ic

e
fr

om
4.

2
A

na
ly

ze
th

e
C

ity
’s

bi
lli

ng
co

ns
um

pt
io

n
re

co
rd

s,
G

IS
da

ta
,

se
rv

ic
e

ar
ea

,
ex

is
ti

ng
ag

re
em

en
ts

,
an

d
ex

is
ti

ng
cu

st
o
m

er
4.

3
Id

en
tif

y
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
sy

st
em

fu
nc

ti
on

al
co

m
po

ne
nt

s
an

d
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
co

st
of

se
rv

ic
e

al
lo

ca
ti

on
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
(p

er
A

W
W

A
4.

4
A

ll
oc

at
e

co
st

s
&

of
fs

et
ti

ng
re

ve
nu

e
to

fu
nc

ti
on

al
co

m
po

ne
nt

s
of

ea
ch

ut
ili

ty
an

d
de

te
rm

in
e

un
it

co
st

of
ea

ch
fu

nc
ti

on
.

4,
5

A
ll

oc
at

e
co

st
s

an
d

of
fs

et
ti

ng
re

v
en

u
e

of
ea

ch
fu

nc
ti

on
al

co
m

po
ne

nt
to

id
en

tif
ie

d
re

ta
il

an
d

w
ho

le
sa

le
an

d
ot

he
r

cu
st

o
m

er
cl

as
se

s
b
as

ed
up

on
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
cu

st
o
m

er
cl

as
s

ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s/

cr
it

er
ia

,
po

te
nt

ia
ll

y
in

cl
ud

in
g

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
lo

ca
ti

on
.

4.
6

C
om

pa
re

al
lo

ca
te

d
co

st
s/

re
v

en
u

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
by

cu
st

om
er

cl
as

s
an

d
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

ar
ea

to
re

ve
nu

e
g
en

er
at

ed
by

ex
is

ti
ng

ra
te

s.
Id

en
tif

y
eq

ui
ta

bl
e

co
st

al
lo

ca
ti

on
s

an
d

re
co

ve
ry

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
,

co
ns

id
er

in
g

su
ch

th
in

gs
w

at
er

,
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

an
d

sa
ni

ta
ti

on
n
ee

d
s,

fu
tu

re
n
ee

d
s,

et
c.

4.
7

In
te

rn
al

qu
al

it
y

co
nt

ro
l

re
vi

ew
of

re
su

lt
s

w
ith

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
te

am
,

m
ak

e
re

qu
ir

ed
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
,

an
d

id
en

tif
y

ke
y

it
em

s
fo

r
st

af
f.

4.
8

P
re

pa
re

fo
r

an
d

m
ee

t
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

in
an

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

w
or

k
se

ss
io

n
to

re
vi

ew
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s.
4.

9
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

as
re

qu
ir

ed
b

as
ed

up
on

in
pu

t
fr

om
C

ity
st

af
f

an
d

di
st

ri
bu

te
w

or
kb

oo
ks

of
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s.
4.

10
P

re
pa

re
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

se
co

nd
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

vi
a

G
oT

oM
ee

ti
ng

to
re

vi
ew

ad
ju

st
ed

re
su

lt
s.

4.
11

P
er

fo
rm

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

as
re

qu
ir

ed
pe

r
C

ity
st

af
f

in
pu

t
an

d
fi

na
liz

e
co

st
al

lo
ca

ti
on

an
al

ys
is

.

T
0

.
]t

e
S

tr
u
ct

u
re

R
ev

ie
w

a
n
d

D
es

ig
n

5.
1

D
ev

el
op

U
se

r
F

ee
s

(B
as

e
R

at
es

&
U

sa
g
e

R
at

es
):

a.
L

oa
d

bi
lli

ng
hi

st
or

y
d
at

a
in

to
ou

r
FA

M
S-

X
L

ra
te

m
od

el
an

d
cr

ea
te

a
bi

ll
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

an
al

ys
is

.
b.

C
o
n
d
u
ct

s
re

ve
nu

e
te

st
to

en
su

re
ac

cu
ra

cy
of

bi
lli

ng
da

ta
,

an
d

re
vi

ew
lo

ca
l

d
at

a
re

la
ti

ve
to

ho
us

eh
ol

d
si

ze
an

d
ir

ri
ga

tio
n

n
ee

d
s

fo
r

va
ri

ou
s

lo
t

si
ze

s
an

d
tu

rf
ty

pe
s.

c.
S

et
up

th
e

ra
te

m
od

el
pe

r
th

e
re

su
lt

s
in

T
as

k
2,

an
d

th
e

co
st

al
lo

ca
ti

on
s

of
T

as
k

3.
d.

R
un

th
e

m
od

el
an

d
p
re

p
ar

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
ra

te
st

ru
ct

ur
es

co
ns

is
te

nt
w

ith
co

n
ce

p
ts

/m
et

h
o
d
s

id
en

ti
fi

ed
in

T
as

k
2.

e.
P

re
p

ar
e

an
im

pa
ct

an
al

ys
is

to
co

m
p
ar

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
w

at
er

,
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

sa
ni

ta
ti

on
,

an
d

ra
w

w
at

er
ra

te
s

fo
r

ea
ch

cu
st

o
m

er
cl

as
s

to
cu

rr
en

t
ra

te
s.

f.
In

te
rn

al
ct

ua
lit

v
co

nt
ro

l
re

vi
ew

of
re

su
lt

s
w

ith
co

ns
ul

ti
ng

te
am

,
an

d
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
of

ad
iu

st
m

en
ts

as
re

gu
ir

ed
.

2 2 3 9 3

2 5 5 0 7
—

In
cl

ud
ed

in
2

0 0 0

T
as

k
4. 0

0 0

2
0 0’

0

2 3 2 4 3

2 9 2 13 9

0 0 0

0 0

0 0 0 0 0

2 7 2 9 7 3 4 9 5 2 2 4 3 5 3 5

2 9 0 0 0 0

2 3 9 2 0 0 2 2 2

4 7 0 7
-
-

In
cl

ud
ed

in
4, 7 4 4 7 4 5

0 0

T
as

k
5. 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7, 9 8 9 17 11 15



A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t

“B
D

et
ai

le
d

P
ro

je
ct

W
or

k
P

la
n

8.
S

co
p
e

of
S

er
v

ic
es

0 8 0
8

0 0

0 0 0

2 8 2 2 2 2 2

-
-

In
cl

ud
ed

in
T

as
k

4
.8

--
3

0
o

o
2

0

2
1

4
0

2
1

2’
1

5
0

2
0

5
0

o
i

2
0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0

5.
4

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

an
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

5.
5

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
b
as

ed
up

on
in

pu
t

fr
om

C
ity

st
af

f
in

th
e

pr
io

r
su

b-
ta

sk
an

d
di

st
ri

bu
te

w
or

kb
oo

k
of

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

5.
6

M
ee

t
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

in
se

co
nd

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

w
or

k
se

ss
io

n
to

re
vi

ew
ad

ju
st

ed
re

su
lt

s.
5.

7
P

er
fo

rm
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
pe

r
C

ity
st

af
f

in
pu

t
an

d
fi

na
liz

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
ra

te
/f

ee
st

ru
ct

ur
e

op
ti

on
s,

in
cl

ud
in

g
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

pl
an

.

Ic
ls

k
6

Im
p

ac
t

F
ee

s
8.

M
I
s
c
:i

o
u

s
C

n
ar

g
es

6.
1

D
ev

el
op

C
ap

it
al

C
os

t
R

ec
ov

er
y

F
ee

s:
a.

O
bt

ai
n

an
d

re
vi

ew
al

l
or

di
na

nc
es

,
m

as
te

r
pl

an
,

ca
pi

ta
l

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

da
ta

,
ca

pa
ci

ty
re

po
rt

s,
an

d
w

at
er

ri
gh

ts
da

ta
.

b.
P

re
p

ar
e

re
pr

od
uc

ti
on

co
st

sc
he

du
le

of
fi

xe
d

as
se

ts
by

m
aj

or
sy

st
em

co
m

po
ne

nt
.

c.
R

ev
ie

w
ex

is
ti

ng
C

IP
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

to
de

te
rm

in
e

po
rt

io
n

of
pr

oj
ec

ts
fo

r
ex

p
an

d
ed

ca
pa

ci
ty

v
er

su
s

re
ne

w
al

an
d

d.
A

ll
oc

at
e

fi
xe

d
as

se
ts

be
tw

ee
n

fa
ci

lit
y

co
m

po
ne

nt
s

of
su

pp
ly

,
tr

ea
tm

en
t,

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

lc
ol

le
ct

io
n,

di
sp

os
al

,
et

c.
e.

L
oa

d
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
d
at

a
in

to
ou

r
co

nn
ec

ti
on

fe
e

m
od

ul
e,

ad
ju

st
an

d
ca

li
br

at
e,

an
d

pr
od

uc
e

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

f.
L

in
k

ca
pa

ci
ty

fe
e

m
od

ul
e

w
ith

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
fo

re
ca

st
m

od
ul

e
of

T
as

k
3

to
ev

al
ua

te
th

e
ef

fe
ct

s
of

ch
an

g
es

in
th

e
fe

es
in

th
e

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
oj

ec
ts

fu
nd

in
g

pl
an

an
d

th
e

ef
fe

ct
s

up
on

u
se

r
fe

e
ra

te
re

ve
nu

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
an

d
th

e
ov

er
al

l
fi

na
nc

ia
l

pl
an

.
g.

In
te

rn
al

qu
al

it
y

co
nt

ro
l

re
vi

ew
of

re
su

lt
s

w
ith

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
te

am
,

an
d

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

of
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
as

re
qu

ir
ed

.
6.

2
U

pd
at

e
M

is
ce

ll
an

eo
us

F
ee

s
(r

ei
ns

ta
te

m
en

t,
se

rv
ic

e
ca

ll
s,

te
st

in
g,

m
et

er
in

st
al

la
ti

on
,

ta
ps

,
de

po
si

ts
,

et
c.

):
a.

R
ev

ie
w

lis
t

of
id

en
ti

fi
ed

cu
rr

en
t

an
d

po
te

nt
ia

l
ne

w
m

is
c,

se
rv

ic
e

fe
es

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
an

d
ad

ju
st

as
re

qu
ir

ed
.

b.
C

on
fe

re
nc

e
ca

ll
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

to
id

en
tif

y
sp

ec
if

ic
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
n
ee

d
ed

fo
r

fe
e

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

al
te

m
pl

at
es

,
in

cl
ud

in
g:

-
T

im
e

in
la

bo
r

ho
ur

s
to

ac
co

m
pl

is
h

a
gi

ve
n

ta
sk

-
P

ar
ts

&
m

at
er

ia
ls

an
d

as
so

ci
at

ed
co

st
s

as
so

ci
at

ed
w

ith
ea

ch
ta

sk
-

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

us
ed

to
ac

co
m

pl
is

h
ea

ch
ta

sk
c.

P
op

ul
at

e
co

st
co

m
pu

ta
ti

on
te

m
pl

at
es

w
ith

da
ta

pr
ov

id
ed

by
C

ity
st

af
f

an
d

qu
an

ti
fy

co
st

fo
r

pr
ov

id
in

g
ea

ch
se

rv
ic

e.
d.

P
re

p
ar

e
up

da
te

d
de

po
si

t
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
fo

r
al

l
cu

st
om

er
cl

as
se

s
by

se
rv

ic
e

an
d

m
et

er
si

ze
.

e.
R

ev
ie

w
co

m
pl

et
ed

co
st

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

an
d

de
po

si
t

te
m

pl
at

es
w

ith
pr

oj
ec

t
te

am
an

d
ad

ju
st

as
re

qu
ir

ed
.

6.
3

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

an
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

6.
4

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
b

as
ed

up
on

in
pu

t
fr

om
C

ity
st

af
f

in
th

e
pr

io
r

su
b-

ta
sk

an
d

di
st

ri
bu

te
w

or
kb

oo
k

of
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s.
6.

5
M

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

se
co

nd
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

ad
ju

st
ed

re
su

lt
s,

P
h
as

e
III

:
P

re
p

ar
e

R
ep

o
rt

,
P

re
se

n
t

R
es

ul
ts

,
a
n
d

P
ro

v
id

e
R

at
e

M
o

d
e
ls

T
as

k
7

R
ep

or
t,

P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n
s,

&
R

es
o
lu

ti
o
n
/O

rd
in

an
ce

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

7.
1

P
re

p
ar

e
a

D
ra

ft
R

ep
or

t
an

d
su

m
m

ar
y

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

of
th

e
re

su
lt

s
an

d
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s

of
th

e
S

tu
dy

fo
r

st
af

f
7.

2
In

te
gr

at
e

fi
na

l
st

af
f

co
m

m
en

ts
an

d
pr

ep
ar

e
Fi

na
l

D
ra

ft
R

ep
or

t.
7.

3
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

an
d

pr
ep

ar
e

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

of
fu

ll
st

ud
y

re
su

lt
s

an
d

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
to

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

.
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

pe
r

C
ity

st
af

f
co

m
m

en
ts

.
7.

4
P

re
p

ar
e

fo
r

an
d

p
re

se
n
t

th
e

re
su

lt
s

of
th

e
st

ud
y

to
th

e
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il
.

7.
5

M
ak

e
fi

na
l

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

an
d

pr
ep

ar
e

Fi
na

i
R

ep
or

t
do

cu
m

en
ti

ng
th

e
re

su
ks

an
d

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
of

th
e

S
tu

dy
.

7.
6

P
ro

vi
de

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
as

si
st

an
ce

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

or
di

na
nc

e
la

ng
ua

ge
,

ra
te

/f
ee

sc
h
ed

u
le

s,
an

d
at

te
nd

on
e

pu
bl

ic
he

ar
in

g.
7.

7
P

re
p

ar
e

cu
st

om
iz

ed
u

sa
g

e
ag

re
em

en
t

an
d

us
er

m
an

ua
ls

fo
r

th
e

fi
na

nc
ia

l
m

od
el

s
de

ve
lo

pe
d

an
d

us
ed

in
th

e
an

al
ys

is
.

7.
8

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
pr

ov
id

e
on

-s
it

e
tr

ai
ni

ng
w

ith
st

af
f

to
en

su
re

fu
tu

re
be

ne
fi

ci
al

us
e

of
th

e
m

od
el

s.
7,

9
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

to
m

od
el

s
an

d/
or

us
er

m
an

ua
ls

,
as

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
b
as

ed
up

on
tr

ai
ni

ng
se

ss
io

n
,

an
d

de
li

ve
r

fi
na

l
m

od
el

s.

2 0 0 0 0 2 2

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2 7 2 0 0 0

t 2’ 2j 9 5 7 2 9 5 9

2 3’ 2 2 9 5 0 3 7 9 2

5
1

2
0

3
0

—
In

cl
ud

ed
in

T
as

k
4.

8
—

4
0

-
-

In
cl

ud
ed

in
T

as
k

5
.6

--

9
1

5
1

2
1

o
o

3
2

2
0

14
1

o
o

5
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

8
0

0
8

1
0

8

5
5

40
2

0
19

2
1

9
0

0
14

0
2

14
0

0
12

1
1

30
0

0
18

0
1

9



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
“B

”

0 0 0 0 0 0

R
at

e
A

na
ly

si
s

&
P

la
nn

in
g

T
ot

al
E

st
im

at
ed

L
ab

or
H

ou
rs

99
17

6
22

6
26

5
24

39
31

86
0

T
ot

al
E

st
im

at
ed

L
ab

or
C

os
t

$2
4,

25
5

$3
4,

32
0

$3
5,

25
6

$3
2,

06
5

$4
,9

20
$6

,0
84

$3
,7

51
$1

40
,6

51
T

ot
al

E
st

im
at

ed
E

x
p
en

se
s

$1
9,

37
4

T
ot

al
-

R
at

e
A

na
ly

si
s

&
P

la
nn

in
g

$1
60

,0
25

A
dd

it
io

na
l

C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n,
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
an

d
P

ub
li

c
In

vo
lv

em
en

t
T

ot
al

E
st

im
at

ed
E

xp
en

se
s

5,
88

0
9,

36
0

2,
80

8
2,

17
8

3,
69

0
2,

80
8

-
$2

6,
72

4
T

ot
al

E
st

im
at

ed
T

im
e

an
d

M
at

er
ia

ls
E

xp
en

se
s

$1
1,

26
2!

T
ot

al
-

R
at

e
A

na
ly

si
s

&
P

la
nn

in
g

T
$
3
7
,9

8
6

I

D
et

ai
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
W

or
k

P
la

n
&

S
c
o

p
e

of
S

er
v

ic
es

*.
dd

lt
io

na
l

C
o
o
rd

in
at

io
n
,

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
,

an
d

P
ub

li
c

In
v
o
lv

em
en

t
T

as
k

8
8.

1
8.

2
8.

3
8.

4
8.

5
8.

6

E
st

im
at

ed
T

im
e

an
d

M
at

er
ia

ls
M

ee
ti

ng
#1

M
ee

ti
ng

#2
M

ee
ti

ng
#3

M
ee

ti
ng

#4
M

ee
ti

ng
#5

M
ee

ti
ng

#6

4’ 4 4 4 4 4

8 8 8 8 8 8

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

24 24
.

24
:

24 24 24



C0
C
C

Ca,
Co
a)
0

0
C

0
C-)

0)0:
>0

a)
a)C1)

0

COO
Q_ 0_
00)

00

0 (1)

0

C-)
-— 0

Ca)

8—2

2

1%)

4-

a)
E
.

U
0

U)a,

Cl,

0

U)a,

0
0

0
Cu

WCi)

Cu

Ce)

I-

Cu
a.
Cu
U

C
U
I..
Cu
a)

>;.

0
a,
>
a,

Ce,

U,
Cu
I-

U,

Cl)
>e
Cu
C

C
-x
Cu
E
C,
C
a,

Cl,
Cu
I-

C

U,
a,

0
C
Cu

a,
>a,

C.,

U)
a,

Cu

‘15

‘a
Cu
I-

C
Cu

C
0
4-
Cu
U

2
2
0
0...

:Cu

Ce,
Ce,

Cu
C

U

a,
Cl,
‘4-
0

U)
0

C.)

Ce,
Cu
I-

a,
U
C
Cu
Ci,
U)
Ce,

e,a,
CU
OC

CuC

a,

a. 2

00
0.9)a’a,

r—.

U)
Cu

:j:

a, a, a, a a, a,‘a ‘a U) Cl) Ii) U)Cu Cu Cu Cu Cu.C .C .C .C .Ca. a. a. a. a



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
“D

”

L
ab

or
R

at
es

B
y

C
at

eg
o

ry

C
at

eg
or

y
R

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

D
ir

ec
to

r
$2

45
P

M
&

Q
C

$1
95

L
ea

d
C

o
n
su

lt
an

t
$1

56
A

na
ly

st
s

$1
21

S
en

io
r

E
n

g
in

ee
r

$2
05

P
ro

je
ct

C
o
o
rd

in
at

o
r

$1
56

P
ro

je
ct

M
an

ag
em

en
t

A
ss

is
ta

n
t

$1
21

R
ei

m
b
u
rs

ea
b
le

E
x
p
en

se
s

T
yp

e
R

at
e

M
ea

ls
11

0%
of

C
os

t
H

ot
el

11
0%

of
C

os
t

C
ar

R
en

ta
l

11
0%

of
C

os
t

A
ir

fa
re

11
0%

of
C

os
t

V
eh

ic
le

M
il

ea
ge

$
0.

54
p
er

m
il

e
P

ri
nt

in
g

(8
.5

’x
ll

”)
$

0
0
5

p
er

pa
ge

P
ri

nt
in

g
(1

1’
x1

7’
)

$
0.

08
p
er

pa
ge

(b
la

ck
an

d
w

hi
te

)

an
d

$
0.

10
p

er
pa

ge

(c
ol

or
)

P
ri

nt
in

g
(2

4
x
3
6
”)

$
6.

00
pe

r
sh

ee
t

P
o
st

ag
e/

S
h
ip

p
in

g
11

0%
of

C
os

t



TASK ORDER - UTILITY RATE STUDY
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR LAS VEGAS WATER

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

Attached to and forming part of the Professional Services Agreement between the City of Las Vegas
(hereinafter called the “City”) -and- Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. (hereinafter called “Stantec”)

This TASK ORDER is issued under the Professional Services Agreement (dated October 19, 2017)
between STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. (“STANTEC”) and the CITY OF LAS VEGAS
(“CITY”) for Services to be provided by STANTEC on the Engineering Services for City of Las Vegas
Utility Rate Study (“Project”), as more fully described below. This Task Order is incorporated into and
part of the Professional Services Agreement (Contract# 3339-17).

The City of Las Vegas hereby authorizes Stantec to proceed with Scope of work: Las Vegas Utility Rate
Study.

Contact Person For City of Las Vegas: Marvin Cordova, Project Manager
mcordova877l 2(iumail.com

Contact Person For Stantec Scott Verhines, Senior Principal
scott.verhines(i2stantec.com
Niva Romero, Client Manager
niva.romero(stantec.com

Services:

Stantec proposes to perform a utility rate study for water, wastewater, sanitary, and raw water utilities for the
City of Las Vegas. The City agrees to provide necessary documentation to complete analysis including prior
studies, existing data, and rate structure. The City also agrees to provide supporting data for the creation of a
model which is anticipated to examine a five-year history of drinking water, reuse water and wastewater, and
sanitation operations, rate class consumption and service characteristics (number and size of containers and
frequency of collection for sanitation), bill history, expense and revenue trends, financial results, capital
requirements, and other financial policies that affect the revenue requirements of each utility system. The total
rate analysis will be composed of seven project tasks: review of rate methodologies, prior studies, and existing
system data; development of a multi-year financial plan based on five-year utility financial history; cost of
service analysis using industry-accepted cost of service allocation methodologies and comparison to revenue
requirements; rate structure review and design; benchmarking analysis comparing recommended rates to local
or peer groups; development of utility impact fees and miscellaneous customer charges; creation of report,
presentations, and ordinance assistance. Customized models, with user manuals and on-site training will be
delivered to the City. Two public presentation of results are included in the scope with additional coordination,
communication, and public involvement to be added as necessary for public engagement and education or as
requested by the City to be charged as time and materials. The preliminary report of results will be delivered
within 30 days of analysis completion. The City will be allowed time for review of the report at which point we
will schedule a meeting to present the report findings. A Final Report incorporating the meeting minutes will
conclude the utility rate analysis.

Additional detail can be found in Attachment A.

Las Vegas Leak Utility Rate Study



TASK ORDER - UTILITY RATE STUDY
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR LAS VEGAS WATER

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

Summary Project Work Plan & Scope of Services

Task Hours Cost

Phase

Task 1 Review Rate Methodologies, Prior Studies, and System Data 69 $11724

Task 2 Benchmarking Analysis 126 $21,523

Expenses - Phase I $3,754

Phase I Subtotal 195 $37,001

Phase II

Task 3 Develop Multi-Year Financial Plan 140 $22,484

Task 4 Cost of Service Analysis 163 $26,262

Task 5 Rate Structure Review and Design 104 $16,753

Task 6 Impact Fees & Miscellaneous Charges 93 $14,503

Expenses - Phase II $10,890

Phase II Subtotal 500 $90,892

Phase Ill

Task 7 Report, Presentations, & Resolution/Ordinance Assistance 165 $27,402

Expenses $470

Phase Ill Subtotal 165 $32,132
Additional Coordination, Communication, and Public Involvement (T&M) 144 $26,724

Expenses (T&M) $11,262

Additional Coordination Subtotal 144 $37,986

Total Project 1169 $198,011

Total Cost - Rate Analysis & Planning (Lump Sum) $160,025
Total Cost - Coordination, Communication, and Public Involvement (T&M) $37,9,6

Additional detail can be found in attachments B, C, and D.

Fees:

The City will compensate Stantec as follows:

Rate Analysis and Planning

Coordination and Public Involvement

Sl60,025 (Lump Sum)

$37,986 (Time and Materials)*

*Time and materials, not to exceed without prior City approval. Fees for this task order are
based on the revised rate schedule (attachment D). Fee does not include applicable taxes.

Stantec

12/3/2018
Date

City of Las Vegas

Date

Las Vegas Leak Utility Rate Study



Attachment “A”: Detailed Scope and Approach
Stantec’s Financial Services practice has completed thousands of similar studies throughout the
country for 250+ communities. Our approach is centered on our proven interactive decision
support process that engages your staff, Council, and key stakeholders, and is integrated with
key facility master planning initiatives as appropriate. While our team will facilitate all aspects of
the study, provide industry expertise, and give specific recommendations, we believe that input
that the City provides is essential to achieving successful outcomes. It is essential for the study to
reflect the unique nature and specific needs of the City, and it is vitally important that the City
and key stakeholders participate along the way. Our interactive process facilitates this input in
an effective manner while providing transparency and a comprehensive look at the utility.

The schematic below outlines the general flow of a typical utility rate study, followed by specific
discussion of each task we will conduct based upon the scope of services finalized with the
City’s specific direction.

Requirements
A4

• Operating Costs
• Capital Costs
• Financial Policies

• Debt Coverage
• Reserves

Cost
Allocation

• Evaluate Available Data
• Establish Classes
• Identify Methodology
• Compare Results to

Current Revenue

Rate Design

• Evaluate Objectives
• Identify Structures

Set Parameters
• Customer Impacts

.-\iiiJJj.ry ;d:

• Miscellaneous Fees
• Capital Charges
• Benchmarking

• National Trends
• Local Practices

Active Stakeholder Participation

CD
cD
cD

• INDUSTRIAL r

•



Task 1: Review Rate Methodologies, Prior Studies, and System Data
To begin, we will review the methodology and underlying assumptions employed in prior studies
and compare them to current conditions, existing data and fee structure. We will conduct an
on-site work shop with City staff to discuss key issues or concerns from prior studies, as well as key
elements that you would like to retain going forward. We will gather all data needed to
complete the study and discuss with City staff to ensure full understanding of what we are
working with prior to utilization in the study.

Task 2: Benchmarking Analysis
During this task, we will perform a benchmarking analysis of the rates of local or peer group
communities. We will provide detailed surveys comparing the rates, fees and rate structures of
comparable water, wastewater, and sanitation utilities to the rates recommended during the
study to ensure the recommended rates are aligned with the City’s peers to the eAtent
appropriate. This will include other utilities of comparable size in New Mexico, similar to the
surveys presented below, completed recently for the City of Saint Petersburg, Florida.

$80

$70

Typical Water and Wastewater Bill Comparison

$0 - —

Tampa New Port Dunedin Pasco County Hilleborough Pineilal County Oldemar Safety Harbor Clearweter St. Petersburg Tarpon Springs Gulfport
Richey County

FYI9 •FYIB

Sanitation and Recycling Monthly Fee Survey

Tampa •
Cleanvater

St. Petersburg •
Sofeta’ Harbor

flulfport •
Tarpon Springs •

Olcfsmar

Dunedin

Large

$0.00 55.00 $10.00 515.00 520.00 525.00 530.00 535.00

Note: Levels/types of service often vary significantly between communities



Moreover, we will also benchmark the financial performance (operational costs, capital
improvement spending, debt levels, remaining asset life, etc.) of the water and wastewater
systems of the City to other utilities. Our team has developed one of the largest repositories of
financial metrics for the US wafer sector—precisely to help utility managers understand how they
compare to other systems with real data instead of subjective assumptions.

Our data set is completely unbiased with utilities selected randomly from throughout the US and
reflects audited financial information. Our database grows every day, but currently includes 500
agencies, four years of reports, and 100 data points for every year of information reported, to a
total of 200,000 data points that can be filtered and sorted so you can make it all relevant to
you. We provide standard reporting outputs including dozens of typical financial ratios and a
complete common-size set of financial statements. Every ratio and output is easily compared to
industry averages. Customized reporting allows us to create custom league tables comparing
key financial performance indicators for your utility to industry leaders and industry neighbors.

‘rnmary

utilitiwise
R.,,.NflAfltLIf.

.11

I

e.i

__

Task 3: Develop Multi-Year Financial Plan
We will populate the Financial Planning module of our Financial Analysis and Management
System (FAMS-XL) model to develop a long-term financial management plan for the City,
inclusive of projected annual revenue requirements and rate adjustments for each utility system.
Within the model, we anticipate that we will examine a five-year history of drinking water, reuse
water and wastewater, and sanitation operations, rate class consumption and service
characteristics (number and size of containers and frequency of collection for sanitation), bill
history, expense and revenue trends, financial results, capital requirements, and other financial
policies that affect the revenue requirements of each utility system.

We will then analyze and project expected revenues, expenses and capital costs, based on
data and discussions with City staff, and the results of related planning documents. This will



include projections in 5-year, 10-year, 15-year and 20-year plans. We will determine the
adequacy of rates and charges to fully recover the cost of providing service, including capital
improvement funding analysis and compliance analysis.

In addition to evaluating financial goals and objectives, we will also evaluate alternative
demand projections (including those developed in the Master Plan), cost escalation factors,
changes in usage patterns, elasticity of customer demand in response to rate increases,
participation in green initiatives/programs for sanitation, and other variables that could affect
the financial performance of each utility.

One item of particular importance in a water resource utility’s financial plan is the projection of
volumetric sales, especially as it relates to the possibility of adopting rate structure changes.
Water consumption patterns are influenced by price signals, and this change in customer
behavior can be enhanced by other non-price factors, such as rainfall and economic
conditions. We will incorporate estimates of price elasticity and analyze estimates of the
probable range of responses to different degrees of rate increases and rate structure changes.
We will also evaluate historical rainfall patterns, and to the extent that the test year upon which
our revenue projections are based reflects abnormal rainfall, we will normalize’ our projections
based upon normal rainfall. Prudent planning requires that utilities prepare f or reductions and
changes in demand patterns, and such planning will be incorporated to achieve financial
targets and maintenance of fund balances.

The financial planning module provides a valuable capital planning tool which we will use to
integrate and inform the capital improvement schedule, and to evaluate the impacts of
alternative projects, costs, timing, and funding sources. For all scenarios reviewed, the financial
planning module will develop a funding plan, using the capital funding optimization function of
the model, to identify the amount, timing, and type of borrowing required as may e necessary.
We will examine the utility’s use of debt versus cash financing for capital improvements and
build a financing plan to support a
proper balance of debt coverage and
rate stabilization over the planning

period. A key feature of the model is
our ability to evaluate key metrics of
financial performance. We are very
familiar with the criteria that the rating
agencies are currently using, such as
new matrices and scorecards to
evaluate financial performance.

CIP Funding Sources

EOM

.capaa Reserve Fund

Closely related to this analysis is an examination of adequacy of reserves for operating and
capital projects. Adequate reserves are fundamental to achieving financial stability, and can
help avoid sudden or disruptive rate adjustments in the face of unanticipated operating or
capital needs or changes in demand for service. We will examine the City’s fund balances and
incorporate these balances and alternative reserve policies into the financial planning model
and the conversations we will have regarding financial sustainability.



We have the ability to evaluate scenarios specific to our clients, such as the acquisition,
expansion or disposal of service areas, impacts of new programs, and operational changes. We
will work closely with your staff to review the financial and rate impacts of these scenarias, and
incorparate them into the financial plan such that any rate impacts can be fully visualized,
recognized and planned far accordingly.

An example of a control panel/interactive dashboard from our revenue sufficiency and
financia/ planning module used for the development of a ten-year financial plan for a water
and wastewater system is presented below. The green bars and panels represent the last”
scenario evaluated, which was 7ust-in-time’ rates, resulting in varying increases throughout the
forecast starting in FY 2023. The blue bars and panels
represent the active” scenario, which includes a level
plan of annual rate increases starting in FY20 19. The
graph shows that the financial consequences of the
earlier level” plan of rate increases in the active”
scenario are acceptable, and that the rate increases
provide smaller, more predictable customer impacts.

FAMS-XL User Manual

Revenue Sufficiency and Financial Forecasting Model

St,rnte,

r:xvu•

Override

Waler Rate Plan

lost Plan

Override

Sewer Rate Plan
Loot Plan

M.In Debt Coverage
Last Plan

Scenario Mcrrogemertt
C!Ptuecutio,t%

Oce’ ererve Mol

O0,M Execution %

Avg Bill (3000 gal)

Last Plan
Change

3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.04% 6.45% 8.54% 8.06% 8.38% 7.78%

3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3 25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25%
.tb.00% o.ob 0.00% 4.04% 6.42% 8.57% 8.12% 8.44% 7.8%

4.35 4.79 4.34 4.13 389 3.50 2.96 2.52 2.19 1.94 1.74
4.35 4.47 371 3. 2.66 2.32 205 1.91 1.82 1.77 1.74

00%

95%

(00%

95%

13.65% 33.40%

0.09% 40,29%

100%

95%

100%

95%

00%

95%

13.69% 33.35%
0.00% 40.29%

(00%

95%

100%

95%

52.76

(00%

95%

Ieclr11ow Yes
P,oren,?

Operaing Fund Cvrvr,t Fe, L0,r P1,,—teqxt

250M

$2.88

(00%

95%

$85.68 $68.46 $91.34 $94.32 $97.38 1O0.53 $103.79 $107.16 $110.66 $114.26 $117.97
$85.68 $85.68 $85.68 $85.68 $8568 $94.82 $102.81 $111.09 $120.34 $12955

52.98

ict

95%

$2.06

$20M

St 015

$015

100%

95%

$3.15 $3.26 $2.37

mnffl
(7 8 In 20 21 22 23 24 25 28 27 20

$2.50 $360

Rev vs. Exp — — O&tA —C,vhu
COrhOut

$4015

53015

52GM

$1015

$3.71

ROE Typre

Orwk

$315

Plant Capacity Fund 8alarrce
ICuvent Fe, •e, Plc,.

(4)

IOM

•Cc,,vnt Pc,, •Lcvt Plc,.
CIP Spending

$3015

52015

$1015

$815
15 9 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

E niiiiIIIIII
Borrowing

•t...cv’J’u’c•Recen,eBe,cjr LlnlPIc,l

52015

IhiiiiIIII
IS 10 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

7 to to 20 21 22 23 24 28 26 27 28

CIP Funding

$2515

iiiiidlHl
18 (9

$2015

!“i’.iIIII,
18 (9 20 21 22 23 24 “ . 27 20



At the conclusion of the study, we will provide you with the financial planning models at no
additional cost. The model you will receive for each utility is a fully functioning Excel-based
model that can be used by staff for future updates. We do require that you sign a usage and
non-disclosure agreement for our model. Within the agreement, we typically identify the
parameters for any future maintenance, updates. and support services that you may desire.
Upon request, we can provide a sample agreement that we have used with our clients.

We will prepare a customized user manual for each model as well as onsite training for staff to
ensure future beneficial use of the modeling system. For each tab of the model, the user manual
presents the purpose and important features, describes how to update each tab, and identifies
other tabs within the model that are dependent upon or linked to each tab.

Task 4: Cost of Service Analysis

To begin the cost of service portion of the study, we will compile and review all available system
data in order to determine the best cost of service allocation approaches. Using our modeling
tools, we will allocate the total cost of service and revenue requirements identified in Task 3 for
each utility system to functional components. Each system’s cost of service and revenue
requirements are functionalized to defined segments, which are then allocated to each class of
customer based upon the characteristics or units of service (such as average day, max day, or
peak hour demands, or container size and frequency of pickup for sanitation) of each class of
customer. We are likely to utilize the Base-Extra Capacity approach for water, and a system-
function basis for wastewater and sanitation, but as with all key decisions, our approach will
reflect your unique conditions. An example of typical functions and customer classes for each
utility system are presented below. System functions, units of service, and customer classes are
unique to each community and would be determined for the City based upon a review of its
system/user data, but this image suggests the types of allocations commonly performed.

Sanitation Cost of Service Water Cost of Service Wostewater Cost of Service

—, Source of Supply I -, Treatment & Disposal
o 4 Collection i

I 0 —‘ Treatment I Collection
C I I 0

4 Disposal —‘ Transmission Reclaimed Water
I C

—, Pumping Chemical Oxygen Demand
4 Containers

*

—‘ Metering -‘ Suspended Solids

4 Residential —‘ Single-Family Res. —. Phosphorus
-

-, Multi-Family Res. -. Ammonia
4 Commercial I

—‘ Commercial -. Single-Family Res.
6 a, i

4 Roll-Off E —‘ Irrigation I Multi-Family Res.
0 I —

—‘ Wholesale I -. CommercialL)
4 Bu kBrush . 0)

—‘ General Service E —. Industrial
0

-‘ Wholesale
o

-‘ Reclaimed Water

As indicated, we will identify the most appropriate industry-accepted cost of service allocation
methodologies (as defined by the AWWA, WEF, EPA, and other industry sources) based upon
available data, legal requirements, system configuration, service agreements, resources,
customer usage characteristics, local practice, and public policy objectives. Regardless of the



methodology selected, we will be able to establish the cost of providing retail, wholesale, and
other services, including the cost of providing row/untreated water.

At the conclusion of the cost allocation analysis, we compare the resulting allocation of revenue
requirements to the revenue generated by the current rates for each customer class. To the
extent current revenue recovery levels are not in line with the cost of service allocations, we
evaluate alternative levels of revenue recovery by class of customer within the rate structure
analysis that would better comport with the identified cost of service allocations. The objective
is establishing and demonstrating equity in cost recovery by class, which is fundamental to
maintaining a resilient rate structure over the long term.

$15.35

$13.66

Varla’1
$1.69M Variance
12.3% $8.04 $1.30M

$5.63

Variance
-$2.41M
(30.0%)

Residential Multifamily Water Only

Task 5: Rate Structure Review and Design
At this point, we will also perform an independent review of the current rate structi;es for each
customer class and examine rate structure modifications using our rate design module. The rate
structure will be evaluated to determine if there are opportunities to improve fiscal stability or to
meet other public policy objectives relating to fixed cost recovery, conservation, waste
diversion, and affordability, while ensuring a fair and equitable distribution of costs, and
conformance to accepted industry practice, legal precedent, and bulk service agreements.

We will also evaluate the specific distribution/assignment of costs to the fixed and variable
components of the rate structure, and will make recommendations that are consistent with your
cost recovery objectives and consider your reserve policies as well as revenue stability,
conservation, waste diversion, and affordability objectives. Our interactive modeling process
gives us the ability to facilitate your discussion and understanding of alternative conservation
rate structures (including conservation block or tier size changes), and facilitates the creation of
a sound and workable solution that can be easily communicated to stakeholders.

$5.37

Non-Residential



Crop_Type

Parcel Size: 8,000
Landscape Area: 2,000

Parcel Size: 8,000
Landscape Area: 2,000

Gallons per Month

The following example identifies the presentation of the impact of a new rate structure in terms
of the resulting dollar change in a typical residential quarterly bill for water and sewer service.

Residential Quarterly Bill Impact
Example 1

5/8” meter with water and sewer service

Two person household with minimal outdoor water use

8 CCF per quarter

8 CCF = 5,984 Gallons

Prices shown net 10% on time payment discount

‘C
1

liii—
Evapotranspiration:

81 Inches
Beneficial Rainfall:

4 Inches Irrigation System
Efficiency: 70%

0-6000 6,001-12,000 12,001-20,000

Variance:
$14.67
22.2%

Current Proposed



Note that our presentation of customer bill impacts is based on our pattern of acquiring and
analyzing an extensive database from our clients billing systems. We are careful to understand
the way that billing systems actually store information and process meter reading data to
calculate and generate bills. Our rate analysis is always conducted with an awareness of the
limitations (or opportunities) of your billing system and full knowledge of impacts to all customers.

This portion of the project provides the opportunity to evaluate impacts on low income
customers. The question of rate affordability is receiving increasing attention in recent years as
more and more utilities begin to approach full cost recovery through rates, and as the
percentage of household budgets devoted to utility expenses continues to rise.

Task 6: Impact Fees & Miscellaneous Charges
Our modeling system also includes a system development charges module that is used to
calculate capital cost recovery fees (often referred to as capital contribution charges, impact
fees or connection fees). The system development charges module is adjusted for each client to
reflect the specific system configuration, available data, and local legal requirements. We will
review all data relative to the system to determine the portion of the costs eligible for recovery
from system development charges and the appropriate methodology to calculate the fees.

We will then provide recommendations related to impact fees based on the analysis of the
available data and financial impacts/benefits of such fees. We will provide a comparative fee
survey of other localities in the region, and evaluate alternative levels of fees in the context of
consistency with industry practice and the capital needs of the water/raw water, wastewater,
and solid waste systems.

Our modeling system also includes a miscellaneous service charge template that is used to
calculate miscellaneous charges and fees. During this portion of the study, we will review the
City’s existing fees, including plan review fees, construction inspection fees, connection/tap fees
and other service fees, and current utility operations, to determine if any additional fees or
charges are appropriate based upon our knowledge of accepted industry practice.

Affordable en Unaffordable



Specifically, we will interview staff relative to unit costs and staff time, provide a customized and
partially populated template to staff, and instruct staff on how to use the template to finalize
cost of service based fees for each service. Upon completion of staff’s calculations, we will
review the template and provide recommended adjustments, and will also provide assistance
with any necessary ordinance or resolution updates that may be required.

This portion of the study will also include a detailed review of existing extra strength surcharges
that will build upon the cost of service allocations from Task 4. Specifically, we will isolate the
treatment portion of the wastewater expenses and allocate those costs to each of the
respective treatment processes. The costs of each process will then be allocated between flow
and each of the strength parameter, and ultimately aggregated to determine updated unit
costs. It is important to analyze a utility’s extra strength surcharges periodically, but many
systems have tended to leave these charges unchanged for extended periods. Changes in
both the nature and volumes of industrial/wholesale demands or in treatment standards often
necessitate revisions to these charges to preserve equity in cost recovery. We recently
conducted an industrial wastewater surcharge analysis for the City of Plant City, Florida to
update the cost allocation to each waste parameter to reflect recent treatment facility
expansion and technology enhancements that improved the quality of treated wastewater
effluent and changed the appropriate distribution of costs among users.

Task 7: Report, Presentations & Resolution/Ordinance Assistance
Public support for rate design depends on whether or not the public perceives the utility as
taking their interests to heart, and the rates as fair. We recognize that rates play an important
role in supporting public engagement and support of the utility overall, and we know that
presenting the results of rate work is not merely a “checkbox” exercise.

Developing or enhancing public support requires openness and a high degree of clarity in all
presentations and discussions at public hearings. Minor misunderstandings of the underlying
rationale for a selected approach can cause disproportionate dissatisfaction with any proposed
change in rates. We know that our support is not complete until the City has beer able to
adopt and implement any rate or fee changes desired as a result of the project, so we
communicate with that end in mind from beginning to end. We often engage governing
boards and key stakeholders at the beginning of the project, and then again in the finalization
of the process to provide these community leaders an advance understanding of the rates and
make subsequent public discourse less confused.

Higher and lower levels of involvement for elected officials can be appropriate in different
circumstances, but staff involvement in the way we communicate study results is always critical.
Throughout the conduct of the Study, our project team will work closely with City staff to prepare
for and present meetings at critical points during the study process. At the conclusion of the
study, we will first prepare a draft report, provide it to City staff for comment, and then
incorporate any edits into a final report. We will then present the results at various meetings
determined by City staff, including presentations to the City Council.

We have worked in many locations and with utilities facing a wide variety of circumstances. Our
industry experience helps us to help you communicate the right level of detail in the right way to



meet the City’s objectives. In some cases, we have developed extensive outreach programs to
address a wide variety of concerns, sometimes ranging beyond issues related to rates and
charges. In other cases, very focused and brief communications provide the best approach.

We will help you communicate the information most important for customers to understand:

• The City keeps your water safe, protects the environment and supports the local economy.

• The costs of facilities and services are allocated fairly, reflecting use of the City’s systems.

• Rates and charges must recover the full costs of service to keep the systems functioning
over the long term while considering affordability and promoting conservation



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
“

T
as

k
2

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
na

ly
si

s
2.

1
Id

en
tif

y
lis

t
of

lo
ca

l
an

d
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e
sy

st
em

s
fo

r
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
pu

rp
os

es
.

P
re

pa
re

su
m

m
ar

y
st

at
is

ti
ca

l
co

m
pa

ri
so

n.
2.

2
G

at
he

r
an

d
an

al
yz

e
fi

na
nc

ia
l

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

d
at

a
fo

r
se

le
ct

ed
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e
an

d
lo

ca
l

ut
ili

tie
s

us
in

g
ou

r
U

til
iti

W
is

e
so

ft
w

ar
e.

2.
3

P
re

pa
re

su
rv

ey
s

of
co

st
re

co
ve

ry
st

ru
ct

ur
es

an
d

fi
na

nc
ia

l/
ex

pa
ns

io
n

po
li

ci
es

to
co

m
pa

re
C

ity
’s

m
ec

h
an

is
m

s
&

po
li

ci
es

.
2.

4
C

on
du

ct
de

ta
il

ed
ev

al
ua

ti
on

of
C

ity
’s

co
st

re
co

ve
ry

m
ec

h
an

is
m

s
fo

r
al

l
cu

st
om

er
cl

as
se

s
to

id
en

tif
y

st
re

n
g
th

s
an

d
w

ea
k
n
es

se
s

in
te

rm
s

of
bu

t
no

t
lim

ite
d

to
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

cr
it

er
ia

:
a.

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

w
ith

le
ga

l
p
re

ce
d
en

t
an

d
ge

ne
ra

ll
y

ac
ce

p
te

d
in

du
st

ry
pr

ac
ti

ce
(n

at
io

na
l

an
d

lo
ca

l)
.

b.
Fa

ir
an

d
eq

ui
ta

bl
e

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

of
co

st
s

to
cu

st
o
m

er
s

in
pr

op
or

ti
on

to
th

e
be

ne
fi

t
re

ce
iv

ed
an

d
de

m
an

d
on

th
e

sy
st

em
.

c.
C

on
si

st
en

cy
w

ith
po

li
ci

es
an

d
ob

je
ct

iv
es

re
ga

rd
in

g
su

ch
th

in
gs

as
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
,

co
ns

er
va

ti
on

,
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
et

c.
d.

Fi
sc

al
st

ab
ili

ty
/r

is
k

of
th

e
ut

ili
ty

.
e.

E
as

e
of

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

an
d

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g
to

C
ity

st
af

f
an

d
cu

st
om

er
s.

2.
5

In
te

m
al

re
vi

ew
of

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

re
su

lt
s

&
ev

al
ua

ti
on

of
C

ity
’s

co
st

re
co

ve
ry

st
ru

ct
ur

es
.

Id
en

tif
y

to
pi

cs
fo

r
re

vi
ew

w
ith

st
af

f.
2.

6
P

re
p
ar

e
su

m
m

ar
y

ot
in

iti
al

fi
nd

in
gs

fo
r

re
vi

ew
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f,

in
cl

ud
in

g
po

te
nt

ia
l

m
od

if
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
di

sc
us

si
on

.
2.

7
P

re
pa

re
fo

r
an

d
re

vi
ew

in
iti

al
re

su
lt

s
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

vi
a

w
eb

co
nf

er
en

ce
.

2.
8

P
er

fo
rm

ad
di

ti
on

al
re

se
ar

ch
an

d
m

od
if

y
ev

al
ua

ti
on

b
as

ed
up

on
in

pu
t

re
ce

iv
ed

fr
om

C
ity

st
af

f.
2.

9
P

re
p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
pr

es
en

t
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
fi

nd
in

gs
an

d
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s

to
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il.

D
et

ai
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
W

or
k

P
la

n
&

S
co

p
e

of
S

er
v

ic
es

2 2 2

2 3 5

P
h

as
e

I:
Id

en
ti

fy
S

tr
en

g
th

s
an

d
W

ea
k

n
es

se
s

in
C

u
rr

en
t

R
at

e
S

tr
u
ct

u
re

.
F

ee
s/

C
h

ar
g

es
8.

P
o

li
ci

es
R

c
:

M
E

ti
o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s,
P

ri
or

S
tu

d
ie

s.
an

d
S

y
st

em
D

at
a

1.
1

P
re

p
ar

e
ti

m
el

in
e

fo
r

ta
sk

pl
an

,
in

iti
al

d
at

a
re

q
u
es

t
lis

t,
an

d
ca

le
nd

ar
in

g
of

ke
y

m
il

es
to

ne
s.

P
er

fo
rm

io
b

se
t-

up
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

.
1.

2
R

ev
ie

w
in

iti
al

da
ta

,
pr

io
r

st
ud

ie
s,

cu
rr

en
t

co
nd

it
io

ns
,

ex
is

ti
ng

fe
e

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
an

d
ot

he
r

do
cu

m
en

ta
ti

on
pr

ov
id

ed
by

st
af

f
an

d
su

bm
it

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l
re

q
u
es

ts
.

1.
3

R
ev

ie
w

an
d

ev
al

ua
te

fi
xe

d
as

se
t,

G
IS

,
an

d
bi

lli
ng

sy
st

em
d

at
as

et
s.

P
er

fo
rm

qu
al

ity
re

vi
ew

an
d

d
is

cu
ss

w
ith

st
af

f.
1.

4
C

on
du

ct
an

on
-s

it
e

w
or

ks
ho

p
fo

r
C

ity
st

af
f

to
d

is
cu

ss
co

n
ce

rn
s

fr
om

pr
io

r
st

ud
ie

s,
in

du
st

ry
is

su
es

an
d

tr
en

ds
,

th
e

ra
te

st
ud

y
pr

oc
es

s,
pr

ov
id

e
an

in
tr

od
uc

ti
on

to
th

e
C

ity
an

d
ho

w
yo

u
co

m
pa

re
lo

ca
lly

an
d

na
tio

na
lly

,
an

d
te

e-
up

co
st

re
co

ve
ry

co
nc

ep
ts

,
is

su
es

,
po

te
nt

ia
l

m
od

if
ic

at
io

ns
,

et
c.

fo
r

C
ity

in
pu

t.

P
h

as
e

II:
R

ec
o
m

m
en

d
M

et
h
o
d
s

fo
r

F
ai

r
an

d
E

q
u

it
ab

le
R

at
es

7 7

9
9

3

4

2 0
2 2 2

5

2

2 7 7
5 3 4

4
2

0 5 4 0

4 2 3 0 7

4 4 3 7

4 2 3 2 2

4 2 0 3

0 0 2 0

2
3

as
l

3
..

e
v

e
lp

M
ul

ti-
a
r
9

n
ia

l
‘I

an
3.

1
P

re
pa

re
cu

st
om

er
an

d
de

m
an

d
an

al
y

se
s

fo
r

ea
ch

se
rv

ic
e

to
de

te
rm

in
e

pr
oj

ec
te

d
gr

ow
th

,
tr

en
ds

in
u

sa
g

e
pa

tt
er

ns
,

id
en

tif
y

pe
ak

d
em

an
d
s

an
d

th
e

d
em

an
d

s
pl

ac
ed

on
th

e
sy

st
em

,
an

d
to

ta
l

pr
oj

ec
te

d
cu

st
om

er
s,

eq
ui

va
le

nt
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
co

nn
ec

ti
on

s/
un

it
s,

an
d

u
sa

g
e.

3.
2

In
pu

t
fi

na
nc

ia
l

an
d

til
lin

g
da

ta
in

to
ou

r
FA

M
S-

X
L

fl
ia

nc
ia

l
pl

an
ni

ng
m

od
ul

e
(s

ep
a:

at
e

m
od

ul
es

fo
r

w
at

er
/r

aw
w

at
sr

,
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

so
lid

w
as

te
),

ru
n

th
e

m
od

ul
es

,
an

d
pr

od
uc

e
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
ou

tp
ut

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

a
lo

ng
-t

er
m

fi
na

nc
ia

l
m

an
ag

em
en

t
pr

og
ra

m
fo

r
ea

ch
en

te
rp

ri
se

fu
nd

th
at

w
ill

in
cl

ud
e

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g:
0

0
18

27
0

0
0

45
o

R
at

e
R

ev
en

ue
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
fo

r
5-

ye
ar

,
10

-y
ea

r,
15

-y
ea

r,
an

d
20

-y
ea

r
pr

oj
ec

ti
on

pe
ri

od
s

o
E

xa
m

in
at

io
n

of
hi

st
or

ic
al

an
d

pr
oj

ec
te

d
ex

p
en

se
s

(o
pe

ra
ti

ng
,

ca
pi

ta
l,

an
d

eq
ui

pm
en

t)
an

d
re

ve
nu

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
o

C
ap

ita
l

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

P
ro

gr
am

an
d

C
ap

it
al

F
in

an
ci

ng
P

la
n

-
P

ro
je

ct
lis

tin
g

by
ye

ar
,

in
cl

ud
in

g
in

te
gr

at
io

n
of

sp
ec

if
ic

sc
en

ar
io

s
as

re
qu

ir
ed

-
A

lt
er

na
ti

ve
fu

nd
in

g
so

u
rc

es
fo

r
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

oj
ec

ts
-

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
of

a
ca

pi
ta

l
fi

na
nc

in
g

pl
an

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
of

tim
in

g
an

d
am

ou
nt

of
bo

rr
ow

in
g

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

0
B

o
rr

o
w

in
P

ro
or

am

5
2

0
1

4



A
tt

ac
h
m

er
’

D
et

ai
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
W

or
k

P
la

n
8

S
co

p
e

of
S

er
v

ic
es

0

B
or

ro
w

in
g

re
qu

ir
ed

(b
y

so
u
rc

e)
to

fu
nd

C
IP

pr
oj

ec
ts

no
t

fu
nd

ed
by

ot
he

r
so

u
rc

es
to

in
cl

ud
e

bu
t

no
t

n
ec

es
sa

ri
ly

be
lim

ite
d

to
re

ve
nu

e
bo

nd
s,

S
ta

te
or

ot
he

r
pr

og
ra

m
s

or
ba

nk
lo

an
s

-
T

im
in

g
of

bo
nd

is
su

e(
s)

/l
oa

n(
s)

to
pr

ov
id

e
re

qu
ir

ed
bo

rr
ow

ed
fu

nd
s

-
A

nn
ua

l
de

bt
se

rv
ic

e
of

bo
nd

is
su

e(
s)

/l
oa

n(
s)

R
ev

en
ue

S
uf

fi
ci

en
cy

A
na

ly
si

s,
in

cl
ud

in
g

C
as

h
Fl

ow
s

-
A

nn
ua

l
re

ve
nu

e
pr

oj
ec

ti
on

s,
in

cl
ud

e
a

br
ea

kd
ow

n
of

re
ve

nu
es

fr
om

sa
le

of
se

rv
ic

es
,

ca
pi

ta
l

fe
es

&
ot

he
r

re
v
en

u
es

2 2 3 9 3 2

2 5 5 0 7
-
-

In
cl

ud
e

in
2

0
1

-
A

nn
ua

l
op

er
at

io
ns

an
d

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
ex

p
en

se
pr

oj
ec

ti
on

s
A

ll
ot

he
r

an
nu

al
re

ve
nu

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
su

ch
as

re
ne

w
al

an
d

re
pl

ac
em

en
t,

m
in

or
ca

pi
ta

l,
tr

an
sf

er
s

to
ot

he
r

fu
nd

s,
cu

rr
en

t
de

bt
se

rv
ic

e/
lo

an
pa

ym
en

ts
,

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t
of

re
se

rv
es

,
et

c.
o

S
o
u
rc

es
an

d
U

se
s

of
F

un
ds

A
na

ly
si

s
-

B
eg

in
ni

ng
an

d
en

di
ng

fu
nd

s
b
al

an
ce

s
by

fu
nd

by
ye

ar
3.

3
R

ev
ie

w
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
po

li
ci

es
fo

r
va

ri
ou

s
re

se
rv

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
an

d
pr

ov
id

e
sp

ec
if

ic
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s

fo
r

re
se

rv
e

3.
4

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
to

th
e

m
od

el
s

as
re

qu
ir

ed
in

or
de

r
to

si
m

ul
at

e
th

e
ut

ili
ty

’s
cu

rr
en

t
an

d/
or

sp
ec

if
ic

fi
na

nc
ia

l
dy

na
m

ic
s.

3.
5

P
er

fo
rm

qu
al

it
y

co
nt

ro
l

re
vi

ew
an

d
m

ak
e

re
qu

ir
ed

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

,
re

co
nc

il
e

to
st

af
f

fo
re

ca
st

s,
an

d
p
re

p
ar

e
sc

en
ar

io
s.

3.
6

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

an
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s,

3.
7

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
an

d
di

st
ri

bu
te

w
or

kb
oo

k
of

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

,
in

pu
ts

,
an

d
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s
fo

r
st

af
f

re
vi

ew
,

3.
8

P
re

pa
re

fo
r

an
d

m
ee

t
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

in
se

co
nd

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

w
or

k
se

ss
io

n
to

re
vi

ew
ad

ju
st

ed
re

su
lt

s,
3.

9
P

er
fo

rm
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
pe

r
in

pu
t

fr
om

C
ity

st
af

f
an

d
de

te
rm

in
e

pl
an

of
ra

te
an

nu
al

re
ve

nu
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

an
d

re
ve

nu
e

T
as

k
4

C
os

t
of

S
e
rv

ic
e

A
na

ly
si

s
4.

1
Id

en
tif

y
al

l
te

st
ye

ar
co

st
s/

re
v

en
u

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
as

so
ci

at
ed

w
ith

th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

w
at

er
an

d
sa

ni
ta

ry
se

w
er

se
rv

ic
e

fr
om

4.
2

A
na

ly
ze

th
e

C
ity

’s
bi

lli
ng

co
ns

um
pt

io
n

re
co

rd
s,

G
IS

da
ta

,
se

rv
ic

e
ar

ea
,

ex
is

ti
ng

ag
re

em
en

ts
,

an
d

ex
is

ti
ng

cu
st

o
m

er
4.

3
Id

en
tif

y
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
sy

st
em

fu
nc

ti
on

al
co

m
po

ne
nt

s
an

d
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
co

st
of

se
rv

ic
e

al
lo

ca
ti

on
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
(p

er
A

W
W

A
4,

4
A

ll
oc

at
e

co
st

s
&

of
fs

et
ti

ng
re

v
en

u
e

to
fu

nc
ti

on
al

co
m

po
ne

nt
s

of
ea

ch
ut

ili
ty

an
d

de
te

rm
in

e
un

it
co

st
of

ea
ch

fu
nc

ti
on

.
4,

5
A

ll
oc

at
e

co
st

s
an

d
of

fs
et

ti
ng

re
v
en

u
e

of
ea

ch
fu

nc
ti

on
al

co
m

po
ne

nt
to

id
en

tif
ie

d
re

ta
il

an
d

w
ho

le
sa

le
an

d
ot

he
r

cu
st

o
m

er
cl

as
se

s
b
as

ed
up

on
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
cu

st
o
m

er
cl

as
s

ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s/

cr
it

er
ia

,
po

te
nt

ia
ll

y
in

cl
ud

in
g

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
lo

ca
ti

on
.

4.
6

C
om

pa
re

al
lo

ca
te

d
co

st
s/

re
v

en
u

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
by

cu
st

om
er

cl
as

s
an

d
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

ar
ea

to
re

ve
nu

e
g
en

er
at

ed
by

ex
is

ti
ng

ra
te

s,
Id

en
tif

y
eq

ui
ta

bl
e

co
st

al
lo

ca
ti

on
s

an
d

re
co

ve
ry

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
,

co
ns

id
er

in
g

su
ch

th
in

gs
w

at
er

,
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

an
d

sa
ni

ta
ti

on
n
ee

d
s,

fu
tu

re
n
ee

d
s,

et
c.

4,
7

In
te

rn
al

qu
al

it
y

co
nt

ro
l

re
vi

ew
of

re
su

lt
s

w
ilh

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
te

am
,

m
ak

e
re

qu
ir

ed
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
,

an
d

id
en

tif
y

ke
y

it
em

s
fo

r
st

af
f.

4.
8

P
re

pa
re

fo
r

an
d

m
ee

t
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

in
an

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

w
or

k
se

ss
io

n
to

re
vi

ew
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s.
4,

9
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

as
re

qu
ir

ed
b

as
ed

up
on

in
pu

t
fr

om
C

ity
st

af
f

an
d

di
st

ri
bu

te
w

or
kb

oo
ks

of
pr

el
im

in
ar

y
re

su
lt

s.
4.

10
P

re
pa

re
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

se
co

nd
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

vi
a

G
oT

oM
ee

ti
ng

to
re

vi
ew

ad
ju

st
ed

re
su

lt
s.

4.
11

P
er

fo
rm

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

as
re

qu
ir

ed
pe

r
C

ity
st

af
f

in
pu

t
an

d
fi

na
liz

e
co

st
al

lo
ca

ti
on

an
al

ys
is

.

S
..

u
re

R
ev

ie
w

an
rf

D
es

ig
r

5.
1

D
ev

el
op

U
se

r
F

ee
s

(B
as

e
R

at
es

&
U

sa
g
e

R
at

es
):

a.
L

oa
d

bi
lli

ng
hi

st
or

y
d
at

a
in

to
ou

r
FA

M
S-

X
L

ra
te

m
od

el
an

d
cr

ea
te

a
bi

ll
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

an
al

ys
is

.
b.

C
on

du
ct

a
re

ve
nu

e
te

st
to

en
su

re
ac

cu
ra

cy
of

bi
lli

ng
da

ta
,

an
d

re
vi

ew
lo

ca
l

d
at

a
re

la
ti

ve
to

ho
us

eh
ol

d
si

ze
an

d
ir

ri
ga

tio
n

n
ee

d
s

fo
r

va
ri

ou
s

lo
t

si
ze

s
an

d
tu

rf
ty

pe
s.

c.
S

et
up

th
e

ra
te

m
od

el
pe

r
th

e
re

su
lt

s
in

T
as

k
2,

an
d

th
e

co
st

al
lo

ca
ti

on
s

of
T

as
k

3.
d.

R
un

th
e

m
od

el
an

d
p
re

p
ar

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
ra

te
st

ru
ct

ur
es

co
ns

is
te

nt
w

ith
co

n
ce

p
ts

/m
et

h
o
d
s

id
en

ti
fi

ed
in

T
as

k
2,

e.
P

re
p
ar

e
an

im
pa

ct
an

al
ys

is
to

co
m

p
ar

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
w

at
er

,
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

sa
ni

ta
ti

on
,

an
d

ra
w

w
at

er
ra

te
s

fo
r

ea
ch

cu
st

o
m

er
cl

as
s

to
cu

rr
en

t
ra

te
s.

f.
In

te
rn

al
ou

al
it

v
co

nt
ro

l
re

vi
ew

of
re

su
lt

s
w

ith
co

ns
ul

ti
na

te
am

,
an

d
oe

rf
or

m
an

ce
of

ad
iu

st
m

en
ts

as
re

au
ir

ed
.

0 0 0

T
as

k
4. 0

1, 0’ 0 0 0 0
0

11 9 15 27 14 5

2 7 2 9 7

2 9 2 13 9

0 0 0

0 2 9 0 0 0 0 0

2 3 2 4 3 2 3 9 2 0 0 2 2 2

3 4 9 5 2 2 4 3 5 3 5

0
7

1
0

0
7

1
—

In
cl

ud
ed

in
T

as
k

5,
1

4
0

7
0

4
0

4
0

7
1

4
1

5
1

0
0

6
1

0
21

1
0

9
1

0
29

0
0

20

0
0

10
1

0
18

0
0

27
1

0
16

0
0

7

0
0

9

0
0

8
0

0
9

1
0

17

1
0

11
1

0
1

5



A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t

D
et

ai
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
W

or
k

P
la

n
&

S
co

p
e

of
S

er
v

ic
es

5.
4

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

an
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

5.
5

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
b
as

ed
up

on
in

pu
t

fr
om

C
ity

st
af

f
in

th
e

pr
io

r
su

b-
ta

sk
an

d
di

st
ri

bu
te

w
or

kb
oo

k
of

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

5.
6

M
ee

t
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

in
se

co
nd

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

w
or

k
se

ss
io

n
to

re
vi

ew
ad

ju
st

ed
re

su
lt

s.
5.

7
P

er
fo

rm
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
pe

r
C

ity
st

af
f

in
pu

t
an

d
fi

na
liz

e
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
ra

te
/f

ee
st

ru
ct

ur
e

op
ti

on
s,

in
cl

ud
in

g
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

pl
an

.

o
i

2
8

8
8

o
i

0 0

7 24 4

0 0 0

T
as

k
6

rn
p
a
c
t

F
ee

s
&
i
s

1
im

r:
O

U
C

h
a
ro

6.
1

D
ev

el
op

C
ap

ita
T

C
os

t
R

ec
ov

er
y

F
ee

s:
a.

O
bt

ai
n

an
d

re
vi

ew
al

l
or

di
na

nc
es

,
m

as
te

r
pl

an
,

ca
pi

ta
l

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

da
ta

,
ca

pa
ci

ty
re

po
rt

s,
an

d
w

at
er

ri
gh

ts
da

ta
.

b.
P

re
p

ar
e

re
pr

od
uc

ti
on

co
st

sc
he

du
le

of
fi

xe
d

as
se

ts
by

m
aj

or
sy

st
em

co
m

po
ne

nt
.

c.
R

ev
ie

w
ex

is
ti

ng
C

IP
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

to
de

te
rm

in
e

po
rt

io
n

of
pr

oj
ec

ts
fo

r
ex

p
an

d
ed

ca
pa

ci
ty

v
er

su
s

re
ne

w
al

an
d

d.
A

ll
oc

at
e

fi
xe

d
as

se
ts

be
tw

ee
n

fa
ci

lit
y

co
m

po
ne

nt
s

of
su

pp
ly

,
tr

ea
tm

en
t,

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

/c
ol

le
ct

io
n,

di
sp

os
al

,
et

c.
e.

L
oa

d
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
da

ta
in

to
ou

r
co

nn
ec

ti
on

fe
e

m
od

ul
e,

ad
ju

st
an

d
ca

li
br

at
e,

an
d

pr
od

uc
e

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

f.
Li

nk
ca

pa
ci

ty
fe

e
m

od
ul

e
w

ith
th

e
fi

na
nc

ia
l

fo
re

ca
st

m
od

ul
e

of
T

as
k

3
to

ev
al

ua
te

th
e

ef
fe

ct
s

of
ch

an
g

es
in

th
e

fe
es

in
th

e
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

oj
ec

ts
fu

nd
in

g
pl

an
an

d
th

e
ef

fe
ct

s
up

on
us

er
fe

e
ra

te
re

ve
nu

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
an

d
th

e
ov

er
al

l
fi

na
nc

ia
l

pl
an

.
g.

In
te

rn
al

qu
al

ity
co

nt
ro

l
re

vi
ew

of
re

su
lt

s
w

ith
co

ns
ul

ti
ng

te
am

,
an

d
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
of

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

as
re

qu
ir

ed
.

6.
2

U
pd

at
e

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

us
F

ee
s

(r
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t,

se
rv

ic
e

ca
ll

s,
te

st
in

g,
m

et
er

in
st

al
la

ti
on

,
ta

ps
,

de
po

si
ts

,
et

c.
):

a.
R

ev
ie

w
lis

t
of

id
en

ti
fi

ed
cu

rr
en

t
an

d
po

te
nt

ia
l

ne
w

m
is

c,
se

rv
ic

e
fe

es
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

an
d

ad
ju

st
as

re
qu

ir
ed

.
b.

C
on

fe
re

nc
e

ca
ll

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
to

id
en

tit
y

sp
ec

if
ic

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

n
ee

d
ed

fo
r

fe
e

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

al
te

m
pl

at
es

,
in

cl
ud

in
g:

-
T

im
e

in
la

bo
r

ho
ur

s
to

ac
co

m
pl

is
h

a
gi

ve
n

ta
sk

-
P

ar
ts

&
m

at
er

ia
ls

an
d

as
so

ci
at

ed
co

st
s

as
so

ci
at

ed
w

ith
ea

ch
ta

sk
-

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

u
se

d
to

ac
co

m
pl

is
h

ea
ch

ta
sk

c.
P

op
ul

at
e

co
st

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

te
m

pl
at

es
w

ith
da

ta
pr

ov
id

ed
by

C
ity

st
af

f
an

d
qu

an
ti

ty
co

st
fo

r
pr

ov
id

in
g

ea
ch

se
rv

ic
e.

d.
P

re
p
ar

e
up

da
te

d
de

po
si

t
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
fo

r
al

l
cu

st
om

er
cl

as
se

s
by

se
rv

ic
e

an
d

m
et

er
si

ze
.

e.
R

ev
ie

w
co

m
pl

et
ed

co
st

co
m

pu
ta

ti
on

an
d

de
po

si
t

te
m

pl
at

es
w

ith
pr

oj
ec

t
te

am
an

d
ad

ju
st

as
re

qu
ir

ed
.

6.
3

P
re

p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
m

ee
t

w
ith

C
ity

st
af

f
in

an
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
w

or
k

se
ss

io
n

to
re

vi
ew

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

6.
4

M
ak

e
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
b
as

ed
up

on
in

pu
t

fr
om

C
ity

st
af

f
in

th
e

pr
io

r
su

b-
ta

sk
an

d
di

st
ri

bu
te

w
or

kb
oo

k
of

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

re
su

lt
s.

6.
5

M
ee

t
w

ith
C

ity
st

af
f

in
se

co
nd

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

w
or

k
se

ss
io

n
to

re
vi

ew
ad

ju
st

ed
re

su
lt

s.

P
h
as

e
III

:
P

re
p

ar
e

R
ep

o
rt

,
P

re
se

n
t

R
es

ul
ts

,
an

d
P

ro
v
id

e
R

at
e

M
o

d
el

s
R

cn
t,

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n
s,

!
R

es
o
lu

ti
o
n
/O

rd
in

an
ce

A
ss

is
tc

n
ce

7.
1

P
re

p
ar

e
a

D
ra

ft
R

ep
or

t
an

d
su

m
m

ar
y

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

of
th

e
re

su
lt

s
an

d
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s

of
th

e
S

tu
dy

fo
r

st
af

f
7.

2
In

te
gr

at
e

fi
na

l
st

af
f

co
m

m
en

ts
an

d
pr

ep
ar

e
Fi

na
l

D
ra

ft
R

ep
or

t.
7.

3
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

an
d

pr
ep

ar
e

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

of
fu

ll
st

ud
y

re
su

lt
s

an
d

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
to

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

.
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

pe
r

C
ity

st
af

f
co

m
m

en
ts

.
7.

4
P

re
p

ar
e

fo
r

an
d

p
re

se
n

t
th

e
re

su
lt

s
of

th
e

st
ud

y
to

th
e

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

.
7.

5
M

ak
e

fi
na

l
ad

ju
st

n
en

ts
an

d
p
re

p
ar

e
Fi

na
l

R
ep

o
l

do
cu

m
en

ti
ng

th
e

re
su

lt
s

an
d

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
of

th
e

S
tu

dy
.

7.
6

P
ro

vi
de

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
as

si
st

an
ce

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

or
di

na
nc

e
la

ng
ua

ge
,

ra
te

/f
ee

sc
h
ed

u
le

s,
an

d
at

te
nd

on
e

pu
bl

ic
he

ar
in

g.
7.

7
P

re
p
ar

e
cu

st
om

iz
ed

u
sa

g
e

ag
re

em
en

t
an

d
u
se

r
m

an
ua

ls
fo

r
th

e
fi

na
nc

ia
l

m
od

el
s

de
ve

lo
pe

d
an

d
us

ed
in

th
e

an
al

ys
is

.
7.

8
P

re
p
ar

e
fo

r
an

d
pr

ov
id

e
on

-s
it

e
tr

ai
ni

ng
w

ith
st

af
f

to
en

su
re

fu
tu

re
be

ne
fi

ci
al

us
e

of
th

e
m

od
el

s.
7.

9
M

ak
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

to
m

od
el

s
an

d/
or

us
er

m
an

ua
ls

,
as

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
b

as
ed

up
on

tr
ai

ni
ng

se
ss

io
n

,
an

d
de

li
ve

r
fi

na
l

m
od

el
s.

-
-

In
cl

ud
ed

in
T

as
k

4
.8

--
3

0
0

0
2

0

2
2

2
2

1
0

0
1

4
0

0
0

1
2

1
1

1
2

2
1

0
0

2
5

0

0
0

1
2

0
1

2
2

5
0

0
1

1
0

1
0

2
2

2
0

0
1

2
5

1
1

2
3

2
0

1
2

2
3

0
-
-

In
du

de
d

in
T

as
k

4.
8

0
1

2
4

0
-
-

In
cl

ud
ed

in
T

as
k

5.
6

2
9

9
9

1
1

5
5

5
1

1
1

1
2

1
7

7
0

0
0

2
2

3
3

2
0

9
1

2
0

1
5

7
14

1
0

9
9

0
0

0
1

2
5

0

1
0

10
1

0
6

1
0

5
1

0
8

0
0

7

0
0

3
1

0
11

0
0

3
0

0
6

1
0

10
0

0
8

0
0

8

1
0

8

5
5

40
2

0
19

2
1

9
0

0
14

0
2

14
0

0
12

1
1

30
0

0
18

0
1

9



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
‘B

”

T
as

k
8

8.
1

8.
2

8.
3

8.
4

8.
5

8.
6

2
4

24 24 24 24 24

D
et

ai
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
W

or
k

P
la

n
&

S
c
o
p
e

of
S

er
v
ic

es

A
d
d
it

io
n

al
C

o
o
rd

in
at

io
n
,

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
,

a
n
d

P
u
b
li

c
In

v
o
lv

em
en

t
E

st
im

at
ed

T
im

e
a
n
d

M
at

er
ia

ls
M

ee
ti

ng
#1

M
ee

ti
ng

#2
M

ee
ti

ng
#3

M
ee

ti
ng

#4
M

ee
ti

ng
#5

M
ee

ti
ng

#6

4 4 4 4 4 4

8 8 8 8 8 8

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

0 0 0 0 0 0

R
at

e
A

na
ly

si
s

&
P

la
nn

in
g

-
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

T
ot

al
E

st
im

at
ed

L
ab

or
H

ou
rs

99
17

6
22

6
26

5
24

39
31

86
0

T
ot

al
E

st
im

at
ed

L
ab

or
C

os
t

$2
42

55
$3

4,
32

0
$3

5,
25

6
$3

2,
06

5
$4

,9
20

$6
,0

84
S3

,7
51

$1
40

,6
51

T
ot

al
E

st
im

at
ed

E
x

p
en

se
s

$1
9,

37
4

T
ot

al
-

R
at

e
A

na
ly

si
s

&
P

la
nn

in
g

$1
60

,0
25

A
dd

it
io

na
l

C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n,
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
an

d
P

ub
li

c
In

vo
lv

em
en

t
T

ot
al

E
st

im
at

ed
E

xp
en

se
s

5,
88

0
9,

36
0

2,
80

8
2,

17
8

3,
69

0
2
8
0
8

-
$2

6,
72

4
T

ot
al

E
st

im
at

ed
T

im
e

an
d

M
at

er
ia

ls
E

xp
en

se
s

$1
1,

26
2

T
ot

al
-

R
at

e
A

na
ly

si
s

&
P

la
nn

in
g

$3
7,

98
6



A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t

“C
”

P
ro

je
ct

T
im

el
in

e

R
ev

ie
w

R
at

e
M

et
h
o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s,
P

ri
o
r

S
tu

d
ie

s,
P

h
as

e
I

T
as

k
1

an
d

S
y

st
em

D
at

a

P
h
as

e
I

T
as

k
2

B
en

ch
m

ar
k
in

g
A

n
al

y
si

s

P
h
as

e
II

T
as

k
3

D
ev

el
o

p
M

ul
ti

-Y
ea

r
F

in
an

ci
al

P
la

n

P
h

as
e

II
T

as
k

4
C

o
st

o
f

S
er

v
ic

e
A

n
al

y
si

s

P
h

as
e

II
T

as
k

5
R

at
e

S
tr

u
ct

u
re

R
ev

ie
w

an
d

D
es

ig
n

R
ep

o
rt

,
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n
s,

&
P

h
as

e
Ill

T
as

k
7

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
lO

rd
in

an
ce

A
ss

is
ta

n
c
e

K
ic

k-
of

f
C

on
fe

re
nc

e
C

al
l

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

R
a
te

s
10

1
M

ee
tin

g
In

te
ra

ct
iv

e
--

--
h

—

R
es

ul
ts

to
W

at
er

B
oa

rd
W

or
k

S
es

si
on

#1
In

te
ra

ct
iv

e

Work

S
es

si
on

#2

In
te

ra
ct

iv
e

W
or

k
S

es
si

on
#3

F

IM
od

el
T

ra
in

in
g

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
C

o
o
rd

in
at

io
n
,

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
,

an
d

T
as

k
8

P
u

b
li

c
In

v
o
lv

em
en

t
(T

&
M

)



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
“D

”

L
ab

or
R

at
es

B
y

C
at

eg
o
ry

C
at

eg
or

y
R

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

D
ir

ec
to

r
$2

45
P

M
&

Q
C

$1
95

L
ea

d
C

o
n
su

lt
an

t
$1

56
A

na
ly

st
s

$1
21

S
en

io
r

E
n
g
in

ee
r

$2
05

P
ro

je
ct

C
o
o
rd

in
at

o
r

$1
56

P
ro

je
ct

M
an

ag
em

en
t

A
ss

is
ta

n
t

$1
21

R
ei

m
b
u
rs

ea
b
le

E
x
p
en

se
s

T
yp

e
R

at
e

M
ea

ls
11

0%
of

C
os

t
H

ot
el

11
0%

of
C

os
t

C
ar

R
en

ta
l

11
0%

of
C

os
t

A
ir

fa
re

11
0%

of
C

os
t

V
eh

ic
le

M
il

ea
ge

$
0.

54
p
er

m
il

e
P

ri
nt

in
g

(8
.5

’x
ll

’)
$

0.
05

pe
r

pa
ge

P
ri

nt
in

g
(1

1”
x1

7’
)

$
0.

08
p
er

pa
ge

(b
la

ck
an

d
w

hi
te

)

an
d

$
0.

10
p
er

pa
ge

(c
ol

or
)

P
ri

nt
in

g
(2

4
x

3
6

’)
$

6.
00

p
er

sh
ee

t
P

o
st

ag
e/

S
h
ip

p
in

g
11

0%
of

C
os

t



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE 12/1112018 DEPT: Finance MEETING DATE: 12I1912018

ITEMITOPIC: Review and approve/disapprove the disposition of obsolete vehicles as
per Resolution 18-49.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval of sale of obsolete
vehicles. These listed vehicles have been designated by the New Mexico State
Environment Department as hazardous and have contacted the City of Las Vegas to
remove the vehicles from the Solid Waste Yard and/or face a substantial fine and/or
penalty.

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas is requesting review and
approval/disapproval of attached listing of obsolete vehicles that are currently located at
the Solid Waste Yard.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE

REVIE ED AND APPROVED BY:

_LI:44d/J1cffuCI /2_ L/
TON ITA GURULE-GIRON TANA VEGARlM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE G LLEG S,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
(FOR BID/RFP AWARD) CITY ATTORNEY

(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue I Las Vegas, NM 87701 I T 505.454.1401 I Iasvegasnm.gov

Madam Mayor Tonita Gurulê-Giràn

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Interim City Manager, Ann M. Gallegos

Interim Finance Director, Tana Vega

RE: Sale of Obsolete Vehicles parked at the Solid Waste Yard

DATE: December 17, 2018

We are submitting a listing of vehicles for your review and approval/disapproval to declare as excess property that

is worn out, unusable to the extent that the vehicles are no longer safe for continued use by the City of Las Vegas

and the current resale value is less than $5,000.

These listed vehicles have been designated by the New Mexico State Environment Department as hazardous and

have contacted the City of Las Vegas to remove the vehicles from the Solid Waste Yard and/or face a substantial

fine and/or penalty.

These vehicles will be sold as scrap metal and as one unit to the highest quoted dollar amount and must be

removed by the buyer within a seven day period from the City of Las Vegas Solid Waste Yard once awarded by the

City of Las Vegas.

David Ulibarri Vince Howell Barbara Perea-Casey David G. Romero
Councilor Ward 1 Councilor Ward 2 Councilor Ward 3 Councilor Ward 4



Y
EA

R
M

A
K

E
M

O
D

E
L

B
O

D
Y

TY
PE

V
IN

#

1993
FO

R
D

F
-150

2
D

R
PIC

K
U

P
2F

T
E

F
14N

7P
C

A
7588O

1995
FO

R
D

F
-150

PIC
K

U
P

2F
T

D
F

15Y
1S

C
A

45691
1997

FO
R

D
SU

PE
R

D
U

TY
TR

U
C

K
PIC

K
U

P
3F

E
L

F
47F

7V
M

A
67316

1998
D

O
D

G
E

R
A

M
1500

2
D

R
PIC

K
U

P
1B

7H
F

16Y
5W

5617654
1999

D
O

D
G

E
V

A
N

(B
U

S)
2B

6L
B

3126X
K

577196
2000

FO
R

D
EX

PLO
R

ER
4D

R
1FM

Z
U

71X
5Y

Z
C

42883
2000

C
H

EV
Y

B
LA

ZER
B

LA
ZER

1G
N

D
T

13W
11K

172632
2001

D
O

D
G

E
D

U
R

A
N

G
O

1B
4H

S
28Z

51F
563956

2003
C

H
EV

Y
B

LA
ZER

4D
R

1G
N

D
T

13X
53K

155456
2003

FO
R

D
F

-250
SD

1FT
N

X
21P63E

B
6O

71O
2003

FO
R

D
F

-250
PO

W
E

R
ST

R
O

K
E

PIC
K

U
P

1F
T

N
F

21P
83E

B
6O

713
2004

C
H

EV
Y

IM
PA

L
A

4D
R

2G
1W

F
55K

239334954
2008

FO
R

D
C

R
O

W
N

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

4
D

R
2F

A
F

P
71V

88X
139059

2007
FO

R
D

C
R

O
W

N
V

IC
T

O
R

IA
4

D
R

2F
A

F
P

71W
17X

126757
2007

FO
R

D
C

R
O

W
N

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

4
D

R
2F

A
F

P
73W

4Y
X

214930



Regular or Special
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: December 10, 2018 DEPT: Community Development MEETING DATE: December
19, 2018

ITEM/TOPIC: Resolution of Administrative and Financial Support adopting acceptance of
$150,000 for the FY 2019 New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay Public
Infrastructure funding for the Great Blocks on MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase
Construction Project and acceptance of the matching requirement”.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval to accept $150,000 for the FY
2019 New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding for
the Great Blocks on MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase I Construction Project and
acceptance of the matching requirement”.

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas in collaboration with MainStreet de
Las Vegas was approved for funding by New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) for $150,000
in Capital Outlay for the Great Blocks project in the railroad district. NMMS requires a
S27.000 match of which $5,000 has already been secured by MainStreet de Las Vegas.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve acceptance of the funding and commit to match
portion of the Capital Outlay.’

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO LATER
THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE CITY COUNCIL
MEETING.

FEV LVED AND APPRQ’JED BY:

4’4d/u

__

TONITAGURULE-GIRON TANA VEGA —-

MAYOR INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR
(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALLEG(1)S CITY ATTORNEY
INTERIM CITY MANAGER (ALL CONTRACTS, ORDINANCES

AND RESOLUTIONS MUST BE
REVIEWED)

Revised 1/3/18



City of Las Vegas, NM

Resolution N. 18-52

A Resolution of Administrative and Financial Support adopting acceptance of $150,000 for the
FY 2019 New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding for the
“Great Blocks on MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase I Construction Project and acceptance of
the matching requirement”.

ADOPTING ThE FY 2018-2019 “GREAT BLOCKS ON MAINSTREET: RAILROAD
AVENUE PHASE I CONSTRUCTION PROJECT”

WHEREAS, the New Mexico MainStreet evaluation committee recognized the application for
funding was impressive and recommended an award of $1 50.000 for the “Great Blocks” project
in the Railroad District; and

WHEREAS, the funding for this project is made available through MainStreet Public
Infrastructure by the sale of Severance Tax Bonds sold in June and the award was approved by
the Economic Development Department Cabinet Secretary Mathew Geisel for the City; and

WHEREAS, capital improvements are an effective tool for communities to achieve necessary
project development and the Railroad District is listed in the newly adopted Metropolitan
Redevelopment Act Plan otherwise known as the Downtown Action Plan as an important
catalytic development area; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas and MainStreet de Las Vegas (MSDLV) are committed to
collaborating on the construction ready Great Blocks Project in the Railroad District; and

WHEREAS, the City’s partner, MSDLV is working diligently to secure the “cash match” portion
of the match requirement by New Mexico MainStreet on behalf of the City in the amount of
S27,000; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas is committed to providing a match of funds in the amount of
S45.000 of which $27,000 will be cash and S 18,000 will be in-kind services if MSDLV is unable
to secure matching funds.

NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS GOVERNING
BODY that:

1. The City of Las Vegas has accepted the award of $150,000 for the “3reat Blocks” project and
is committed to providing match funds up to, and in the amount of $27,000 cash or less and
$18.000 in-kind for a total of $45,000 if MSDLV cannot secure the total matching funds; and



2. The New Mexico MainStreet Public Infrastructure Grant Monitor, upon receipt of Resolution

18-52. will begin the process of developing the detailed grant agreement between the City of Las
Vegas and NMMS.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS

_________

day of September

____,2018

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Mayor Ton ita Guru l—G i ron
(Sc a 1)

ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez., City Clerk

Esther Garduño—Monroya. City Attorney
(for legal suff’iciency onlv



LI F
tt rni1

ECONOMIC liEVELOPMEIII’ Susana Martinez. Governor
505.827.0300 • WWW.GONM.BIZ Matthew Geisel Cabinet Secretary

December 3, 2018

Michael Peranteau, Executive Director
Stella Burciaga, Board President
MainStreet de Las Vegas
500 Railroad Avenue
Las Vegas, NM 87701

Dear Michael and Stella,

New Mexico MainStreet and the Economic Development Department are pleased to announce

that MainStreet dc Las Vegas in partnership with the City of Las Vegas has been awarded

$150,000 in FY20 19 NMMS Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding for the “Great Blocks

on MainStreet: Rail Road Avenue Phase 1 Construction Project.” We are preparing a Press

Release and could potentially look at scheduling a Press Conference in Las Vegas to announce

the award.

This year’s application process was very competitive, and not everyone who applied received

funding. The Evaluation Committee was very impressed by your application and duly

recommended awarding S 150,000 for the project. MainStreet Public Infrastructure funding is

made available through the sale of Severance Tax Bonds, which were sold in June. New Mexico

Economic Development Department Cabinet Secretary Matthew Geisel has approved the award

and is very excited to get these grant funds working in your community.

Once we receive a “Resolution of Administrative and Financial Support” from the City to fulfill

the matching requirement, the NMMS Public Infrastructure Grant Monitor will prepare and send

a detailed Grant Agreement to be signed by an authorized agent of the City of Las Vegas. The

agreement will outline the grant administration process and project requirements based on your

proposed project and the recommendations of the Evaluation Committee.

Joseph M. Montoya Building 1100 South Saint Francis Drive Santa Fe, NM 87505-4147



Congratulations on your award! MainStreet de Las Vegas selected a very worthy project.

Sincerely,

Daniel J. Gutierrez
Co-Director
New Mexico MainStreet
New Mexico Economic Development Department

/1

CC: City of Las Vegas



Daniel Gutierrez, Co-Director
Economic Development
New Mexico Mainstreet Program
1100 St. Francis Building Drive
State Fe, NM 87505

qfi//

Re: Application to New Mexico Mainstreet for Capital Outlay Grant

Dear Mr. Gutierrez,

The City of Las Vegas wholeheartedly supports Main Street de Las Vegas’ (MS LV) pre
application to the New Mexico Mainstreet for the Capital Outlay grant. As you are aware,
the City of Las Vegas and MSLV received art award for the Great Blocks Project. These
engineered plans for the Great Blocks project in the Railroad District along with the
renovation of the Castaneda Hotel and other buildings nearby demonstrate that the City of
Las Vegas in collaboration with MSLV has interest in historic preservation.

The 1.6 million dollar construction ready plans for the Great Blocks project utilizing the
capital outlay funds if awarded will jumpstart the first phase of the project on Lincoln
Street from Grand Ave. to Railroad and significantly improve the façade of the District and
support tourism, a major impact to our community. The Main Street Corridor
Improvements also known as the Great Blocks Project is listed on the City of Las Vegas
2019 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) and is a priority on the updated
Metropolitan Redevelopment Act Plan also known as the Downtown Action Plan.

The City of Las Vegas is committed to accepting the Capital Outlay Funds if awarded
including fiscal management, coordination of procurement, contracting, in-kind services
and overall implementation of the project fi.inds. In addition, these Capital Outlay funds
are only available to Main Street Communities and the City of Las Vegas is very
committed to being the lead community implementing a Great Blocks Project

David Ulibarri
Councilor Ward 1

Vince Howell
Councilor Ward 2

Barbara Perea-Casey
Councilor Ward 3

David G. Romêro
Councilor Ward 4

City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue Las Vegas, NM 877011 T 505.454.1401 I lasvegasnm.gov

September 27, 2018



The City of Las Vegas is ready to move forward on this project and supports MSLV efforts
to submit the pre-application. We offer our support and collaboration to all parties and we
look forward to assisting. If there are any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to
call me at 505-454-1401 or contact the Interim City Manager, Ann Marie Gallegos. Thank
you.

Sincerely,

Madame Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón,
City of Las Vegas

Cc: Ann Marie Gallegos, Interim City Manager
Michael Peranteau, Director of Mainstreet
Robert Archuleta, Grant Writer/Administrator



December 7, 2018

Anne Marie Gallegos
Interim City Manager
1700 N. Grand Ave.
Las Vegas, NM 87701

Cc: The Honorable Mayor Tonita Gurule-Giron; Robert Archuleta, Grants
Writer

I am writing to convey how excited we are to be partnering with the City
of Las Vegas on this amazing Great Blocks Project! This S15o,000 Capital
Outlays Grant from New Mexico Main Street is to fund the first phase of
construction on the Lincoln Avenue part of our Great Blocks Project in the
Railroad District.

We are aware that the grant requires a 30% match and that a portion of
that can he the in-kind work that the City of Las Vegas staff will do
managing the project hut about $27,000 must be raised in cash. We have
already received a $5,000 grant from Southwest Capital Bank that is
designated to go towards this S27,000 match.

We have also applied to the Yates Foundation for $50,000 for the art part
of this project and any funds received will he used towards the match.
Applications are being prepared for the National Wells Fargo Foundation
and the McCune Foundation. At the same time, we are working with the
staff at New Mexico Main Street on other federal and state sources of
funding for the match for this project.

We are committed to raising these matching funds and have already
begun the fundraising process. I will keep you regularly updated on how
we are progressing. We look forward to working with you and the City of
Las Vegas on the completion of this first phase. The best to you all over
the holidays and in the New Year!

Sit cerely, /

Michael Peranteau
Executive Director

‘the inL’sion of MuinStreet Las Veaus is En unijy the hi.steri cc’lrinu’reuli rorridni’ and

J(wncrp1’ith’ in the c’ainn:unitj while proIiiof inn ‘ annum’ ti’eelorn,ermt and pl’tSri’L’lThJ

histu;ii’cii, cuhvrul. u?’LInt&’rhiru/ uial initural l’esnui’ces thrcih

partnerships and cainnmunit j colinhuratian.

Jage. Pie s’ei’rc ]/lI7rc

VEGAS

Board of Directors Dear Anne-Marie:

Stella l3urciaga,
Presidei t

Sara Jo Mathews,
VicePresiden t

Bill Taylor,
‘Iran surer

Patrick Alarirl

Robert Archuleta

.Jennifei’ Carbajal

Cind Collins

Reina F’erimandez

(‘orinc Leger

Jonathan iladrfd

Dr. Sam Minner

Michael Siewert

Honorary

Terry Mossman

Executive Director

vlichael Perantean,

lixceut ii c Director

500 Railroid Aenue 1s Vegas, Ne Mexico 87701 505 617 6800 rnaznstreethnrn org


	Agenda
	Minutes-November 14, 2018 WS
	Minutes-November 20, 2018
	Presentation-Scott Verhines
	Finance Report
	Consent Item 1
	Consent Item 2
	Business Item 1
	Business Item 2
	Business Item 3
	Business Item 4

